
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 23 MARCH 2021 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING (ACCESSIBLE REMOTELY) 

 
Members: Alexander Barr (Chairman) 

Alderman Ian Luder (Deputy Chairman) 
Hilary Daniels (Deputy Chairman - 
External) 
Randall Anderson 
Chris Boden 
Anne Fairweather 
Marianne Fredericks (Ex-Officio) 
Alderman Prem Goyal 
 

Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark (Ex-Officio) 
Paul Martinelli 
Caroline Mawhood (External Member) 
Jeremy Mayhew (Ex-Officio) 
Deputy Andrien Meyers 
John Petrie 
Ruby Sayed 
Dan Worsley (External Member) 
 

 
Enquiries: Chloe Rew - chloe.rew@cityoflondon.gov.uk  

 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
 

Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link: 
https://youtu.be/GcT6n2fJDz0  

 
This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical 
location following regulations made under Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020. A 
recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of the 
public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do 
not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on 
the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of 
the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/GcT6n2fJDz0


2 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the previous meeting held on 
13 January 2021. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

 Member are asked to note the Committee’s Outstanding Actions List. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
5. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 Member are asked to note the Committee’s Work Programme. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 9 - 12) 

 
Governance 

 
6. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 
 

 Report of the Head of Audit & Risk Management. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 13 - 24) 

 
Financial Statements and External Audit 

 
7. AUDIT PLANNING: YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 
 

 Report of External Auditors, BDO LLP. 
 

 For Information 
 a) Bridge House Estates (Pages 25 - 62) 

 

 b) City Fund (Pages 63 - 102) 
 



3 
 

 c) City's Cash and Sundry Trusts (Pages 103 - 142) 
 

 d) Pension Fund (Pages 143 - 178) 
 

 

Internal Audit 
 
8. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE (PROVISIONAL 12-MONTH PLAN DELIVERY 

OUTTURN) 
 

 Report of the Head of Audit & Risk Management. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 179 - 182) 

 
Risk Management 

 
9. DEEP DIVE: CR17 SAFEGUARDING 
 

 Report of the Director of Community & Children’s Services. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 183 - 192) 

 
10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION, that – under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act.      
 

 For Decision 
Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 

 
13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 January 2021. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 193 - 194) 

 
14. DEEP DIVE REVIEW OF CR35 - UNSUSTAINABLE MEDIUM-TERM FINANCES  

* THIS REPORT HAS BEEN RECLASSIFIED AS A PUBLIC REPORT AND WILL 
BE DISCUSSED FOLLOWING DEEP DIVE CR17 * 

 

 Report of the Chamberlain. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 195 - 202) 

 



4 
 

15. DISTRIBUTED DENIAL OF SERVICE INCIDENT AT THE CITY OF LONDON 
SCHOOL 

 

 Joint report of the Head of Audit & Risk Management and the Bursar of the City of 
London School. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 203 - 208) 

 
16. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

COMMITTEE 
 
17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 13 January 2021  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee held virtually 
on Wednesday, 13 January 2021 at 2.00 pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Alexander Barr (Chairman) 
Alderman Ian Luder (Deputy Chairman) 
Hilary Daniels (Deputy Chairman) 
Randall Anderson 
Chris Boden 
Anne Fairweather 
Marianne Fredericks (Ex-Officio Member) 
Alderman Prem Goyal 
 

Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark (Ex-Officio 
Member) 
Paul Martinelli 
Caroline Mawhood (External Member) 
Jeremy Mayhew (Ex-Officio Member) 
John Petrie 
Ruby Sayed 
Dan Worsley (External Member) 
 

 
In Attendance 
 
Officers: 
Chloe Rew - Town Clerk's Department 

Richard Holt - Town Clerk’s Department 

Peter Kane - Chamberlain 

Alistair Cook - Chamberlain's Department 

Paul Dudley - Chamberlain's Department 

James Gibson - Chamberlain's Department 

Matthew Lock - Chamberlain's Department 

Michael Cogher - Comptroller and City Solicitor 

Ian Dyson - Commissioner of the City of London Police 

Jon Averns - Director of Markets & Consumer Protection 

Ruth Calderwood - Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 

  

Also In Attendance:  

Leigh Lloyd-Thomas - External Auditor, BDO 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Deputy Andrien Meyers. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were none. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
RESOLVED, that – the minutes of the previous meeting held on 3 November 
2020 be agreed as a correct record. 
 

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE  
Members received the list of outstanding actions. The action regarding 
Members’ declarations would be added to the list so the action could be 
captured for the record. 
 

5. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
Members received the committee’s work programme. It was agreed that the 
plan would be expanded for the remainder of 2021 and would include the risk 
challenge session programme. 
 

6. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
Members received a report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management relative 
to the Internal Audit Progress Report, which provided an update on internal 
audit activity and progress against the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan. With respect 
to the impact of COVID-19, some internal audit work had been deprioritised due 
to operations being suspended and that IT resilience had been impacted. With 
respect to fraud, grants were being administered, however due to rapid growth 
and conditions surrounding fraud, the matter required additional attention. In 
response to concerns regarding Mazars and the cost of the service, the Head 
of Audit and Risk Management advised that further information would be 
provided in the non-public session. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted. 
 

7. DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021-22  
Members considered a report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
relative to the Draft Internal Audit Plan 2021-22. Members questioned the 
amount of time allocated to the Chamberlain’s Department, Town Clerk’s 
Department, and the City of London Police, however the Head of Audit and 
Risk Management advised that this referred to allocated time and that the time 
would not necessarily be used. With respect to the City of London Police, the 
Commissioner advised that the Police do not have their own audit function, and 
therefore use the Chamberlain’s audit division to discharge its responsibilities 
as a Home Office force. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the 2021/22 Draft Internal Audit Plan be agreed. 
 

8. INTERNAL AUDIT REVIEW OF OPERATIONAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 
- STATUS UPDATE  
Members received a report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management relative 
to the Internal Audit Review of Operational Property Management Status 
Update. It was reported that Internal Audit was working through options with the 
City Surveyor and that the findings of this review would be presented to the 
Committee at its next meeting in March. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted. 

Page 2



 
9. CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  

Members received a report of the Chamberlain relative to a Corporate Risk 
Management Update (noting that this was an update report rather than a 
strategy report). The Corporate Risk Strategy would be provided in May once 
the implications of the Target Operating Model (TOM) were clear. 
 The following risk factors were highlighted: 

- COVID-19: a new variant of the virus had emerged in the UK, and the 
UK had moved to a new national lockdown; 

- Brexit: The UK had officially left the EU; a new trade agreement was 
established since the report was published and therefore the risk register 
would be reviewed to reflect potential risks and opportunities. 

 
Members noted the ongoing confusion regarding what target dates represent 
and therefore suggested that it would be useful to note if the target date 
represented the date to achieve a target risk score, or a date to review the risk. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted. 
 

10. DEEP DIVE: CR21 AIR QUALITY  
Members received a report of the Director of Markets & Consumer Protection 
relative to a Deep Dive of CR20 Air Quality. The Director noted that air quality 
was improving in the City, both due to the City’s 2019-24 Air Quality Strategy 
and other factors. The emission reduction bill and environment bill which were 
going through parliament would have further impact. The risk had been de-
escalated from red to amber.  
 
The Director noted that most particles measured within the City come from 
outside the City’s boundaries. Traffic management schemes had had a notable 
impact, and the business engagement programme had been effective in 
securing pledges from City businesses to reduce emissions caused by 
buildings and staff transport, as well as raising awareness amongst staff. The 
impact of COVID-19 had reduced the workforce presence in the City which 
contributed to improved air quality; the new transport strategy created more 
space for pedestrians and once workforce returns, it was anticipated that there 
would be less vehicle traffic. It was further noted that whilst initiatives had 
focused on promoting fully electric vehicles, and whilst the government had 
plans to transition to electric vehicles by 2030, it was noted that hybrid vehicles 
would be a good alternative.  
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted. 
 

11. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There was one question with respect to the Redmond Review and how the City 
responded to the report on review of local audit. The Chamberlain noted that as 
the City had its own audit arrangements, and it was not necessary for the City 
to respond, however the Chamberlain noted that the recommendation to 
provide a simplified version of accounts would improve accessibility and 
understanding of accounts for the public. 

Page 3



 
12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  

There was one item of other business. 
 
Members considered a report of the Town Clerk & Chief Executive relative to 
the annual review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference and Frequency of 
Meetings. With respect to any amendments of the Terms of Reference in light 
of the recommendations from the Lisvane Review, the impacts of this review 
are yet to be confirmed. In terms of the potential for increased risk of fraud from 
the Lisvane Review’s recommendations regarding governance for the Planning 
& Transportation Committee, the Head of Audit and Risk Management noted 
that the Audit & Risk Management Committee did not have a core role in 
working through its recommendations. The Committee’s current Terms of 
Reference allowed for the Committee to become involved in matters of concern 
only where necessary. The Chairman noted the Committee’s responsibility to 
provide oversight of the executive governance of the Corporation, and the 
Court of Common Council was responsible for governance arrangements of the 
non-executive function. 
 
RESOLVED, that – 

1. the terms of reference of the Committee be approved for submission to 
the Court in April 2021 as set out in appendix 1; 

2. the Committee continues to meet 6 times a year; and, 
3. any further changes in the lead up to the Court’s appointment of 

Committees be delegated to the Town Clerk in consultation with the 
Chairman and Deputy Chairman.  

 
13. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

RESOLVED, that – under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I 
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

14. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
RESOLVED, that – the non-public minutes of the previous meeting held on 3 
November 2020 be agreed as a correct record. 
 

15. CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: NON-PUBLIC 
APPENDICES  
The non-public appendix was received in conjunction with the report of the 
Chamberlain at item 9. 
 

16. DEEP DIVE REVIEW OF CR23 - POLICE FUNDING  
Members received a report of the Commissioner of the City of London Police 
relative to a Deep Dive of CR23 Police Funding. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted. 
 

* The Committee agreed to extend the meeting * 

Page 4



17. EXTERNAL MEMBER: RECOMMENDATION FROM THE NOMINATIONS 
SUB-COMMITTEE  
Members considered a report of the Town Clerk & Chief Executive relative to 
the External Member Recommendation from the Nominations Sub-Committee. 
 
RESOLVED, that – Members agree that the nominated candidate be 
recommended to the Court of Common Council at its meeting in March 2021. 
 

18. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE COMMITTEE  
There was one question. 
 

19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 4.12 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Chloe Rew 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1427 
chloe.rew@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - Outstanding Actions – March 2021 

 

 

11. Items from meeting held 13 January 2021 12.   

AGENDA ITEM Action Officer and target date 

5. WORK PLAN The Informal Risk Challenge Session programme to be included in 
the work programme. 

Town Clerk 
 
23 March 2021 

13. 8. INTERNAL AUDIT 
REVIEW OF OPERATIONAL 
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 
– STATUS UPDATE 

Findings of review to be presented to the Committee at its next 
meeting 

Head of Audit and Risk 
Management 
 
Date: 23 March 2021 

14.    

15. Items from meeting held 3 November 2020 16.   

AGENDA ITEM Action Officer and target date 

17. 13. UPDATE ON 
SMITHFIELD CANOPIES 
AND SUBSEQUENT 
REMEDIAL WORKS 

Head of Audit and Risk Management to conduct internal audit of 
the Department for Markets & Consumer Protection and the City 
Surveyor’s Department to determine risk ownership. 

Head of Audit and Risk 
Management/ City 
Surveyor/ M&CP 
 
Date: 23 March 2021 

18. 19. NON- PUBLIC ANY 
OTHER BUSINESS 

The matter of related party transactions and declarations of 
interests from members would be addressed. 

Town Clerk/ Chamberlain’s 
 
COMPLETED 

 
  

19. Items from meeting held 1 October 2020 20.   

ITEM Action Officer and target date 

14. Deep Dive – CR29: 
Information Management 

Update to be brought to Committee regarding actions taken to 
address the risks associated with the Information Management 
Strategy (2018-2023) not fully being implemented. 

Town Clerk/Chamberlain 
 
Date: 5 October 2021 

 
 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 8



 

 
Audit & Risk Management Committee - Work Programme: 2021  

 
 

23 March 2021 25 May 2021 13 July 2021 5 October 2021 30 November 2021 

Accounts: 
 
BDO Audit Plans 

- City’s Cash 
- City Fund 
- Pension Fund 
- BHE 

 
 
 

Accounts: Accounts: 
 
Draft City Fund and 
Pension Fund Accounts 
 
Bridge House Estates 
Accounts 
 
 

Accounts: 
 
City’s Cash Accounts 

Accounts: 

Deep Dive: 
 
1. CR17 Safeguarding 

(DCCS) 
 
2. CR35 Medium-

Term Financial 
Plan 
(Chamberlain’s) 

Deep Dive: 
 
1. CR16 Information 

Security 
(Chamberlain’s) 
 

2. CR34 COVID-19 
(Town Clerk’s) 

Deep Dive: 
 
1. CR30 Climate Action 

(Town Clerk’s) 
 

2. CR33 Major Capital 
Schemes (Town 
Clerk’s/ City 
Surveyor) 

Deep Dive: 
 
1. CR29 Information 

Management 
(Chamberlain’s) 
 

2. CR01 Resilience 
(Town Clerk’s) 

Deep Dive: 
 
1. CR20 Road Safety 

(DBE) 
 

2. CR02 Loss of 
Business Support for 
the City (Town 
Clerk’s) 

Risk Management: 
 
 

Risk Management: 
 
Risk Management 
Update 
 
Risk Management 
Strategy 
 
CR28 Action Fraud 
Update 

Risk Management: 
 
CR32 Wanstead Park 
Update 

Risk Management: 
 

Risk Management 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



 

Internal Audit and 
Anti- Fraud: 
 
Internal Audit 
Progress Report 
(Provisional 12-month 
plan delivery outturn) 
 
DDOS Incident 
 
 

Internal Audit and 
Anti-Fraud: 
 
Internal Audit Update 
(12-month plan 
delivery) 
 
Head of Internal Audit 
Annual Opinion 
 
Anti-Fraud and 
Investigations Annual 
Report 

Internal Audit and Anti-
Fraud: 
 
 

Internal Audit and Anti-
Fraud: 
 
 

Internal Audit and Anti-
Fraud 

Governance: 
 
Internal Audit Charter 
 

Governance: 
 
Annual Report of the 
Committee 
 

Governance: 
 
Annual Governance 
Statement 

Governance: 
 

Governance: 

External Inspections: 
 

External Inspections: 
 

External Inspections: 
 

External Inspections: 
 
HMICFRS Report 

 

External Inspections: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 10



 

Risk Challenge Session Schedule:  
 
Note – Following the Committee’s decision on 14 July 2020, from September 2020 Informal Risk Challenge Sessions will be 
conducted virtually, and will take place once per month outside the of the committee schedule. 
 

Month Committee Date  Risk Challenge Date Department 

Mar-21 23 March 2021 24 March 2021 City Surveyor’s 

Apr-21 - 28 April 2021 Department of Community and Children’s Services 

May-21 25 March 2021 12 May 2021 City of London School for Girls 

Jun-21 - 2 June 2021 Comptroller and City Solicitor 

Jul-21 13 July 2021 28 July 2021 Department of Open Spaces 

Sep-21 - 8 September 2021 Barbican Centre 

Oct-21 5 October 2021 13 October 2021 Mansion House/Central Criminal Court 

Nov-21 30 November 2021 3 November 2021 Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
 

* Department for the Built Environment session deferred from July 2020 and January 2021 
 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 23/03/2021 

Subject: Internal Audit Charter Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

N/A 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding? N/A 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management For Decision 

Report author: Matt Lock 
 

 
 

Summary 
 

Under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), all internal audit services 
operating within the public sector are required to produce an Internal Audit Charter. 
This Charter sets out the purpose, authority and responsibility of the organisation’s 
Internal Audit function, in accordance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (2017) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note (LGAN).  
 
The Charter is reviewed annually and presented to the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee for approval, the structure of the Charter has been amended and the text 
streamlined to result in a more concise document. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to approve the updated City of London Internal Audit Charter. 
 

Main Report 

Background 
 

1. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require all Internal Audit 
services operating within the public sector to produce an Internal Audit Charter.  
The Charter should be reviewed annually and presented to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee for approval. 

 
Current Position 

2. The Internal Audit Charter has been reviewed against the criteria specified in the 
latest version of the PSIAS and current operational practice. The review resulted 
in no material amendments although changes have been made to the format and 
structure of the document.  Much of the key text has been re-drafted, resulting in 
a more concise document.  The updated Internal Audit Charter is included as 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Appendix 1 to this report, with a marked up copy of the previous version attached 
as Appendix 2. 

 

Corporate & Strategic Implications 
 
3. The work of Internal Audit is designed to provide assurance as to the adequacy 

of the City of London Corporation’s systems of internal control and governance.  
This programme of activity is aligned with the Corporate Plan, Corporate Risk 
Register and Departmental Top Risks.  Provision of an effective Internal Audit is 
a mandatory requirement for the City of London Corporation. 

 

Conclusion 

4. The Internal Audit Charter has been reviewed in accordance with the PSIAS, the 
Charter is now presented to Members for approval. 

 

▪ Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Charter  
▪ Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Charter 2020 – Marked up copy 

 

 

 

Matt Lock 
Head of Audit and Risk Management, Chamberlain’s Department 
 
E: matt.lock@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
T: 020 7332 1276 

 

Page 14



City of London Corporation – Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

Introduction 

1. This Charter sets out the purpose, authority, and responsibility of the City Corporation’s 
Internal Audit function, prepared in accordance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) (2017) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note (LGAN). 

2. The Charter is reviewed annually and presented to the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee for approval. 

3. The Internal Audit, Risk Management and Anti-Fraud functions at the City of London 
Corporation are provided to a number of bodies, including the City of London Police 
(excluding risk management), the Barbican Centre, the Guildhall School of Music and 
Drama, and the City Corporation’s Independent Schools. Where reference is made to the 
City Corporation, these bodies will be deemed to be included in the objectives and 
requirements of this Charter. 

 

Role of Internal Audit 

4. The City of London Corporation has adopted the PSIAS mandatory definition of internal 
auditing, as specified by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors’ International 
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF): 

“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting (advisory) 
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps the 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes.” 

5. Internal Audit seeks to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based 
and objective assurance, advice and insight, specifically: 

▪ Assessing whether all significant risks are identified and reported appropriately to 
Members and Senior Leadership 

▪ Assessing the design and operation of key controls to determine whether they are 
effective at mitigating significant risks 

▪ Challenging Senior Leadership to improve the effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and internal controls by providing assurance over the effectiveness of 
the first and second line of defence functions. 
 

Scope and Purpose 

6. The scope of Internal Audit work is unrestricted and is based on Internal Audit’s 
independent assessment of the key risks faced by the City of London Corporation and 
how effectively these risks are being managed. 

7. Internal Audit may undertake assurance projects at the request of Audit and Risk 
Management Committee or the Audit (Sub) Committees of the institutions. In addition, 

Page 15



City of London Corporation – Internal Audit Charter 
 

Internal Audit may undertake lessons learned reviews following significant adverse 
events.  

8. Internal Audit validates that management actions arising from audits have sustainably 
remediated the control weaknesses identified. 

9. The Team provides advice and guidance to management on governance, risk and control 
and may engage with the City’s Corporate and Departmental change projects providing 
expert independent and objective advice on the design of internal controls. The Head of 
Audit and Risk Management will ensure that the independence of future Internal Audit 
assurance work is not compromised through this activity.  

 

Independence and Authority 

10. Internal Audit receives its authority from the Audit and Risk Management Committee, 
this Committee will fulfil the functions of the “board”, as defined in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standard. 

11. The Internal Audit function has unrestricted access to all Corporation records and 
information, both manual and computerised, cash, stores and other Corporation 
property or assets it considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. Internal Audit may 
enter City Corporation property and has unrestricted access to all locations and officers 
where necessary on demand and without prior notice. Right of access to other bodies 
funded by the Corporation should be set out in the conditions of funding. 

12. Although line-managed by the Chamberlain, the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
has direct access to the Town Clerk, Comptroller and City Solicitor, the Chairman of 
Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Chairmen of the Audit (Sub) 
Committees (or equivalent) for those bodies under the remit of the City Corporation.  

13. In addition to reporting formally to Members at Audit and Risk Management Committee 
meetings, the Head of Audit and Risk Management has access to all Members of City of 
London Committees in the reporting and discussion of Internal Audit work. 

14. All Internal Audit staff are responsible for being independent, objective, and 
constructive in the conduct of their work and avoiding conflicts of interest and personal, 
business or other issues that may impair impartiality. 

 

Head of Audit and Risk Management Responsibilities 

15. The Head of Audit and Risk Management fulfils the role of the Chief Audit Executive (as 
required by the PSIAS) and is required to provide an annual opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the system of internal control for the whole Corporation and not limited 
to financial controls. In order to achieve this, the Internal Audit function has the 
following objectives: 

▪ Developing and delivering an audit plan that focuses on the key risks to the City 
Corporation, providing assurance that significant risks to the Corporation’s objectives 
are being managed and reporting progress on delivery of this plan to Audit and Risk 
Management Committee 

Page 16



City of London Corporation – Internal Audit Charter 
 

▪ Attending and presenting reports at the relevant Audit and Risk Committees and to 
senior management as appropriate. This includes reporting significant findings and 
their root causes and providing opinions on the effectiveness on the governance, risk 
management and control environment within systems reviewed 

▪ Provide assurance to management that the Corporation’s operations are being 
conducted in accordance with external regulations, legislation, internal policies and 
procedures 

▪ Provide advice and support to management to enable an effective control 
environment to be maintained 

▪ Investigate concerns of irregularity 
▪ Accessing additional expertise and resource through the use of third parties e.g. 

professional services firms. In appointing third parties the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management considers the following factors: competence, independence and 
objectivity. 

16. The Head of Audit and Risk Management will report on conformance with the PSIAS in 
their annual report.  An independent peer review will be undertaken at least every five 
years to assess the Internal Audit function’s compliance with these standards. 

 

Standards of Audit Practice 

17. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), which came into effect on 1 April 
2013 and most recently revised in 2017 are mandatory for the City of London 
Corporation, the service is designed and operates within these. 

18. This is also in accordance with the IPPF, which includes the International Standards for 
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and the Code of Ethics. 

19. Internal Audit officers are required to follow the CIIA’s Code of Ethics which is a 
statement of principles and expectations governing behaviour required in the conduct of 
internal auditing.  

20. In addition, Internal Audit officers must comply with Internal Audit’s policies and 
procedures and those of the City Corporation together with any other relevant 
professional bodies' standards of conduct.  Auditors must possess the knowledge, skills 
and disciplines necessary to discharge their responsibilities. 

 

Additional Responsibilities of the Head of Audit and Risk Management 

21. Provision of Services to Outside Bodies - The City of London Corporation Internal Audit 
function provides Internal Audit services under a service level agreement to London 
Councils and the Museum of London. In addition, Internal Audit will occasionally provide 
assurance to Central Government on the appropriate use of ring-fenced grants or 
performance returns where required by grant conditions. 

22. Risk Management - Providing risk management support to the City of London by 
promoting the consistent use of risk management and ownership of risk at all levels 
within the City. Achieved through the development and review of the risk management 
framework, including facilitation of the City of London Corporate Risk Register. 

Page 17



City of London Corporation – Internal Audit Charter 
 

23. Anti-Fraud and Corruption - Promoting fraud awareness and maintaining an effective 
anti-fraud and corruption function, acting as a central function for the investigation of 
irregularities and, where criminal investigation is considered appropriate, to liaise 
directly with the Police and advise departments on such matters. The Section plays a 
specific anti-fraud and investigation role in relation to Housing Tenancy Fraud and the 
investigation of serious whistleblowing concerns raised through the City of London 
Whistleblowing policy. 

24. Independent assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Risk Management and 
Anti-Fraud and Corruption arrangements will be provided to senior management and 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee through periodic external assessment.  

 
 
 

Updated 8 March 2021 

Page 18



CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION 
INTERNAL AUDIT 

Audit Charter 
 
1. This Charter sets out the purpose, authority, and responsibility of the City 

Corporation’s Internal Audit function, in accordance with the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (2017) and the CIPFA Local Government Application 
Note (LGAN). 

 
The Charter will be reviewed annually and presented to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee for approval. 
 
The Internal Audit, Risk Management and Anti-Fraud functions at the City of 
London Corporation are provided to a number of bodies, including the City of 
London Police, the Barbican Centre, the Guildhall School of Music and Drama, 
and the City Corporation’s Independent Schools. Where reference is made to the 
City Corporation, these bodies will be deemed to be included in the objectives 
and requirements of this Charter. 

 
Internal Audit Standards 
 
2. Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), which came into effect on 1 April 

2013 and most recently revised in 2017 are mandatory and underpin the Internal 
Audit arrangements within the City of London Corporation. These requirements 
include the definition of internal auditing, Code of Ethics and the Standards 
themselves. The Head of Audit and Risk Management will report on conformance 
with the PSIAS in his annual report. An independent peer review will be 
undertaken at least every five years to assess the Internal Audit function’s 
compliance with these standards. 

 
Definition of Internal Audit 
 
3. The PSIAS mandatory definition of internal auditing, as specified by the Institute 

of Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), has 
been adopted by the City of London Corporation as follows: 
 
“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting 
(advisory) activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 
operations. It helps the organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.” 

 
Mission and Core Principles 
 
4. The IPPF’s overarching “Mission” for Internal Audit is:  

 
“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and 
objective assurance, advice and insight”  
The “Core Principles” that underpin delivery of the IPPF mission require internal 
audit functions to: 

Page 19



 
▪ Demonstrate integrity 
▪ Be objective and free from undue influence (independent) 
▪ Align with the strategies, objectives and risks of the organisation 
▪ Be appropriately positioned and adequately resourced 
▪ Demonstrate quality and continuous improvement 
▪ Communicate effectively 
▪ Provide risk-based assurance 
▪ Be insightful, proactive, and future-focused 
▪ Promote organisational improvement 

 
Authority 
 
5. The Internal Audit function has unrestricted access to all Corporation records and 

information, both manual and computerised, cash, stores and other Corporation 
property or assets it considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. Audit may 
enter Corporation property and has unrestricted access to all locations and 
officers where necessary on demand and without prior notice. Right of access to 
other bodies funded by the Corporation should be set out in the conditions of 
funding. 

 
6.  
 
Responsibility and Accountability 
 
7. Within the City of London Corporation, the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee will fulfil the functions of the “board”, as defined in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standard with the following exceptions: 
 

 
 

8. The Head of Audit and Risk Management is the person designated by the 
Corporation to fulfil the role of the Chief Audit Executive (as required by the 
PSIAS) and is required to provide an annual opinion to the Corporation and to the 
Chamberlain (Chief Financial Officer), through the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee, on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system for 
the whole Corporation and not limited to financial controls. In order to achieve 
this, the Internal Audit function has the following objectives: 
 
▪ Provide a quality, independent and objective audit service that effectively 

meets the Corporation’s needs, adds value, improves operations and helps 
protect public resources 

▪ Provide assurance to management that the Corporation’s operations are 
being conducted in accordance with external regulations, legislation, internal 
policies and procedures 

▪ Provide a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, internal control and governance processes 

▪ Provide assurance that significant risks to the Corporation’s objectives are 
being managed. This is achieved by annually assessing the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the risk management process 

Page 20



▪ Provide advice and support to management to enable an effective control 
environment to be maintained 

▪ Promote an anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption culture within the 
Corporation to aid the prevention and detection of fraud. To achieve this, all 
Corporation workers have a responsibility to notify the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management of all instances of suspected and detected fraud or impropriety 
as this may inform the annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion and the Internal 
Audit Plan 

▪ Investigate allegations of fraud, bribery and corruption 
 

9. Even sound systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not 
absolute, assurance, and may not prevent collusive fraud. Internal Audit 
procedures are designed to focus on areas identified by the organisation as being 
of greatest risk and significance and rely on management to provide full access to 
accounting records and transactions for the purposes of audit work and to ensure 
the authenticity of these documents. 
 

10. The remit of Internal Audit covers the entire control environment of the 
Organisation. Where appropriate, Internal Audit will undertake audit or consulting 
work for the benefit of the Corporation in organisations wholly or partly owned by 
the Corporation. Internal Audit may also provide assurance to the Corporation on 
third party operations (such as contractors and partners) where this has been 
provided for as part of the contract. 

 
Reporting 
 
11. The UK PSIAS requires the Head of Audit and Risk Management to report at the 

top of the organisation and this is done in the following ways: 
▪ The Internal Audit Charter and any amendments to this are reported to the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 
▪ The annual Internal Audit Plan is compiled by the Head of Audit and Risk 

Management, taking account of the Corporation’s risk framework and after 
input from members of the Senior Management. It is then presented to the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee annually for noting and comment 

▪ The adequacy, or otherwise, of the level of Internal Audit resources, as 
determined by the Head of Audit and Risk Management, and the 
independence of Internal Audit will be reported annually to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee.  

▪ Performance against the Internal Audit Plan and any significant risk 
exposures and control issues arising from audit work are reported to the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee on a quarterly basis 

▪ Any significant consulting activity not already included in the audit plan and 
which might affect the level of assurance work undertaken will be reported to 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee 

▪ Results from Internal Audit’s Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
will be reported to the Audit and Risk Management Committee 

▪ Any instances of non-conformance with the PSIAS must be reported to the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee and will be included in the annual 
report from the Head of Audit and Risk Management. If there is significant 

Page 21



non-conformance this may be included in the Corporation’s Annual 
Governance Statement 

 
Independence 
 
12. The Head of Audit and Risk Management has free and unfettered access to the 

following: 
 
▪ The Chief Financial Officer (Chamberlain) 
▪ Chief Executive (Town Clerk) 
▪ Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, together with the 

Chairmen of the Audit and Risk Management Committees (or equivalent) for 
those bodies under the remit of the Corporation 

▪ The Monitoring Officer 
▪ Any other member of the Chief Officers Group 

 
13. Although line-managed by the Chamberlain, the Head of Audit and Risk 

Management has direct access to the Town Clerk, Comptroller and City Solicitor, 
and the Audit and Risk Management Committee Chairman.  
 

14. In addition to reporting formally to Members at Audit and Risk Management 
Committee meetings, the Head of Audit and Risk Management has access to all 
Members of City of London Committees in the reporting and discussion of 
Internal Audit work and will meet quarterly with the Chairman and Deputy 
Chairmen of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

 
15. The Chamberlain, as line manager for the Head of Audit and Risk Management, 

is responsible for undertaking the performance appraisal of the Head of Audit. 
The independence of the Head of Audit and Risk Management is safeguarded by 
ensuring that those subject to audit do not inappropriately influence the annual 
appraisal of the post holder. This PSIAS requirement will be achieved through the 
Town Clerk contributing feedback to the performance appraisal of the Head of 
Audit and Risk Management and that feedback is also sought from the Chairman 
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

 
16. The Audit and Risk Management Committee would be consulted through the 

Chairman of the Committee in the appointment and removal of the Head of Audit 
and Risk Management. The Internal Audit section budget is approved as part of 
the Finance Committee’s consideration of the overall Chamberlain’s 
Departmental Budget. The Audit and Risk Management Committee is provided 
regular updates on the availability and utilisation of Internal Audit resources and 
seeks assurances as to their adequacy. 

 
17. All Corporation and contractor staff in the Internal Audit, Risk Management and 

Anti-Fraud team are required to make an annual declaration of interest to ensure 
that auditors’ objectivity is not impaired and that any potential conflicts of interest 
are appropriately managed. 

 

Page 22



18. In addition, both the City Corporation and the Audit contractor staff have stringent 
procedures in place relating to the acceptance of gifts and hospitality and the 
prevention of bribery. 

 
Provision of Consultancy through Advice and Guidance 
 
19. The Team provides advice and guidance to management on governance, risk 

and control. In particular, it may engage with the City’s Corporate and 
Departmental change projects providing expert independent and objective advice 
on the design of internal controls. The extent and nature of this involvement is 
controlled, so that the independence of future Internal Audit assurance work is 
not compromised. The extent of Internal Audit advice and guidance is specified 
within the forward audit plans of the section, which are agreed annually by the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee. Any significant variations to this activity 
will be reported to the Audit and Risk Management Committee for agreement. 

 
Provision of Assurance to outside Bodies 
 
20. The City of London Corporation Internal Audit function provides Internal Audit 

services under a service level agreement to London Councils and the Museum of 
London. Both these organisations utilise other City of London Corporation 
services in addition to the Internal Audit function (e.g. payroll). As part of 
providing an efficient Internal Audit service to these bodies, Internal Audit may 
report on the outcomes of audit work on City of London Corporate systems 
utilised by those outside bodies, once findings and outcomes have been agreed 
with the relevant Chief Officer. In addition, Internal Audit will occasionally provide 
assurance to Central Government on the appropriate use of ring-fenced grants or 
performance returns where required by grant conditions. 

 
Resourcing 
 
21. The Internal Audit resource requirement is met through a combination of directly 

employed staff and a flexible co-sourcing arrangement with a third-party provider.  
The co-sourcing arrangement enables the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
to draw in more specialist skills and experience and to vary the overall level of 
Internal Audit resource to meet requirements within each year, subject to 
budgetary constraints. 

 
Non-Audit Areas: 
 
22. The Internal Audit Section is also responsible for the following non-audit areas: 
 

Risk Management - Providing risk management support to the City of London by 
promoting the consistent use of risk management and ownership of risk at all 
levels within the City. This will be achieved through the development and review 
of the risk management framework, including facilitation of the City of London 
Corporate Risk Register. 
 
Fraud and Corruption - Promoting fraud awareness and maintaining an 
effective anti-fraud and corruption function, acting as a central function for the 

Page 23



investigation of irregularities and, where criminal investigation is considered 
appropriate, to liaise directly with the Police and advise departments on such 
matters. The Section plays a specific anti-fraud and investigation role in relation 
to Housing Tenancy Fraud and the investigation of serious whistleblowing 
concerns raised through the City of London Whistleblowing policy. 

 
23. Where the Head of Audit and Risk Management has non-audit responsibilities, 

independent assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of these 
arrangements will be provided to senior management and the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee through periodic external assessment. The findings 
from these assessments will be reported independently of the Head of Audit and 
Risk Management to the Chamberlain initially prior to reporting to Committee. 
 

 
Due Professional Care 
 

 
 

 
 
Approved by the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 31 March 2020. Due for 
revision and annual approval March 2021. 

Page 24



Draft Report to the Audit and Risk Management Committee

BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES
Audit Planning: year ended 31 March 2021

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7a



CONTENTS

1 Introduction 3

Welcome 3

2 Executive summary 4

Scope and materiality 4

Audit strategy 5

Audit risk overview 6

Independence and fees 7

3 Audit scope and objectives 8

Overview 8

Audit timeline 9

4 Audit risks 10

Overview 10

Management override of controls 11

Fraud in income recognition 12

Fraud in Income recognition (continued) 13

Fraud in Income recognition (continued) 14

Investment Property Valuations 15

Financial Investment Valuations 16

Completeness of Grant Commitments 17

Going concern 18

Accounting estimates 19

Other matters requiring further discussion 20

Other matters requiring further discussion 2 21

Other matters requiring further discussion 3 22

IT general controls 23

5 Financial reporting 24

New Accounting Standards, Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 
24

New Accounting Standards, Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 
25

Coronavirus and financial reporting impacts 26

6 Independence 27

Independence 27

7 Appendices contents 28

P
age 26



3 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We have pleasure in presenting our Draft Audit Planning Report to the Audit 

and Risk Management Committee. This report forms a key part of our 

communication strategy with you, a strategy which is designed to promote 

effective two way communication throughout the audit process with those 

charged with governance. 

It summarises the planned audit strategy for the year ending 31 March 2021, 

comprising materiality; key audit risks and the planned approach to these; 

together with timetable and the BDO team. 

The planned audit strategy has been discussed with Management to ensure 

that it incorporates developments in the business during the year under 

review, the results for the year to date and other required scope changes.

This report contains matters which should properly be considered by the 

Board as a whole. We expect that the Audit and Risk Management Committee 

will refer such matters to the Board, together with any recommendations, as 

it considers appropriate.

We look forward to discussing this plan with you at the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee meeting on 23 March 2021 and to receiving your 

input on the scope and approach.

In the meantime if you would like to discuss any aspects in advance of the 

meeting please contact one of the team. 

Fiona Condron

4 March 2021

WELCOMEINTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Those Charged with Governance and should not be shown to any other person without our express 

permission in writing. In preparing this report we do not accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person. For more information on our respective responsibilities please see 

the appendices.

Fiona Condron

Partner

t: +44(0)1293 591 102

m: +44(0)7979 706 565

e: fiona.condron@bdo.co.uk

Peter Lewis

Senior Audit Manager

t: +44(0)1293 848 969

m: +44(0)7800 682 390

E: peter.lewis@bdo.co.uk

James Hay

Audit Manager

t: +44(0)207 893 2934

m: +44(0)7855 517 028

E: james.hay@bdo.co.uk

James Badman

Audit Assistant Manager

t: +44 (0) 20 7893 3360

m: +44 (0) 7583 021 177

e: james.badman@bdo.co.uk

CONTENTS

Introduction

Welcome

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 27



4 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

This summary provides an overview of the key audit matters that we believe 

are important to the Audit and Risk Management Committee in reviewing the 

planned audit strategy for the Group for the year ending 31 March 2021. 

It is also intended to promote effective communication and discussion and to 

ensure that the audit strategy appropriately incorporates input from those 

charged with governance. 

Audit scope

Our approach is designed to ensure we obtain the requisite level of 

assurance in accordance with applicable laws and appropriate standards.

Draft Materiality

In line with prior year the planning materiality threshold has been based on 

2% of total assets (‘Financial Statement Materiality’). Given the relative 

significance of the assets held by Bridge House Estates, materiality has been 

set at 2% of gross assets.

We have also assigned a specific materiality of 5% of total income (£2.3m) to 

non-investment related items in the Statement of Financial Activities as we 

consider this to be an area of key focus for the users of the accounts.

Although materiality is the judgement of the audit partner, the Audit and 

Risk Management Committee is obliged to satisfy themselves that the 

materiality chosen is appropriate for the scope of the audit.

Draft planning materiality has been calculated on prior year audited 

accounts and will be updated following the completion of our risk 

assessment and other planning procedures. We will communicate any 

changes to the committee. Final materiality will be updated upon receipt of 

the draft financial statements for 31 March 2021.

SCOPE AND MATERIALITY
Executive summary

2021 

MATERIALITY

£32.5m

CLEARLY 

TRIVIAL

£650k

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risk overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 28



5 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

AUDIT STRATEGY
Executive summary

Our Audit Strategy is predicated on a risk based approach, so that audit work 

is focused on the areas of the financial statements where the risk of material 

misstatement is assessed to be higher. 

We are in the process of discussing the changes to the business, systems and 

controls in the year with Management and obtaining their own view of 

potential audit risk in order to update our understanding of the Group’s and 

Trusts activities and to determine which risks impact on the numbers and 

disclosures in the financial statements. We will continue to update this 

assessment throughout the audit.

The table on the next page summarises our planned approach to audit risks 

identified. 

There has been no significant change to audit risks identified, their 

classification or the planned approach as compared to the prior year.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risk overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 29



6 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

AUDIT RISK OVERVIEW
Executive summary

Risk identified Risk rating Fraud risk present Testing approach

Impact of significant judgements 

and estimates

Management Override of Controls Significant Yes Substantive High

Fraud in income recognition Significant Yes Substantive High

Investment Property Valuations Significant No Substantive High

Investment Valuations Normal No Substantive Medium

Completeness of Grant Commitments Normal No Substantive Low

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risk overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 30



7 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

INDEPENDENCE AND FEES
Executive summary

Independence

We confirm that the firm complies with the Financial Reporting Council’s 

Ethical Standard for Auditors and, in our professional judgement, is 

independent and objective within the meaning of those Standards. 

Fees

2021

£’000

2020

£’000

Bridge House Estates 1 78 70

Additional audit fee: overruns 2 - 14

Additional audit fee: Covid related costs 3 12 -

Total audit fees 90 84

Total non-audit services - -

Total proposed fees 90 84

Fee variances 

1 This reflects an inflationary increase in addition to the risk assessment and 

increased estimates work linked to the revised Auditing Standards.

22019/20 overruns

These have now been agreed with Management in conjunction with the 

overruns for City’s Cash and the Sundry Trusts although the allocation of 

costs between funds is yet to be finalised.

3Covid related costs

This represents an estimate of the additional resource time and costs 

necessary when audits are undertaken remotely.  The 15% is at the lowest 

end of the 15-20% range experienced by BDO and the other audit firms. If we 

are able to undertake some key work on site, the time reflected here should 

reduce and the fee level decrease accordingly. Management has agreed to 

ring fence this element of our proposal to review at an appropriate time 

taking into account our actual experience of working remotely and/or being 

able to access relevant staff if working on site at Guildhall.

Amendments to the proposed fees 

If we need to propose any amendments to the fees during the course of the 

audit, where our assessment of risk and complexity are significantly 

different from those reflected in the proposed fee or where we are required 

to carry out work in exercising our duties, we will first discuss this with 

Management and then discuss this with the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee. 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risk overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 31



8 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Key components of our audit 

objectives and strategy for the 

Group are highlighted and 

explained on the following pages. 

Audit planning is a collaborative 

and continuous process and our 

audit strategy, as reflected here, 

will be reviewed and updated as 

our audit progresses. 

We will communicate any 

significant changes to our audit 

strategy, should the need for such 

change arise. 

Audit scope and objectives

AUDIT SCOPE AND 

OBJECTIVES
OVERVIEW

Reporting Objectives

Auditing 

standards

We will perform our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing UK (ISAs (UK)).

Financial 

statements

We will express an opinion on the Charity financial statements, prepared in accordance with UK

GAAP and applicable law including the Charities Act 2011.

Trustee’s Annual 

report

In addition to our objectives regarding the financial statements, we will also:

• Read and consider the ‘other information’ contained in the Annual Report such as the 

additional narrative reports . We will consider whether there is a material inconsistency 

between the other information and the financial statements or other information and our 

knowledge obtained during the audit.

• For statutory other information such as the Trustee’s Report, we will form an opinion on 

whether the information given in the other information is consistent with the financial 

statements and our knowledge obtained in the audit and whether the reports have been 

prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Audit report –

going concern

• We will report our conclusion on whether management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting is appropriate and will either report our conclusion that there is no material 

uncertainty related to going concern or draw attention to any material uncertainty identified 

by the Trustee and disclosed in the financial statements.

Report to the 

Audit and Risk

Management 

Committee

Prior to the approval of the financial statements, we will discuss our significant findings with the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee. We will highlight key accounting and audit issues as well 

as internal control findings and any other significant matters arising from the audit.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 32



9 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Timing Event Key objective and outcome

12 March 2021
Audit Planning meeting with 

Financial Management
To discuss developments during the year and our audit approach.

TBC* Audit planning and interim work

Documentation of systems and assess the design and implementation of controls. Carry out 

preliminary analytical review using the latest management accounts. Carry out any interim 

testing as agreed with management.

23 March 2021
Audit and Risk Management 

Committee meeting
Presentation and discussion of our proposed audit plan.

March 2021
Meetings with CoL Surveyors and 

External Valuers

Attendance at meetings with the internal CoL Surveyors team and external valuers to discuss 

investment property valuations for 31 March 2021.

25 June 2021

Receipt of draft financial 

statements, Trustee’s Annual Report 

and audit deliverables.

Carry out preliminary analytical review, off-site testing and final planning.

[28 June 2021] Final audit fieldwork
Testing of year-end balances and transactions. This will include the clearance of routine 

accounting and audit points and preparation of a draft management letter.

[16 July 2021]
Audit Clearance meeting with 

management

Review draft financial statements for all entities. Discuss and agree any adjustments. Review 

draft management letter.

[28 July 2021] Audit Completion report date Finalise and approve auditors’ report. 

[2 August 2021] Audit Panel review Audit Panel to review audit files and report back to BDO and CoL.

TBC*
Audit and Risk Management 

Committee meeting

Presentation of our management letter.  This will address key issues arising from the audit and 

include qualitative matters as well as the appropriateness of significant accounting policies and 

estimates, noting any changes therein.

TBC* BHE Board Meeting Formal approval of the financial statements and the letter of representation.

An overview of the key dates

AUDIT TIMELINE

*Please note we are awaiting management at CoL to provide proposed dates for the planning and interim visit, the A&RMC and BHE Board Meeting

The timetable below includes dates which have been proposed by management. We are currently unable to confirm our commitment to this timetable 

as we require visibility of the overall timetable for each individual Fund and how these interact with each other. Since our ability to complete the 

audit of any individual Fund is subject to the satisfactory completion of a number of areas of cross working (including, but not limited to, IT audit, 

payroll, financial investments, cross charges and pensions), our ability to meet this timetable can only be agreed in conjunction with the timetables 

for all other Funds.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 33



10 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We have assessed the following as audit risks. These are matters assessed as most likely to cause a material misstatement in the financial statements and 

include those that will have the greatest effect on audit strategy, the allocation of audit resources and the amount of audit focus by the engagement team.

AUDIT RISKS OVERVIEW

Description of risk Significant risk Normal risk Overview of risk

1. Management override of controls ISA (UK) 240 notes that Management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 

because of their ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare 

fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to 

be operating effectively.

2. Fraud in income recognition ISA (UK) 240 presumes that income recognition presents a fraud risk.

3. Investment Property Valuations There is a risk over the valuation of investment properties where valuations are 

based on significant assumptions.

4. Financial investment Valuations There is a risk that financial investment valuations may not be correctly 

reported at year end.

5. Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

The recognition of grant commitments is an audit risk due to the existence of 

multi-year grants which can, under certain circumstances, be cancelled or 

refunded in future periods.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 34



11 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

International Standards on Auditing (UK) 240 sets out the 

auditor’s responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of 

financial statements and requires us to presume that the 

risk of management override of controls is present and 

significant in all entities. 

Our understanding is that the most susceptible areas of 

the accounting records, where management override 

could take place, are the posting of journals and the 

judgements involved in accounting estimates within the 

financial statements. 

Accounting estimates reviewed in previous years have 

been appropriate in terms of their thought process and 

calculation, however we will review accounting estimates 

and judgement to ensure they remain appropriate. 

The key areas of estimate and judgement identified by 

management are:

• The assumptions used in the calculation of, and the 

disclosures in relation to the pension scheme

• The assumptions used in the valuation of investments

• The allocation of costs between Funds/entities

• The assumptions used in the valuation of investment 

properties

• The useful life of assets 

• Management’s assessment of impairments 

MANAGEMENT OVERRIDE OF CONTROLS

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• A review and verification of large and unusual 

journal entries made in the year, agreeing the 

journals to supporting documentation. We will 

determine key risk characteristics to filter the 

population of journals. We will use our IT team to 

assist with the journal extraction;

• A review of estimates and judgements applied by 

Management in the financial statements to assess 

their appropriateness and the existence of any 

systematic bias; and

• A review of unadjusted audit differences for 

indications of bias or deliberate misstatement.

ISA (UK) 240 notes that 

Management is in a 

unique position to 

perpetrate fraud.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 35



12 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Under International Standard on Auditing 240 “The

Auditor’s responsibility to consider fraud in an audit of

financial statements” there is a presumption that income

recognition presents a fraud risk.

For Bridge House Estates, we consider there to be a 

significant risk in respect of the completeness 

of investment property income, which accounts for 

approximately 75% of total income, due to the cut-off risk 

around the year end.

The income streams of the Bridge House Estates and their 

forecast for the year to March 2021 percentage of total 

income are as follows:

– Voluntary Income – 31%

– Charitable Activities (Tourism) – 4%

– Investment Property – 58%

– Financial Investments – 5%

– Other – 2%

Source: March 2021 latest forecast as at Feb 2021

FRAUD IN INCOME RECOGNITION

ISA (UK) 240 presumes 

that income 

recognition presents a 

fraud risk

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• We carry out audit procedures to gain an 

understanding of the Charity’s internal control 

environment for the significant income streams, 

including how this operates to prevent loss of 

income and ensure that income is recognised in the 

correct accounting period.

• We evaluate the accounting policies for income 

recognition to ensure current practice is in 

accordance with the stated policy and, if 

applicable, is line with the detailed guidance in the 

Charities SORP;

• We perform cut-off testing (including a review of 

amounts being deferred to future years) to ensure 

that a sample of income recognised either side of 

year-end has been correctly treated. 

• See the pages that follow for more detail on the 

identified risks and audit testing response for each 

income stream. 

• All other material income streams, such as, 

investment property income, tourism income and 

investment income will be audited substantively. 

We will perform cut-off testing, completeness and 

valuation testing to ensure that income has been 

recorded in the correct period and accurately 

valued. We will also review material receipts to the 

date of sign off to ensure income is correctly 

recorded in the correct period.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 36



13 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Investment Property Income

Investment property income is the primary revenue 

stream for Bridge House Estates, comprising primarily of 

rental, service charge and insurance income generated 

from the extensive investment property portfolio.

A significant risk is deemed to lie over the completeness 

of this revenue stream, primarily over cut-off at year-end 

as income is usually invoiced quarterly and therefore 

requiring a partial deferral.

Charitable Activities (Tourism) Income

Tourism income consists primarily of admissions and event 

income from Tower Bridge. The primary risk over this 

revenue stream lies over completeness, both in regards to 

income received during the year due to the volume of 

cash handled, and cut-off over year-end. Given the level 

of activity in the year and this stream’s nature of being a 

high volume of low value transactions, we deem there to 

be a normal risk over this balance rather than significant.

We understand that Tower Bridge has been closed or open 

with restrictions on capacity for the full year to date, 

therefore we will review this revenue stream at year-end 

to determine if this revenue stream is material for 

testing.

FRAUD IN INCOME RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

ISA (UK) 240 presumes 

that income 

recognition presents a 

fraud risk

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

Planned audit approach 

Investment Property Income

We will:

• Agree a sample of investment property income to 

invoice, supporting documentation (such as tenancy 

agreement) and receipt to bank. 

• Reconcile the total income expected per the 

tenancy schedule to the income posted in the 

nominal ledger, agreeing reconciling items as 

appropriate.

• Review rent concessions granted during the Covid-

19 pandemic and consider the impact of this in 

relation to amendments to FRS102 in October 2020 –

Covid-19 related rent concessions

• Review income posted either side of year-end to 

ensure it is recognised in the correct period.

Charitable Activities (Tourism) Income

If material, we will:

• Test a sample of days’ admissions income posted in 

the year, tracing income recognised back to cashing 

up sheets and bank.

• Agree events income to statements from the third 

party hospitality manager; Seasoned Events.

• Agree a sample of other tourism  income to support.

• Review the suspense account on the trial balance to 

ensure it has been cleared at year-end.

• Review income posted either side of year-end to 

ensure it is recognised in the correct period.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 37



14 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Financial investment income

Specific risk over cut off and a risk that 

investment income is misstated either due to 

being offset against investment manager fees 

or reinvested and included within the 

movement on valuation.

FRAUD IN INCOME RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

ISA (UK) 240 presumes 

that income 

recognition presents a 

fraud risk

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

Planned audit approach 

Financial investment income

We will:

• Test a sample of investment income to external information;

• Review investment manager reports to ensure that the correct 

income accrual has been recognised in the accounts; and

• Review the arrangements in place with the fund manager to 

ensure the appropriate recognition of investment management 

fees.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 38



15 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Bridge House Estates holds a portfolio of 76 primarily 

office/retail investment properties, which are reported at 

fair value at the balance sheet date. As at 31 March 2020 

the value of this properties was £854.9m.

The Corporation has appointed two valuers relevant to 

Bridge House Estates, who perform a year-end valuation 

based on data provided by the Surveyors Team at the 

Corporation.

Due to the significant value of the investment properties 

and the high degree of estimation uncertainty, there is a 

risk over the valuation of these assets where valuations 

are based on assumptions, or where updated valuations 

have not been provided at the year-end. 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY VALUATIONS

Planned audit approach

As part of our audit work, we will perform procedures 

including the following:

• Assess the qualifications and competence of the 

valuers used

• Review the instructions provided to the valuers and 

reviewed the valuers; skills to determine whether 

we can rely on management’s expert

• Verify a sample of data provided to the valuers

(such as rental income) to use as inputs within the 

valuation process

• Confirm that the basis of valuation for each asset is 

appropriate based on their usage

• Review assumptions used by the valuers and 

movements in values relative to market indices, and 

challenged valuations lying outside our expectations 

with the corresponding valuer. 

• Consult extensively with both our Real Estate and 

BDO Valuation teams regarding the reasonableness 

of the assumptions and benchmarks used for 

specific properties where a higher degree of 

judgement has been applied (for example more 

unique properties or developments 

• Be involved in meetings with the Surveyors Team 

and Valuers during the valuation process 

• Compare movements in the valuation of assets year-

on-year and investigated unusual movements. 

There is a risk over the 

valuation of investment 

properties where 

valuations are based on 

significant assumptions.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 39



16 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

The financial investment portfolio within Bridge House 

Estates includes unquoted infrastructure, private equity 

holdings and pooled investment vehicle (held through 

unit trust). The unquoted infrastructure funds and private 

equity funds are valued by the General Partner or fund 

manager using valuations obtained from the underlying 

partnerships and investments. The valuation of other 

funds are provided by individual fund managers and 

reported on a monthly basis.

Valuations for private equity are provided at dates that 

are not coterminous with the year end for Bridge House 

Estates and need to be updated to reflect cash 

transactions (additional contributions or distributions 

received) up to 31 March. There is a risk that private 

equity investments valuations may not be appropriately 

adjusted to include additional contributions or 

distributions at the year end or movements in market 

value.

There is a risk that investments may not be appropriately 

valued and correctly recorded in the financial statements

FINANCIAL INVESTMENT VALUATIONS

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• For a sample of unquoted infrastructure and private 

equity investments, we obtain direct confirmation 

of investment valuations from the General Partner 

or fund manager and obtain copies, where 

applicable, of the audited report on internal 

controls / audited financial statements of the 

underlying partnerships (and member 

allocations). We also consider if appropriate 

adjustments are made to the valuations in respect 

of additional contributions to, and distributions 

from, the funds.  We will also consider if the 

valuations used by management take account of the 

March 2021 quarterly valuation statements;

• For a sample of pooled investments, we obtain 

direct confirmation of investment valuations from 

the fund managers and agreed independent 

valuations, where available, provided by the global 

custodian;

• For the investments sampled, we obtain 

independent assurance reports over the controls 

operated by both the fund managers and custodian. 

This review will not only consider the overall audit 

opinion given on the control environment, but also 

the specific tests carried out which provide 

assurance over the valuations and existence of the 

investments; and

• We agree the allocation of amounts for each fund 

where there is pooling of investments across the 

funds.

There is a risk that 

financial investment 

valuations may not be 

correctly reported at 

year end.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 40



17 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

We understand that, in response to the Covid-19 

pandemic, Bridge House Estates, (City Bridge Trust) has 

significantly increased the level of grant making activities 

in 20/21.

The recognition of grant commitments is an audit risk due 

to the existence of multi-year grants which can, under 

certain circumstances, be cancelled or refunded in future 

periods.

COMPLETENESS OF GRANT COMMITMENTS

Planned audit approach 

We will:

• Review the systems and procedures in place for 

recording and monitoring grant commitments; 

• Test the controls in place over the approval of 

grants and payment of funds.

• Review a sample of grant agreements and the 

standard grant agreement wording, to ensure that a 

liability existed at year end and that the total grant 

expenditure was correctly recognised; 

• We will review the overall grant liability 

calculation; 

• We will agree a sample of grant commitments to 

the underlying agreements and, where appropriate, 

payments made and ensure that expenditure has 

been appropriately classified between restricted 

and unrestricted funds; and

• We will consider the completeness of grant 

expenditure through review of the board minutes.

The recognition of 

grant commitments is 

an audit risk due to the 

existence of multi-year 

grants which can, 

under certain 

circumstances, be 

cancelled or refunded 

in future periods.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 41



18 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Trustee’s responsibilities with respect to Going Concern

It is the Trustee’s responsibility to make an assessment of 

the Charity’s ability to continue as a Going Concern to 

support the basis of preparation for the financial 

statements. This is a requirement of both Companies Act 

2006 and accounting standards. 

This assessment should be supported by detailed cash flow 

forecasts with clear details of the key underlying 

assumptions and the basis for those assumptions, 

consideration of available finance and covenant 

compliance throughout the forecast period, and a 

consideration of the forecast’s sensitivity to reasonably 

possible variations in those assumptions along with any 

other relevant factors.

The going concern assessment should cover a minimum of 

12 months from the date of the trustee’s approval of the 

financial statements. However, consideration should also 

be given to any major events or circumstances that may 

fall outside this period. 

The assessment should also identify any material 

uncertainties relating to the charity’s ability to continue 

as a going concern.

GOING CONCERN

Audit responsibilities

Our responsibilities in respect of going concern are:

a. To obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 

regarding, and conclude on, i) whether a material 

uncertainty related to going concern exists; and ii) 

the appropriateness of management's use of the 

going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements; and

b. To report in accordance with ISA (UK) 570

We will obtain an understanding of the business model, 

objectives, strategies and related business risk, the 

measurement and review of the entity’s financial 

performance including forecasting and budgeting 

processes and the entity’s risk assessment process. We 

will evaluate:

a. The Trustee’s method including the relevance and 

reliability of underlying data used to make the 

assessment, whether assumptions and changes to 

assumptions from prior years are appropriate and 

consistent with each other. 

b. The Trustee’s plans for future actions in relation to 

the going concern assessment including whether 

such plans are feasible in the circumstances. 

c. The adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures in 

the financial statements regarding the going 

concern assessment and any material uncertainties 

that may exist. 

The Trustee is required 

to make an assessment 

of the Charity’s ability 

to continue as a going 

concern.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 42



19 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We will need to obtain an understanding of how you 

control your estimation process including not only the 

design and implementation of the process, but also the 

policies and procedures you put in place to satisfy 

yourself that each step in the process is properly applied, 

and that the resulting accounting estimates are 

reasonable.

For significant accounting estimates, particularly those 

that are complex or where there is a high degree of 

estimation uncertainty we will also make enquiries about 

how you:

• make those responsible for deriving or changing your 

accounting estimates aware of relevant significant 

transactions, conditions or events

• review the outcome(s) of previous accounting 

estimates and respond to the results of that review

• identify and comply with the relevant requirements in 

the applicable financial reporting framework regarding 

your accounting estimates and related disclosures 

including how they are affected by complexity and 

your judgment

• account for regulatory factors relevant to the entity's 

accounting estimates, including, when applicable, 

regulatory frameworks related to prudential 

supervision

• identify the need for, and apply, specialized skills or 

knowledge related to accounting estimates, including 

with respect to the use of a management's expert 

• identify and address risks related to accounting 

estimates through your risk assessment process

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

• identify relevant methods (including models). 

Assumptions and data and the need for changes in 

them and from those identified, select those to 

apply

• address the degree of estimation uncertainty in 

selecting your final point estimates 

• describe in your financial statements matters 

related to your process for deriving your accounting 

estimates, and matters related to the degrees of 

estimation uncertainty underlying your accounting 

estimates 

• ensure there is oversight and governance in place 

over management's financial reporting process 

relevant to accounting estimates.

Under ISA (UK) 540 (revised) our audit approach will 

involve a more granular risk assessment relating to 

each significant estimate and separate consideration of 

the methods (or models) applied in calculating the 

estimate, the nature, source and reliability of data 

used and the significance, consistency and 

appropriateness of assumptions made.

We will also request written representations from you 

regarding the reasonableness of the methods, 

significant assumptions and the data used in 

determining the monetary amounts of accounting 

estimates, including the related disclosures, in 

accordance with the applicable financial reporting 

framework.

Revision to ISA (UK) 

540 means that we 

need to update our 

approach the audit of 

accounting estimates  -

including  confirmation 

and documentation of 

our understanding of 

the charity’s estimation 

process. 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 43



20 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Fraud

Whilst the Trustee has ultimate responsibility for prevention and detection 

of fraud, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, including those arising as a 

result of fraud. Our audit approach includes the consideration of fraud 

throughout the audit and includes making enquiries of Management and 

those charged with governance.

We have not been made aware of any actual alleged or suspected incidences 

of fraud. We request confirmation from the Committee on fraud and a 

discussion on the controls and processes in place to ensure timely 

identification and action.

Internal audit

We plan to review the audit work of the Charity’s internal audit function but  

we do not anticipate placing reliance on their work.

Accounting policies

We will report to you on significant qualitative aspects of your chosen 

accounting policies. We will consider the consistency and application of the 

policies and we will report to you where accounting policies are inconsistent 

with UK GAAP under the circumstances.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

We will report to you on significant accounting estimates and judgements. 

We will seek to understand and perform audit testing procedures on 

accounting estimates and judgements including consideration of the outcome 

of historical judgements and estimates. We will report to you our 

consideration of whether Management estimates and judgements are within 

an acceptable range.

Laws and regulations

We will consider compliance with laws and regulations. The most significant 

of these for your business includes Charities Act, Charities SORP (FRS 102) 

Corporate and VAT legislation, Employment Taxes, Health Safety and the 

Bribery Act 2010. We will make enquiries of Management and review 

correspondence with the relevant authorities. 

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 44



21 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Related parties

Whilst you are responsible for the completeness of the disclosure of related 

party transactions in the financial statements, we are also required to 

consider related party transactions in the context of fraud as they may 

present greater risk for Management override or concealment of fraud. Our 

audit approach includes the consideration of related party transactions 

throughout the audit including making enquiries of Management and the 

Board.  We will also consider the adequacy of the procedures you have in 

place to identify such transactions and assess completeness and accuracy 

inline with the requirements.

Under Charities SORP (FRS 102), the following information must be provided 

for each individual trustee who received remuneration or other benefits in 

the reporting period:

• the legal authority under which the payment was made (for example a 

provision in the governing document of the charity, an Order of the 

Court, or the charity regulator for the jurisdiction(s) of registration);

• the name of the remunerated trustee;

• details of why the remuneration or other employment benefits were paid;

• the amount of remuneration paid;

• the amount of any pension contributions paid by the charity for the 

reporting period; and

• the amount of any other benefit, for example any termination benefits, 

private health cover or the provision of a vehicle.

The definition of related party also includes ‘an officer, agent or member of 

key management personnel of the charity’ and ‘de facto’ trustees. 

All charities must report the total amount of employee benefits received by 

trustees and its key management personnel for their services to the charity.

The charity is also required to maintain a register of interests and hospitality 

for the Members of the City of London Corporation and Senior Management 

Team.

Related parties (cont)

We note from the prior year audit that historically the Charity has opted to 

disclose relationships which, technically, do not constitute related party 

relationships under FRS 102 and the Charity SORP. To simplify the disclosures 

and to allow more focus on any transactions which are actual related party 

transactions we would encourage Management of Bridge House Estates to 

relook at this area again for the March 2021 audit.

Serious incident reports

We have requested copies of any serious incident reports filed during the 

year to be available for review during our interim audit. We will discuss with 

management any material impact (such as provisions) on the financial 

statements.

We will obtain an update on any further reports made during our final audit.

Financial statement disclosures

We will report to you on the sufficiency and content of your financial 

statement disclosures. 

Contingencies

We request input from the Audit and Risk Management Committee on recent 

claims.

Any other matters

We will report to you on any other matters relevant to the overseeing of the 

financial reporting process. Where applicable this includes why we consider 

a significant accounting practice that is acceptable under the financial 

reporting framework not to be the most appropriate.

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION 2

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 45



22 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We are required to include in our auditor’s report an explanation of the 

extent to which the audit is considered capable of detecting irregularities 

(non compliance with laws and regulations), including fraud.

Our audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements as whole a free from material misstatement whether 

due to fraud or error. We design audit procedures to respond to the risk of 

material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising that the risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk 

of not detecting one resulting from error and that irregularities that result 

from fraud might be inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities 

that result from error.

Our audit work will focus on laws and regulations that could give rise to a 

material misstatement in the charity financial statements and may include, 

where appropriate: 

• obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring 

compliance with laws and regulations;

• enquiries of management, those charged with governance and the 

entity’s legal advisers;

• agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting 

documentation;

• review of minutes of board meetings throughout the year and of 

correspondence with the regulators; and

• written representations. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and 

the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the 

events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely 

we would become aware of it.

Irregularities including fraud

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION 3

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 46



23 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

IT General Controls (ITGCs) are the policies and procedures that relate to 

many IT applications and support the effective functioning of application 

controls by helping to ensure the continued proper operation of information 

systems. They commonly include controls over data center and network 

operations; system software acquisition, change and maintenance; access 

security; and application system acquisition, development, and 

maintenance.

ITGCs are an important component in systems of internal control, and 

sometimes have a direct impact on the reliability of other controls. 

IT assurance is embedded in our audit strategy to ensure the IT systems 

provide a suitable platform for the control environment and is undertaken in 

conjunction with our IT Assurance team. Our testing strategy includes a 

tailored range of data analytics, system configuration and IT environment 

testing.

We have engaged IT audit specialists with BDO who commenced work to 

update our knowledge of the IT systems and controls that related to audit 

areas through discussions with key team members. At this time, no audit 

risks arising from the IT environment have been identified from our work to 

date.

Performance of data analytics

We are required to perform specific audit procedures that are a response to 

the risks of fraud and management override of controls including the testing 

of journal entries throughout the year. Our audit strategy is to obtain a full 

extract of all nominal ledger activity, reconcile to the trial balance 

movements and then to perform computer assisted auditing procedures using 

our BDO Advantage Analytics suite to analyse and assess journal activity. 

In addition to testing of manual adjustments, we will also use this download 

to conduct a review of all transactions posted to the general ledger relating 

to other cycles. We will establish posting patterns, duplicates, occurrence of 

key words, in-depth analysis of manual entries, unusual accounting 

combinations contained within transactions and notable items detected by 

our artificial intelligence routines. We will also review users active within 

the general ledger, and their posting trends, to evaluate whether they are 

only posting to areas relevant to their roles.

IT GENERAL CONTROLS

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Financial Investment Valuations

Completeness of Grant 

Commitments

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Financial reporting

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 47



24 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AUDITING STANDARDS AND OTHER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING DEVELOPMENTS 

FINANCIAL REPORTING

We would like to draw to your attention the following summary of key changes to standards, regulations and other financing reporting developments, their 

effective dates and an indication, based on preliminary discussions with management and our sector understanding, of their possible effect on the annual 

report.

New Accounting Standards, Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 

Page 

ref Expected effect

Effective for periods 

beginning on or after 

1 January

None Low Medium High 2019 2020

Auditing standard – audit of accounting estimates

Increased emphasis on understanding management’s 

processes, systems and controls estimation uncertainty  and 

financial statement disclosures 

21

 

Auditing standard – going concern

Increased emphasis on evaluation of management's 

assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going 

concern

20

 

Auditing standard - audit reports

New audit report format with updated conclusion on going 

concern and reference to irregularities, including fraud 

-

 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

New Accounting Standards, 

Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 

New Accounting Standards, 

Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 48



25 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AUDITING STANDARDS AND OTHER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING DEVELOPMENTS 

Annual Reports - Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) 

We note that whilst the following information is not a requirement for Bridge 

House Estates, SECR is still regarded as best practice for large charities. 

Management has already indicated that whilst the aim of BHE is to support 

these disclosures in the future, at present they are unable to provide these 

solely for BHE due to the nature of reporting within the Corporation. 

Presenting current figures that cover all activities undertaken by the Trustee 

would therefore be misleading in the context of BHE. 

For periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, large charitable companies 

will need to provide new or enhanced disclosures on greenhouse gas 

emissions and energy consumption. 

These disclosure requirements will be considered “statutory other 

information” for the purposes of the audit.

The final Statutory Instrument introducing the changes (SI 2018/1155) is 

available on legislation.gov.uk. In addition, the Department for 

Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) has issued Environmental 

Reporting Guidelines to assist companies preparing for the 

new requirements.

Broadly, companies within the scope of these new rules that consume more 

than 40,000 kWh of energy annually must:

• Disclose the annual quantity of emissions, in tonnes of carbon dioxide 

equivalents, for which it is directly or indirectly responsible, together 

with the annual quantity of energy consumed in kilowatt hours (kWh). In 

all cases, this information need only be in relation to emissions made and 

energy consumed within the UK.
• Describe the calculation methods used in determining the amounts of 

emissions and energy consumption disclosed and provide narrative 

disclosures on any energy efficiency improvement measures undertaken 

in the year.

• Present at least one ratio that expresses the company’s annual 

emissions in relation to a quantifiable factor associated with the 

company’s activities. 
• Comparatives must be provided after the first year of application of 

these new rules.

Companies consuming less than 40,000 kWh of energy need only state 

that fact.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

New Accounting Standards, 

Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 

New Accounting Standards, 

Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 49

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/1155/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791529/Env-reporting-guidance_inc_SECR_31March.pdf


26 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Financial Reporting Implications

Impairment testing 

Models used in impairment testing should be based on forecasts, projections 

and assumptions that were reasonable and supportable at the balance sheet 

date. For 31 March 2021 year ends any impairment calculations will need to 

consider both the disruption that the coronavirus pandemic has caused to 

operations in the current and short term as well as any longer term changes to 

business plans caused by adopting any of the learnings from working in the 

“new normal” during the pandemic. In the context of the BHE we are aware 

that some tenants were granted rental deferrals during the pandemic.

Narrative reporting implications

Principal risks and uncertainties:

In February 2020, the Financial Reporting Council wrote to large corporate 

Audit Committee chairs to remind them that entities should consider whether 

to refer to the possible effects of Coronavirus on their businesses, for example 

in their reporting of principal risks and uncertainties. The FRC highlighted 

that, where mitigating actions can be taken, these should also be reported 

alongside the description of the risk itself. The FRC also note that, given the 

potential for rapid spread of the virus, required disclosures will likely change 

over time as more information about the epidemic arises. As a result, entities 

will need to monitor developments and ensure that they are providing up-to-

date and meaningful disclosures when preparing their annual reports. 

CORONAVIRUS AND FINANCIAL REPORTING IMPACTS
The effects on year-end corporate reporting and auditing

Sufficient and appropriate audit evidence:

Personnel may be unable to carry out their roles on site and/or be 

available to meet physically with our audit teams. We note that this may 

be a particular issue around areas relying on paper documentation.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

New Accounting Standards, 

Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 

New Accounting Standards, 

Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 50



27 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We have embedded the requirements of the Standards 

in our methodologies, tools and internal training 

programmes. Our internal procedures require that 

audit engagement partners are made aware of any 

matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on 

the integrity, objectivity or independence of the firm, 

the members of the engagement team or others who 

are in a position to influence the outcome of the 

engagement. This document considers such matters in 

the context of our audit for the year ending 31 March 

2021.

Details of rotation arrangements for key members of 

the audit team and others involved in the engagement 

are set out in the appendices.

Details of other threats and safeguards applied are 

given in the appendices.

We have not identified any other relationships or 

threats that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

objectivity and independence.

We confirm that the firm, the engagement team and 

other partners, directors, senior managers and 

managers conducting the audit comply with relevant 

ethical requirements including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard or the IESBA Code of Ethics as appropriate 

and are independent of the charity.

We also confirm that we have obtained confirmation of 

independence from non BDO auditors and external 

audit experts involved in the audit comply with 

relevant ethical requirements including the FRC’s 

Ethical Standard and are independent of the Charity.

Should you have any comments or queries regarding 

any independence matters we would welcome their 

discussion in more detail.

Under ISAs (UK) and the 

FRC’s Ethical Standard 

we are required, as 

auditors, to confirm 

our independence. 

INDEPENDENCE INDEPENDENCE

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Financial reporting

Independence

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 51



A Trustee’s responsibilities 29

Trustee’s responsibilities 29

Trustee’s responsibilities explained 30

Our responsibilities 31

Communication with you 32

B Independence 33

Partner rotation 33

C Materiality 34

Materiality: Definition and application 34

D Materiality 35

APPENDICES CONTENTS

Materiality: Definition and application  2 35

E Audit Quality 36

Audit quality 36

P
age 52



29 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

The City of London Corporation’s Responsibilities and Reporting

The City of London Corporation, in its role as Trustee of Bridge House 

Estates, is responsible for preparing and filing an Annual Report and financial 

statements which show a true and fair view, comply with the Charities Act 

2011, prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and the Charities SORP.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve Management nor those 

charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the 

financial statements.

Further information regarding these responsibilities will be provided in our 

engagement letters. Our engagement letters are being updated for the year 

ending 31 March 2021 and will be issued in due course.

The Board’s Responsibilities and Reporting

TRUSTEE’S RESPONSIBILITIESTRUSTEE’S 

RESPONSIBILITIES

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Trustee’s responsibilities

Trustee’s responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

Audit Quality

P
age 53



30 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Board’s Responsibilities and Reporting

TRUSTEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES EXPLAINED

Trustee responsibilities What this means

• Maintain adequate accounting records and maintain an appropriate 

system of internal control for the Charity

• Prepare the annual report and the financial statements which give a true 

and fair view and which are prepared in accordance with the Companies 

Act 

• Safeguard the assets of the Charity and take reasonable steps for the 

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Further information regarding these responsibilities will be provided in our 

engagement letters. Our engagement letters are being updated for the year 

ending 31 March 2021 and will be issued in due course.

Having made enquiries of fellow Members of the City of London Corporation 

and the Charity’s auditors, state in the Trustee’s report that:

• So far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 

the Charity’s auditors are unaware

• They have taken all reasonable steps they ought to have taken as 

Members of the City of London Corporation in order to make themselves 

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 

Charity’s auditors are aware of that information.

In addition to answering our queries, this requires proactive behaviour in 

order to make us aware of any relevant information. Relevant information is 

very broad and includes any information needed in connection with our 

report. 

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Trustee’s responsibilities

Trustee’s responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

Audit Quality

P
age 54



31 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Our responsibilities and reporting

We are responsible for performing our audit under International Standards on 

Auditing (UK) to form and express an opinion on your Charity financial 

statements. We report our opinion on the financial statements to the 

members. 

We read and consider the ‘other information’ contained in the Annual Report 

such as the additional narrative reports. We will consider whether there is a 

material inconsistency between the other information and the financial 

statements or other information and our knowledge obtained during the 

audit.

For statutory other information such as the Trustee’s report, we will form an 

opinion on whether the information given in the other information is 

consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained in the 

audit and whether the reports have been prepared in accordance with 

applicable legal requirements.

We are additionally required to include in our report:

• Where we conclude there is no material uncertainty in relation to going 

concern, a statement to that effect

• A conclusion that management’s use of the going concern basis of 

account is appropriate.

• An explanation of the extent to which the audit was capable of detecting 

irregularities, including fraud

What we don’t report

Our audit is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the 

board and cannot be expected to identify all matters that may be of interest 

to you and, as a result, the matters reported may not be the only ones which 

exist. 

Responsibilities and reporting

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Trustee’s responsibilities

Trustee’s responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

Audit Quality

P
age 55



32 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Those Charged with Governance

References in this report to Those Charged With Governance are to the 

Members of the Common Council of the City of London Corporation as a 

whole. For the purposes of our communication with those charged with 

governance you have agreed we will communicate primarily with the Audit 

and Risk Management Committee.

Communication, Meetings and Feedback

We request feedback from you on our planning and completion report to 

promote two way communication throughout the audit process and to ensure 

that all risks are identified and considered; and at completion that the 

results of the audit are appropriately considered. We will meet with 

Management throughout the audit process. We will issue regular updates and 

drive the audit process with clear and timely communication, bringing in the 

right resource and experience to ensure efficient and timely resolution of 

issues.

Planning Report

The Planning Report sets out all planning matters which we want to draw to 

your attention including audit scope, our assessment of audit risks and 

materiality. 

Internal Controls

We will consider internal controls relevant to the preparation of financial 

statements in order to design our audit procedures and complete our work. 

This is not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

internal control. 

Audit Completion Report

At the conclusion of the audit, we will issue an Audit Completion Report to 

communicate to you key audit findings before concluding our audit opinion. 

We will include any significant deficiencies in internal controls which we 

identify as a result of performing audit procedures. We will meet with you to 

discuss the findings and in particular to receive your input on areas of the 

financial statements involving significant estimates and judgements and 

critical accounting policies. 

Once we have discussed the contents of the Audit Completion Report with 

you and having resolved all outstanding matters we will issue a final version 

of the Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH YOU

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Trustee’s responsibilities

Trustee’s responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

Audit Quality

P
age 56



33 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Senior team 

members

Number of years 

involved

Rotation to take place 

before

Fiona Condron

Partner

3 2029

Peter Lewis

Senior Manager

2 N/A

James Hay

Manager

3 N/A

These tables indicate the latest rotation periods normally permitted under 

the independence rules of the FRC’s Ethical Standard. 

In order to safeguard audit quality we will employ a policy of gradual 

rotation covering the team members below as well as other senior members 

of the engagement team to ensure a certain level of continuity from year to 

year. 

Role

Number of years 

involved

Rotation to take place 

before

Engagement Quality 

Control Reviewer

1 2031

Independence - engagement team rotation

Independence - audit quality control

PARTNER ROTATIONINDEPENDENCE

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Trustee’s responsibilities

Trustee’s responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

Audit Quality

P
age 57



34 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

MATERIALITY: DEFINITION AND APPLICATION MATERIALITY

Calculation and determination

We have determined materiality based on professional judgement in the 

context of our knowledge of the Charity, including consideration of factors 

such as industry developments, financial stability and reporting requirements 

for the financial statements.

We determine materiality in order to:

• Assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests

• Calculate sample sizes

• Assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements on the 

financial statements.

Reassessment of materiality

We will reconsider materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, 

we become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to 

make a different determination of planning materiality if we had been 

aware.

Further, when we have performed all our tests and are ready to evaluate the 

results of those tests (including any misstatements we detected) we will 

reconsider whether materiality combined with the nature, timing and extent 

of our auditing procedures, provided a sufficient audit scope.

Definition of materiality under FRS 102 

Information is material – and therefore has relevance – if its omission or 

misstatement, individually or collectively, could influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Concept and definition

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial 

statements and the audit process and applies not only to monetary 

misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to 

appropriate accounting principles and statutory requirements.

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our 

audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. For planning, we 

consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including 

omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that 

are taken on the basis of the financial statements. In order to reduce to an 

appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed 

materiality, we use a lower materiality level, performance materiality, to 

determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below 

these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take 

account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular 

circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the 

financial statements as a whole.

Materiality therefore has qualitative as well as quantitative aspects and an 

item may be considered material, irrespective of its size, if it has an impact 

on (for example):

• Narrative disclosure e.g. accounting policies, going concern

• Compliance with loan covenants

• Instances when greater precision is required (e.g. Trustee/Members 

emoluments and related party transactions).

International Standards on Auditing (UK) also allow the auditor to set a lower 

level of materiality for particular classes of transaction, account balances or 

disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for 

the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 

statements.

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Trustee’s responsibilities

Trustee’s responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

Audit Quality

P
age 58



35 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

MATERIALITY: DEFINITION AND APPLICATION 2MATERIALITY

If we conclude that our audit scope was sufficient, we will use materiality to 

evaluate whether uncorrected misstatements (individually or in aggregate) 

are material.

You should be aware that any misstatements that we identify during our 

audit, both corrected and uncorrected errors, might result in additional 

audit procedures being necessary.

Unadjusted errors

We will communicate to you all uncorrected misstatements identified during 

our audit, other than those which we believe are ‘clearly trivial’.

Clearly trivial is defined as matters which will be of a wholly different 

(smaller) order of magnitude than the materiality thresholds used in the 

audit, and will be matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 

individually or in aggregate.

We will obtain written representations from the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee confirming that in their opinion these uncorrected misstatements 

are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate and that, in the context 

of the financial statements taken as a whole, no adjustments are required.

We will request that you correct all uncorrected misstatements. In particular 

we would strongly recommend correction of errors whose correction would 

affect compliance with loan covenants, management compensation 

agreements, other contractual obligations or governmental regulations. 

Where you choose not to correct all identified misstatements we will request 

a written representation from you setting out your reasons for not doing so 

and confirming that in your view the effects of any uncorrected 

misstatements are immaterial, individually and in aggregate, to the financial 

statements as whole.

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Trustee’s responsibilities

Trustee’s responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

Audit Quality

P
age 59



36 | BDO LLPBridge House Estates audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

AUDIT QUALITYAUDIT QUALITY

BDO’s audit quality cornerstones underpin the firm’s definition of audit 

quality.

BDO is committed to audit quality. It is a standing item on the agenda of the 

Leadership Team, who in conjunction with the Audit Stream Executive, 

monitors the actions required to maintain a high level of audit quality within 

the audit stream and address findings from external and internal inspections. 

We welcome feedback from external bodies and are committed to 

implementing necessary actions to address their findings.

We recognise the importance of continually seeking to improve audit quality 

and enhancing certain areas. Alongside reviews from a number of external 

regulators, the firm undertakes a thorough annual internal Audit Quality 

Assurance Review and as a member firm of BDO International network we 

are also subject to a quality review visit every three years. We have also 

implemented additional quality control review processes for all listed and 

public interest entities. 

More details can be found in our Transparency Report at www.bdo.co.uk

• Audit reports

• Management letter

• Audit Committee Reports

• Top quality financial 

statement.

HIGH QUALITY 

AUDIT OUTPUTS

• How to assess 

– benchmarking

• Where to focus 

– risk-based approach

• How to test – audit strategy

• What to test – materiality and 

scope.

DILIGENT PROFESSIONAL 

JUDGEMENTS

KNOWLEDGEABLE, 

SKILLED PEOPLE

• Knowledge of the business

• Intelligent application 

of auditing standards

• Intelligent application 

of accounting 

standards

• Understanding of 

the control 

environment.

MINDSET

• Scepticism

• Independent

• Focus on the 

shareholder as user

• Robustness and 

moral courage.

AUDIT QUALITY 
CORNERSTONES

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Trustee’s responsibilities

Trustee’s responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

Audit Quality

P
age 60

http://www.bdo.co.uk/


FOR MORE INFORMATION: The matters raised in our report prepared in connection with the audit are those we 

believe should be brought to your attention. They do not purport to be a complete record 

of all matters arising. This report is prepared solely for the use of the company and may 

not be quoted nor copied without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third 

party is accepted.

BDO is an award winning UK member firm of BDO International, the world’s fifth largest 

accountancy network, with more than 1,500 offices in over 160 countries.

BDO LLP is a corporate establishment under the Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000 and 

a UK Member Firm of BDO International. BDO Northern Ireland, a separate partnership, 

operates under a licence agreement. BDO LLP and BDO Northern Ireland are both 

separately authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct 

investment business.

© 2021 BDO LLP. All rights reserved.

www.bdo.co.uk

Fiona Condron

t: 01293 591 102

m: 07583 022 125

e: fiona.condron@bdo.co.uk

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 62



Report to the Audit and Risk Management Committee

CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION – CITY FUND
Audit Planning Report: year ending 31 March 2021

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 7b



CONTENTS

1 Introduction 3

Welcome 3

2 Executive summary 4

Scope and materiality 4

Audit strategy 5

Audit risks overview 6

Independence and fees 7

3 Audit scope and objectives 8

Overview 8

Audit timeline 9

BDO team 10

4 Audit risks 11

Overview 11

Management override of controls 12

Revenue recognition 13

Expenditure cut-off 14

Valuation of non-current assets 15

Valuation of pension liability 16

Non-Domestic Rates appeals provision 17

Use of Resources 18

Going concern 19

Other matters requiring further discussion 20

Other matters requiring further discussion 2 21

Irregularities (including fraud) 22

Accounting estimates 23

IT general controls 24

5 Ethical Standard 25

FRC Ethical Standard (December 2019) 25

6 Independence 26

Independence 26

7 Appendices contents 27

P
age 64



3 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We have pleasure in presenting our Audit Planning Report to the Audit and 

Risk Management Committee of the City of London Corporation (the 

‘Corporation’). This report forms a key part of our communication strategy 

with you, a strategy which is designed to promote effective two way 

communication throughout the audit process with those charged with 

governance. 

It summarises the planned audit strategy for the year ending 31 March 2021 

in respect of our audit of the financial statements and use of resources; 

comprising materiality, key audit risks and the planned approach to these; 

together with timetable and the BDO team. 

The planned audit strategy has been discussed with management to ensure 

that it incorporates developments in the business during the year under 

review, the results for the year to date and other required scope changes.

This report contains matters which should properly be considered by the 

Council as a whole. We expect that the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee will refer such matters to the Corporation, together with any 

recommendations, as it considers appropriate.

We look forward to discussing this plan with you at the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee meeting on 23 March 2021 and to receiving your 

input on the scope and approach.

In the meantime if you would like to discuss any aspects in advance of the 

meeting please contact one of the team. 

David Eagles, Partner

for and on behalf of BDO LLP

14 March 2021

WELCOME

David Eagles, Partner

m: +44(0)7967 203431

e: david.eagles@bdo.co.uk

Kerry Barnes, Senior Manager

t: 020 7893 3837

e: kerry.l.barnes@bdo.co.uk

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared solely for the use of the [Audit Committee] and Those Charged with Governance. In preparing this report we do not accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or 

to any other person. For more information on our respective responsibilities please see the appendices.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Welcome

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

Kerry Lin, Assistant Manager

t: 020 3219 4073

e: kerry.lin@bdo.co.uk

P
age 65



4 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

This summary provides an overview of the key audit matters that we believe are important to the Audit and Risk Management Committee in reviewing the 

planned audit strategy for the Corporation for the year ending 31 March 2021. 

It is also intended to promote effective communication and discussion and to ensure that the audit strategy appropriately incorporates input from those 

charged with governance. 

Audit scope

The scope of the audit is determined by the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice that sets out what local auditors are required to do to fulfil their 

statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. This includes: auditing the financial statements; reviewing the arrangements to 

secure value for money through the economic, efficient and effective use of its resources; and, where appropriate, exercising the auditor’s wider reporting 

powers and duties. The Code of Audit Practice was updated with effect from 1 April 2020 and as a consequence the scope of the  use of resources work has 

changed for the year ending 31 March 2021. More information on this change is included on page 20. 

Our approach is designed to ensure we obtain the requisite level of assurance in accordance with applicable laws, appropriate standards and guidance issued 

by the National Audit Office.

SCOPE AND MATERIALITY
Executive summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Materiality

We have applied a benchmark total comprising the combined value of 

long term assets and managed investments as a suitable value for 

materiality. Materiality has been set at 1% of this Balance Sheet amount. 

We consider that a misstatement at a lower level through revenue 

expenditure would be material where this may impact on setting future 

council tax or HRA rent levels. Revenue reserves and resources available 

to the City Fund at 31 March 2020 was £177.1m, comprising the General 

Fund balance £62.3m, Housing Revenue Account balance £0.1m and 

earmarked reserves £114.7m. We will therefore apply a lower specific 

level of materiality at 1.5% of gross expenditure to income and 

expenditure transactions in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

statement (CIES) and Movement in reserves statement (MiRS) that impact 

on revenue resources to reduce the risk of material misstatements. 

The clearly trivial amount is based on 2% of the materiality level.

Figures quoted are based on prior year outturn pending provision of 

current end of year projections.

Financial statements materiality

Trivial
£680,000

Trivial
£138,000

Specific lower 
materiality

Materiality
£34m

(2020 £34m)

Materiality

£6.9m

(2020 £6.9m)
Relevant assets:

£3,403m

Gross expenditure:
£465m

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risks overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 66



5 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

AUDIT STRATEGY
Executive summary

Our audit strategy is predicated on a risk based approach, so that audit work 

is focused on the areas of the financial statements where the risk of material 

misstatement is assessed to be higher, or where there is a risk that the 

organisation has not made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We have discussed the changes to the Corporation, systems and controls in 

the year with management and obtained their own view of potential audit 

risk in order to update our understanding of the Council’s activities and to 

determine which risks impact on the numbers and disclosures in the financial 

statements, or on its arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources. We will continue to update this 

assessment throughout the audit.

The table on the next page summarises our planned approach to audit risks 

identified. 

There has been no significant change to audit risks identified or their 

classification as compared to the prior year. 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risks overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 67



6 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

AUDIT RISKS OVERVIEW
Executive summary

Risk identified Risk rating
Fraud risk
present Testing approach

Impact of significant judgements 
and estimates

Management override of controls Significant Yes Substantive Medium

Revenue recognition Significant Yes Substantive Medium

Expenditure cut-off Significant Yes Substantive Low

Valuation of non-current assets Significant Yes Substantive High

Valuation of pension liability Significant No Substantive High

Valuation of Non-Domestic Rates appeals provision Significant No Substantive Medium

Allowance for non-collection of receivables and debt Significant No Substantive Medium

Related party transactions Normal No Substantive Low

Use of Resources – TBC pending final guidance Significant N/A Substantive TBC

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risks overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 68



7 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Independence

We confirm that the firm complies with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical 

Standard for Auditors and, in our professional judgement, is independent

INDEPENDENCE AND FEES
Executive summary

Fee variances 

1Code fee

This reflects the risk assessment and increased estimates work linked 

to the revised Auditing Standard.

22019/20 overruns

These are being discussed with Management. Any recurrent impact 

will need to be factored into the 2020/21 fee.

3Covid related costs

This represents an estimate of the additional resource time and costs 

necessary when audits are undertaken remotely.  The 15% is at the 

lowest end of the 15-20% range experienced by BDO and the other 

audit firms. If we are able to undertake some key work on site, the 

time reflected here should reduce and the fee level decrease 

accordingly.

1Use of resources fee variance

The audit fee is based on audit scope under the Code of Audit 

Practice. A new Code is effective for periods commencing 1 April 

2020, which significantly increases the work of auditors for reporting 

on a body’s use of resources. We will propose a fee variation in 

respect of this once additional procedures have been fully scoped.

Amendments to the proposed fees 

If we need to propose any amendments to the fees during the course 

of the audit, where our assessment of risk and complexity are 

significantly different from those reflected in the proposed fee or 

where we are required to carry out work in exercising our additional 

powers and duties, we will first discuss this with Officers and then 

discuss this with the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

Fees

2020/21
Planned

2019/20
Outturn

Code audit fee 1£111,000 £108,000

Additional audit fee: overruns - 2£TBC

Additional audit fee: new Use of Resources 3£TBC -

Additional audit fee: Covid related costs 4£16,650 £TBC

Total audit fees £TBC £TBC

Fees for non-audit services - audit related: 

• Certification of housing benefits subsidy claim £20,000 £TBC – not 

complete

• Certification of pooled housing capital receipts 

return

£2,500 £TBC – not 

complete

• Certification of teachers’ pensions return £2,500 £TBC – not 

complete

Other non-audit services

• ICF China Green Finance Programme reasonable 

assurance report

£TBC £7,000

Total non-audit services fees £TBC £TBC

Total fees £TBC £TBC

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risks overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 69



8 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Key components of our audit 

objectives and strategy for the 

Council are highlighted and 

explained on the following pages. 

Audit planning is a collaborative 

and continuous process and our 

audit strategy, as reflected here, 

will be reviewed and updated as 

our audit progresses. 

We will communicate any 

significant changes to our audit 

strategy, should the need for such 

change arise. 

Audit scope and objectives

AUDIT SCOPE AND 

OBJECTIVES
OVERVIEW

Reporting Objectives

Auditing 

standards

We will perform our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing UK (ISAs (UK)) 

and relevant guidance published by the National Audit Office.

Financial 

statements

We will express an opinion on the City Fund’s financial statements, prepared in accordance with 

the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2020/21 and other directions.

Statement of 

Accounts

In addition to our objectives regarding the financial statements, we will also read and consider 

the other information contained in the Statement of Accounts to consider whether there is a 

material inconsistency between the other information and the financial statements or other 

information and our knowledge obtained during the audit.

WGA We will review the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) return and express an opinion on the 

return whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. 

Additional 

powers and 

duties

Where necessary we may be required to: issue of a report in the public interest; make a written 

recommendation to the Corporation; allow local electors to raise questions and objections on the 

accounts; or exercise legal powers to apply to the courts for a declaration that an item of 

account is contrary to law, issue an advisory notice or an application for a judicial review.

Audit 

Completion 

Report to the 

Audit and Risk 

Management 

Committee

Prior to the approval of the financial statements, we will discuss our significant findings with the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee. We will highlight key accounting and audit issues as well 

as internal control findings and any other significant matters arising from the audit.

Use of resources 

and Auditor’s 

Annual Report

We will provide an annual commentary on the Corporation’s arrangements to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The commentary will explain the work that 

we have undertaken during the year and highlight any significant weaknesses identified, along 

with any recommendations for improvement. The commentary will also draw attention to 

emerging or developing issues which may not represent significant weaknesses, but which may 

nevertheless require attention from the Corporation. The Auditor’s Annual Report is required to 

be published by the Corporation. At the time of drafting this Audit Planning Report the timetable 

for publication is not yet confirmed (amend as necessary). 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit timeline

BDO team

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 70



9 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

An overview of the key dates

DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV

• Planning and risk 

assessment work 

commences (date)

• Clearance meeting with management 

(date TBC)

• Audit and Risk Committee receives 

Audit Completion Report and approves 

the Statement of Accounts (date TBC)

• Opinion deadline (target date 30 

September 2021)

• Audit and Risk Committee receives 

Auditor’s Annual Report (date TBC)

• Fieldwork 

commences (July 

2021)

AUDIT TIMELINE

• WGA return 

deadline (date 

TBC)

• Issue Audit Planning Report 

(14 March 2021)

• Audit and Risk Committee 

(23 March 2021)

• Draft Statement of 

Accounts deadline  

(28 May 2021)

At the time of drafting this Audit Planning Report, the deadlines for preparing and publishing local authority accounts are subject to consultation, 
as part of the Government’s response to Sir Tony Redmond’s review. The consultation proposes pushing back the final accounts publication date to 
30 September 2021 and requiring draft accounts to be published on or before 1 August 2021, together with a new requirement for local bodies to 
provide an explanation on their website if they miss the revised draft publication date.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit timeline

BDO team

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

The timetable above includes dates which have been proposed by Management. We are currently unable to confirm our commitment to this 
timetable as we require visibility of the overall timetable for all of the separate entities being audited and how these interact with each other. 
Since our ability to complete the audit of any individual entity is subject to the satisfactory completion of a number of areas of cross working 
(including, but not limited to, IT audit, payroll, financial investments, cross charges and pensions), our ability to meet this timetable can only be 
agreed in conjunction with the timetables for all other Funds.

P
age 71



10 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Team responsibilities

As audit engagement lead I have primary responsibility to ensure that the appropriate audit 

opinion is given. 

In meeting this responsibility I ensure that the audit has resulted in obtaining sufficient and 

appropriate evidence to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

report on the financial statements and communicate as required by the ISAs (UK), in 

accordance with our findings. 

I will ensure that we have undertaken sufficient work to assess the Corporation’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources 

against the guidance published by the National Audit Office.

I am responsible for the overall quality of the engagement and am supported by the rest of 

the team as set out here.

I will lead on the audit of the Corporation. I work closely with David to develop and execute 

the audit strategy. I will be a key point of contact on a day to day basis and will ensure that 

timelines are carefully managed to ensure that deadlines are met and matters to be 

communicated to management and the Audit and Risk Management Committee are 

highlighted on a timely basis.

David Eagles

Partner

m: 07967 203431

e: david.eagles@bdo.co.uk

Kerry Barnes
Senior Manager

t: 020 7893 3837

e: kerry.l.barnes@bdo.co.uk

BDO TEAM

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit timeline

BDO team

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

I will be responsible for the day to day supervision of the audit team, and will be responsible for 

the delivery of the key audit work.
Kerry Lin
Assistant Manager

t: 020 3219 4073

e: kerry.lin@bdo.co.uk

P
age 72



11 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We have assessed the following as audit risks. These are matters assessed as most likely to cause a material misstatement in the financial statements or 

impact on our use of resources opinion and include those that will have the greatest effect on audit strategy, the allocation of audit resources and the 

amount of audit focus by the engagement team.

Key: Significant / Normal

Audit risks

AUDIT RISKS OVERVIEW

Description of risk
Significant 
risk

Normal 
risk Overview of risk

1. Management override of 

controls

Auditing standards presume that management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud by 

overriding controls.

2. Revenue recognition Auditing standards presume that income recognition presents a fraud risk.

3. Expenditure cut-off For public sector bodies the risk of fraud related to expenditure is also relevant.

4. Valuation of non-current assets The valuation of non-current assets is a significant risk as it involves a high degree of 

estimation uncertainty.

5. Valuation of pension liability The valuation of the pension liability is a significant risk as it involves a high degree of 

estimation uncertainty.

6. Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

There is a risk in relation to the estimation of the provision due to potential incomplete 

data and assumptions used in calculating the likely success rate of appeals.

7. Allowances for non-collection 

of receivables and debt

Estimating potential losses is a significant risk as it involves a high degree of estimation 

uncertainty.

8. Related party transactions There is a risk that related party disclosures are not complete or accurate.

9. Use of Resources The risk assessment and proposed response will be completed and discussed when the 

guidance has been finalised.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 73



12 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

• Management has the ability to manipulate accounting records and override controls that otherwise appear to be 

operating effectively. We are required to consider this as a significant risk of material misstatement due to fraud. 

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Consideration of estimates and judgements applied in the financial statements to assess their appropriateness and 

the existence of any systematic bias; 

• Review and checking of high value and unusual journal entries made in the year and agreeing the journals to 

supporting documentation. We will determine key risk characteristics to filter the population of journals. We will 

use our IT team to assist with the journal extraction;

• Consideration of unadjusted audit differences for indications of bias or deliberate misstatement; and

• Consideration of areas where management bias could impact remuneration through performance based payment 

schemes.

MANAGEMENT OVERRIDE OF CONTROLS

Auditing standards  
presume that 
management is in a 
unique position to 
perpetrate fraud by 
overriding controls.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by 
Corporation

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 74



13 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Under auditing standards there is a presumption that income recognition presents a fraud risk.

For the City Fund, we consider there to be a significant risk in respect of the existence (recognition) 

of revenue and capital grants that are subject to performance conditions before these may be 

recognised as revenue in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement (CIES). There is also a 

risk around the existence of fees and charges and investment property rental income.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Test a sample of grants included in income to documentation from grant paying bodies and check 

whether recognition criteria have been met; 

• Test a sample of fees and charges to ensure that income has been recorded in the correct period 

and that all income that should have been recorded has been;

• Test a sample of grants and donations to ensure completeness, accuracy, existence and 

classification (as restricted or unrestricted) in the financial statements;

• Test a sample of investment income and confirm to third party investment manager reports; and

• Test a sample of property rental income and agree to lease agreements and recalculations 

performed to determine whether the amounts are accurate and recorded in the correct period.

Auditing standards  
presume that income 
recognition presents a 
fraud risk.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by 
Corporation

REVENUE RECOGNITION

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 75



14 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

For net-spending bodies in the public sector there is also risk of fraud related to expenditure. For the 

Corporation, we consider the risk of fraud to be in respect of the cut-off of expenditure at year-end.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Test a sample of expenditure either side of year end, to confirm that expenditure has been 

recorded in the correct period and that all expenditure that should have been recorded at year 

end has been.

For public sector bodies 
the risk of fraud 
related to expenditure 
is also relevant.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by 
Corporation

EXPENDITURE CUT-OFF

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 76



15 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Land, buildings and dwellings are reported at fair value / carrying value. Operational assets are valued 

at current value and surplus assets / assets held for sale at fair value at the balance sheet date. For 

Investment properties are reported at fair value at the balance sheet date.

The Corporation applies an annual revaluation process for investment properties and higher value 

operational assets to provide assurance that carrying values are not materially misstated; with the 

remainder of the non material value assets being revalued every 5 years. The Corporation has 

appointed four different valuers for investment property and other operational land and buildings. 

Internal valuers also carry out some valuations at year end.

In the prior year RICS issued guidance to valuers regarding material uncertainties over valuations of 

land and buildings due to prevailing market conditions as a result of the coronavirus pandemic. The 

Corporation’s valuers responsible for valuing land and building included material uncertainties over 

their valuations in their updated valuation reports as at 31 March 2020. RICS latest guidance suggests 

that there is unlikely to be material uncertainties over valuations as at 31 March 2021 however this will 

need to be monitored by the Corporation’s valuers as circumstances could change.

Due to the significant value of the land, buildings, dwellings and investment properties and the high 

degree of estimation uncertainty, there is a risk over the valuation of these assets where valuations are 

based on assumptions or where updated valuations have not been provided for a class of assets at the 

year-end. 

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Assess the qualifications and competence of the valuers used;

• Review the instructions provided to the valuers and review the values’ skills and expertise in order 

to determine if we can rely on the management expert;

• Confirm that the basis of valuation for assets valued in year is appropriate based on their usage;

• Review accuracy and completeness of asset information provided to the valuer such as rental 

agreements and land plot / building sizes;

• Review assumptions used by the valuers and movements against relevant indices for similar classes 

of assets and follow up valuation movements that appear unusual particularly in the light of 

material uncertainties that existed as at 31 March 2020; 

• Review the adequacy of disclosures if material valuation uncertainties are reported at the year 

end; and

• Discuss with our Real Estate Team the reasonableness of assumptions on benchmark and yields 

range for investment properties.

There is a risk over the 
valuation of land, 
buildings, dwellings and 
investment properties 
where valuations are 
based on significant 
assumptions.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by 
Corporation

VALUATION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 77



16 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

The LGPS pension fund is required to report the pension liability for estimated promised future benefits for the whole 

fund.  The Corporation’s share of the net liability, including its share of the assets held in the pension fund, is 

allocated across the funds in proportion to the payroll cost for each fund. The City Fund also reports the pension 

liability for the City Police pension scheme. This is an unfunded scheme.

An actuarial estimate of the liability is calculated by an independent firm of actuaries. The estimate will be based on 

the submission of membership data from the 2019 triennial valuation exercise for the LGPS and the 2017 quadrennial 

valuation for the police pension, updated at 31 March 2021 for factors such as mortality rates and expected pay rises 

along with other assumptions around inflation when calculating the liability.

There is a risk the valuation is not based on appropriate membership data where there are significant changes or uses 

inappropriate assumptions to value the liability.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Assess the qualifications and competence of the actuary through the use of PwC consulting actuary (auditor’s 

expert);

• Review the reasonableness of the assumptions used by Barnett Waddingham (management’s expert) for the 

calculation of the liability against other local government and police pension actuaries’ assumptions and other 

observable data using the benchmark range of acceptable assumptions provided by PwC consulting actuary 

(auditor’s expert);

• Review the controls for providing accurate membership data to the actuary; 

• Check whether any significant changes in membership data have been communicated to the actuary; 

• Discuss with the actuary the continuing impact of GMP equalisation and the McCloud judgement regarding age 

discrimination on the pension fund liability and impact on employer fund; and

• Check the accuracy of the calculations relating to the allocation of the share of the net assets across the funds in 

proportion to the employer’s contribution's paid to the scheme.

The valuation of the 
pension liability is a 
significant risk as it 
involves a high degree 
of estimation 
uncertainty

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by 
Corporation

VALUATION OF PENSION LIABILITY

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 78



17 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

City Fund as a billing authority is required to estimate the value of potential refund of business rates arising from 

rate appeals, including backdated appeals. The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) provides information regarding the 

appeals currently being assessed and settled.  

Management use this information to calculate a success rate for specific business types for settled appeals, and 

applies an appropriate rate to each type of business appeal still outstanding at year end.

There is a low number of appeals and settlements from the 2017 VOA list following the introduction of the Check –

Challenge – Appeal process that means there is limited data on which to base the estimate for the provision. This 

increases the level of risk as the provision could be overstated based on the assumptions used for the 2017 VOA list 

provided by MHCLG.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Review of the accuracy of the appeals data to confirm that it is complete based on the VOA list, and that settled 

appeals are removed; and

• Review of the assumptions used in the preparation of the estimate including the historic success rates to confirm 

that the rates applied are appropriate to outstanding 2010 appeals and the estimate of expected losses for the 

2017 rating list.

There is a risk in 
relation to the 
estimation of the 
provision due to 
potential incomplete 
data and assumptions 
used in calculating the 
likely success rate of 
appeals.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by 
Corporation

NON-DOMESTIC RATES APPEALS PROVISION

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 79



18 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

The City Fund recognises an allowance for the non-collection of receivables (arrears and debt), primarily 

in respect of council tax, NDR, housing benefit overpayments, housing and commercial rents and parking 

charges. Management assesses each type of receivable separately in determining how much to allow for 

non-collection.  There is a risk over the valuation of this allowance if incorrect assumptions or source 

data are used, or an inappropriate methodology is applied.

There is an increased risk of customer default over collection of receivables where the losses are 

measured at either the Incurred Credit Loss model for statutory debt (eg council tax and NDR) or 

Expected Credit Loss (contract receivables).  For some receivables, the Corporation may have suspended 

recovery action or offered deferred payment terms, and some customers that may be taking advantage 

of these arrangements may be in financial difficulty.

Estimating potential losses from defaults on amounts due will be subject to a greater degree of 

estimation than in previous years, historical collection rates may offer only some indication of potential 

future losses and assigning key economic metrics that may reflect patterns of historic default rates may 

be imperfect in the current conditions.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Reviewing the provision model for significant income streams and receivables / debt balances to 

assess whether it appropriately reflects potential default losses in light of current conditions using  

historical collection rates, an assessment of potential defaults for customers making use of deferral 

arrangements and aging of debt, and future losses and assessing the sensitivities to the impairment 

calculation and assumptions used by management;

• Reviewing business plans to support recoverability of amounts due as receivables or loans from 

subsidiaries and other group entities; and 

• Following up prior recommendations to ensure that where impairment allowance percentages had 

been rolled forward for a number of years, these allowances have now been calculated using 

historical collection rates or similar types of evidence.

There is a risk over the 
valuation of the 
impairment allowance 
for the non-collection 
of arrears and debt.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by Council

ALLOWANCES FOR NON-COLLECTION OF RECEIVABLES AND DEBT

P
age 80



19 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Whilst you are responsible for the completeness of the disclosure of related party transactions in the financial 

statements, we are also required to consider related party transactions in the context of fraud as they may present 

greater risk for management override or concealment or fraud. Our audit approach includes the consideration of 

related party transactions throughout the audit including making enquiries of management and the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee.

There is a risk that related party disclosures are not complete or accurate.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Reviewing management processes and controls to identify and disclose related party transactions;

• Review bank and legal confirmations and minutes of Corporation meetings;

• Reviewing other relevant information concerning any such identified transactions; 

• Discussing with management and reviewing members’ and management declarations to ensure that there are no 

potential related party transactions which have not been disclosed; 

• Undertaking Companies House searches for potential undisclosed interests;

• Following up prior year significant control deficiency recommendations to ensure that related party transactions 

recorded in the financial statements meet the definition of IAS 24: Related Party and over disclosure noted in the 

prior year has been rectified. As well as ensuring that our recommendation in respect of appropriate completion 

of member annual declarations has been implemented; and

• Following up a prior year recommendation to ensure that management has reviewed the relationship between the 

Museum and City of London Corporation to determine if joint control exists and hence the appropriateness of 

disclosure under related party transactions.

There is a risk that 
related party 
disclosures are not 
complete or accurate.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by Council

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of PPE and investment 

property

Valuation of pension liability

Non-current asset acquisitions

Reconciliation of bank accounts

Allowance for non-collection of 

receivables 

Related party transactions 

Sustainable finances (use of 

resources)

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

IT general controls

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 81



20 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

New Code of Audit Practice (“Code”)

The Comptroller & Auditor General has determined through a new Code and guidance that the key output from local audit work in respect of value for money 

(VFM) arrangements is a commentary as reported in the Auditor’s Annual Report, not a VFM arrangements ‘conclusion’ or ‘opinion’. There may be matters 

referred to in the auditor’s commentary that do not represent significant weaknesses in arrangements and where significant weaknesses are reported we are 

required to also report recommendations.

As auditors we need to gather sufficient evidence and document our evaluation of arrangements to enable us to draft our commentary under three reporting 

criteria. These criteria are:

• Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services

• Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (‘Improving 3Es’) - How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the 

way it manages and delivers its services.

In addition to new assessment criteria and commentary requirements, the scope of the new Code also considerably increases auditors’ requirements for 

planning documentation and management should expect an increase in requests for discussion and evidence to facilitate this requirement.  

Risk of Significant Weakness

We are required to report the results of our risk assessment to those charged with governance, including additional work planned in respect of any identified 

risks of significant weakness, and to keep our risk assessment under continual review, with any changes again communicated to those charged with 

governance. 

We are working through the implications of the new Code, including our risk assessment and a work programme that addresses risks of significant weakness 

identified.

We will update the Audit and Risk Management Committee on risks of significant weakness and planned work when it meets on [date] and, subject to risks 

being identified, will issue an updated version of this report.

USE OF RESOURCES

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 82



21 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

GOING CONCERN

Directors’ responsibilities

It is the directors’ responsibility to make an assessment of 

the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern to 

support the basis of preparation for the financial 

statements and disclosures in the financial statements. 

This is a requirement of the accounting standards. 

This assessment should be supported by detailed cash flow 

forecasts with clear details of the key underlying 

assumptions, consideration of available finance 

throughout the forecast period, and a consideration of the 

forecast’s sensitivity to reasonably possible variations in 

those assumptions along with any other relevant factors.

The going concern assessment should cover a minimum of 

12 months from the date of the directors’ approval of the 

financial statements. However, consideration should also 

be given to any major events or circumstances that may 

fall outside this period. 

Audit responsibilities

Our responsibilities in respect of going concern are:

(a) To obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 

regarding, and conclude on, i) whether a material 

uncertainty related to going concern exists; and ii) 

the appropriateness of management's use of the 

going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements

(b) To report in accordance with ISA (UK) 570.

We will obtain an understanding of the business model, 

objectives, strategies and related business risk, the 

measurement and review of the Corporation’s financial 

performance including forecasting and budgeting 

processes and the Corporation’s risk assessment 

process. We will evaluate:

a) The Corporation’s method, including the relevance 

and reliability of underlying data used to make the 

assessment, whether assumptions and changes to 

assumptions from prior years are appropriate and 

consistent with each other  

b) The Corporation’s plans for future actions in 

relation to the going concern assessment including 

whether such plans are feasible in the 

circumstances 

c) The adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures in 

the financial statements regarding the going 

concern assessment and any material uncertainties 

that may exist. 

Directors are required 
to make an assessment 
of the Corporation’s 
ability to continue as a 
going concern.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 83



22 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Fraud

Whilst Management of the Corporation have ultimate responsibility for 

prevention and detection of fraud, we are required to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement, including those arising as a result of fraud. Our audit 

approach includes the consideration of fraud throughout the audit and 

includes making enquiries of management and those charged with 

governance.

We have been made aware of a small number of low value actual, alleged or 

suspected incidences of fraud reported by the Corporation. We request 

confirmation from the Audit and Risk Management Committee on fraud and a 

discussion on the controls and processes in place to ensure timely 

identification and action.

Management believe that there is low risk of material misstatement arising 

from fraud and that controls in operation would prevent or detect material 

fraud.

Accounting policies

We will report to you on significant qualitative aspects of your chosen 

accounting policies. We will consider the consistency and application of the 

policies and we will report to you where accounting policies are inconsistent 

with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2020/21 

under the circumstances.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

We will report to you on significant accounting estimates and judgements.

We will seek to understand and perform audit testing procedures on 

accounting estimates and judgements including consideration of the outcome 

of historical judgements and estimates. We will report to you our 

consideration of whether management estimates and judgements are within 

an acceptable range.

Internal audit

We will ensure that we maximise the benefit of the overall audit effort 

carried out by internal audit and ourselves, whilst retaining the necessary 

independence of view. 

We will review the reports issued by the Council’s internal audit function 

although we do not plan place reliance on their work in respect of their 

assessment of control processes for our audit of the financial statements.

Our considerations in respect of Use of Resources are ongoing. 

Laws and regulations

We will consider compliance with laws and regulations. The most significant 

of these for your organisation includes VAT legislation, Employment Taxes, 

Health and Safety and the Bribery Act 2010. We will make enquiries of 

management and review correspondence with the relevant authorities. 

Specialist teams within BDO will review VAT and employment tax compliance 

work undertaken by the audit team.

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 84



23 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Related parties

Whilst you are responsible for the completeness of the disclosure of related 

party transactions in the financial statements, we are also required to 

consider related party transactions in the context of fraud as they may 

present greater risk for Management override or concealment or fraud. Our 

audit approach includes the consideration of related party transactions 

throughout the audit including making enquiries of management.

Financial statement disclosures

We will report to you on the sufficiency and content of your financial 

statement disclosures. 

Contingencies

We request input from the Audit and Risk Management Committee on recent 

claims.

Any other matters

We will report to you on any other matters relevant to the overseeing of the 

financial reporting process. Where applicable this includes why we consider 

a significant accounting practice that is acceptable under the financial 

reporting framework not to be the most appropriate.

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION 2

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 85



24 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We are required to include in our auditor’s report an explanation of the 

extent to which the audit is considered capable of detecting irregularities 

(non compliance with laws and regulations), including fraud.

Our audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements as whole a free from material misstatement whether 

due to fraud or error. We design audit procedures to respond to the risk of 

material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising that the risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk 

of not detecting one resulting from error and that irregularities that result 

from fraud might be inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities 

that result from error.

Our audit work will focus on laws and regulations that could give rise to a 

material misstatement in the Corporation’s financial statements and may 

include, where appropriate: 

• Obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring 

compliance with laws and regulations

• Enquiries of management, those charged with governance and the 

Corporation’s legal advisers

• Agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting 

documentation

• Review of minutes of various Corporation meetings throughout the year 

and of correspondence with regulatory authorities

• Written representations. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and 

the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the 

events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely 

we would become aware of it.

IRREGULARITIES (INCLUDING FRAUD)

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 86



25 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We will need to obtain an understanding of how you 

control your estimation process including not only the 

design and implementation of the process, but also the 

policies and procedures you put in place to satisfy 

yourself that each step in the process is properly applied, 

and that the resulting accounting estimates are 

reasonable.

For significant accounting estimates, particularly those 

that are complex or where there is a high degree of 

estimation uncertainty we will also make enquiries about 

how you:

• Make those responsible for deriving or changing your 

accounting estimates aware of relevant significant 

transactions, conditions or events

• Review the outcome(s) of previous accounting 

estimates and respond to the results of that review

• Identify and comply with the relevant requirements in 

the applicable financial reporting framework regarding 

your accounting estimates and related disclosures 

including how they are affected by complexity and 

your judgment

• Account for regulatory factors relevant to the 

Corporation's accounting estimates;, including, when 

applicable, regulatory frameworks related to 

prudential supervision

• Identify the need for, and apply, specialised skills or 

knowledge related to accounting estimates, including 

with respect to the use of a management's expert 

• Identify and address risks related to accounting 

estimates through your risk assessment process

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Revision to ISA (UK) 
540 means that we may 
need to update our 
approach the audit of 
accounting estimates  -
including  confirmation 
and documentation of 
our understanding of 
the Corporation’s 
estimation process. 

• Identify relevant methods (including models), 

assumptions and data and the need for changes in 

them and from those identified, and select those to 

apply

• Address the degree of estimation uncertainty in 

selecting your final point estimates 

• Describe in your financial statements matters 

related to your process for deriving your accounting 

estimates, and matters related to the degrees of 

estimation uncertainty underlying your accounting 

estimates 

• Ensure there is oversight and governance in place 

over management's financial reporting process 

relevant to accounting estimates.

Under ISA (UK) 540 (revised) our audit approach will 

involve a more granular risk assessment relating to 

each significant estimate and separate consideration of 

the methods (or models) applied in calculating the 

estimate, the nature, source and reliability of data 

used and the significance, consistency and 

appropriateness of assumptions made.

We will also request written representations from you 

regarding the reasonableness of the methods, 

significant assumptions and the data used in 

determining the monetary amounts of accounting 

estimates, including the related disclosures, in 

accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting 2020/21.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 87



26 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

IT General Controls (ITGCs) are the policies and procedures that relate to 

many IT applications and support the effective functioning of application 

controls by helping to ensure the continued proper operation of information 

systems. They commonly include controls over data center and network 

operations; system software acquisition, change and maintenance; access 

security; and application system acquisition, development, and 

maintenance.

ITGCs are an important component in systems of internal control, and 

sometimes have a direct impact on the reliability of other controls. 

IT assurance is embedded in our audit strategy to ensure the IT systems 

provide a suitable platform for the control environment and is undertaken in 

conjunction with our IT Assurance team. Our testing strategy includes a 

tailored range of data analytics, system configuration and IT environment 

testing.

We will also obtain an understanding of the information system, including 

the related business processes relevant to financial reporting, to include:

• Oracle

• Paris

• iTrent

• Capita

IT GENERAL CONTROLS

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Non-Domestic Rates appeals 

provision

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 88



27 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

In December 2019 the FRC published the Revised Ethical Standard 2019 (‘ES’), which is applicable from 15 March 2020. There are some transitionary 

provisions for services and arrangements that are not currently prohibited under the existing Standard. The ES aims to further strengthen auditor 

independence and enhance confidence in the profession. The table below provides a high level summary of the key headlines as applicable to our audit of the 

Council. 

FRC ETHICAL STANDARD (DECEMBER 2019)ETHICAL STANDARD

Key headlines Impact

The objective, 
reasonable & informed 
third party test 

Reinforcement that ethical principles take priority over rules. A need to take care where particular facts and circumstances are

either not addressed directly by the rules or might appear to ‘work around’ the rules, or result in an outcome that is 

inconsistent with the general principles.

Contingent fees Non-audit services with contingent or success-based fee arrangements will be prohibited for audited entities. 

Secondments All secondments/loan staff to audited entities are prohibited with the exception of secondments to public sector entities.

Recruitment and 
remuneration services

Prohibition on providing remuneration services to audited entities such as advising on the quantum of the remuneration package 

or the measurement criteria for calculation of the package.  In addition, the prohibition on providing recruitment services to an 

audited entity that would involve the firm taking responsibility for, or advising on the appointment of, any director or employee 

of the entity.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

FRC Ethical Standard (December 

2019)

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 89



28 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We have embedded the requirements of the auditing 

standards in our methodologies, tools and internal 

training programmes. Our internal procedures require 

that audit engagement leads are made aware of any 

matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on 

the integrity, objectivity or independence of the firm, 

the members of the engagement team or others who 

are in a position to influence the outcome of the 

engagement. 

This document considers such matters in the context of 

our audit for the year ending 31 March 2021.

We confirm that the firm, the engagement team and 

other partners, directors, senior managers and 

managers  conducting the audit comply with relevant 

ethical requirements including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard and are independent of the Council.

We also confirm that we have obtained confirmation 

that external audit experts involved in the audit 

comply with relevant ethical requirements including 

the FRC’s Ethical Standard and are independent of the 

Corporation.

Should you have any comments or queries regarding 

any independence matters we would welcome their 

discussion in more detail.

Non-audit services

Details of services, other than audit, provided by us to 

the Corporation during the period and up to the date of 

this report are set out in the fees table on page 7.

Should you have any comments or queries regarding 

any independence matters we would welcome their 

discussion in more detail. 

Under ISAs (UK) and the 
FRC’s Ethical Standard 
we are required, as 
auditors, to confirm 
our independence. 

INDEPENDENCE INDEPENDENCE

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 90



A Responsibilities 28

Corporation’s responsibilities 28

Our responsibilities 29

Communication with you 30

B Independence 31

Team member rotation 31

C Materiality 32

Materiality: Definition and application 32

APPENDICES CONTENTS

Materiality: Definition and application 33

D Accounting Standards 34

New Accounting Standards, Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 
34

E AQR Results 35

AQR Results 2019/20 35

AQR Results 2019/20 2 36P
age 91



30 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Financial reporting

The Corporation is expected to have effective governance arrangements to 

deliver its objectives. To this end, the publication of the financial 

statements is an essential means by which the Corporation accounts for its 

stewardship and use of the public money at its disposal.

The form and content of the Corporation’s financial statements, and any 

additional schedules or returns for consolidation purposes, should reflect the 

requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework in place 

and any applicable accounting standards or other direction under the 

circumstances.

The Corporation is also required to prepare schedules or returns to facilitate 

the preparation of consolidated accounts such as HM Treasury’s Whole of 

Government Accounts.

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for preparing and filing a Statement of 

Accounts and financial statements which show a true and fair view in 

accordance with CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 

2020/21, applicable accounting standards or other direction under the 

circumstances.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve management nor those 

charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of 

materially accurate financial statements. 

The Corporation’s responsibilities and reporting

Use of resources

Councils are required to maintain an effective system of internal control 

that supports the achievement of their policies, aims and objectives while 

safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other 

resources at their disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the 

Corporation is required to bring together commentary on its governance 

framework and how this has operated during the period in a Governance 

Statement.

In preparing its Governance Statement, the Corporation will tailor the 

content to reflect its own individual circumstances, consistent with the 

requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having 

regard to any guidance issued in support of that framework. This includes a 

requirement to provide commentary on their arrangements for securing 

value for money from their use of resources.

CORPORATION’S RESPONSIBILITIESRESPONSIBILITIES

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 92



31 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Our responsibilities and reporting – financial reporting

We are responsible for performing our audit under International Standards on 

Auditing (UK) to form and express an opinion on your financial statements. 

We report our opinion on the financial statements to the members of the 

Corporation. 

We read and consider the ‘other information’ contained in the Annual Report 

such as the additional narrative reports. We will consider whether there is a 

material inconsistency between the other information and the financial 

statements or other information and our knowledge obtained during the 

audit.

Our responsibilities and reporting – use of resources

We are required to satisfy ourselves that the Corporation has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources.

This means that we have regard to relevant guidance issued by the National 

Audit Office and undertake sufficient work to be able to satisfy ourselves as 

to whether the Corporation has put arrangements in place that support the 

achievement of value for money and to provide an annual commentary on 

arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Responsibilities and reporting

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

What we don’t report

Our audit is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the 

Corporation and the Audit and Risk Management Committee and cannot be 

expected to identify all matters that may be of interest to you and, as a 

result, the matters reported may not be the only ones which exist. 

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 93



32 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Those charged with governance

References in this report to ‘those charged with governance’ are to the 

Corporation as a whole. For the purposes of our communication with those 

charged with governance you have agreed we will communicate primarily 

with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Communication, meetings and feedback

We request feedback from you on our planning and completion report to 

promote two way communication throughout the audit process and to ensure 

that all risks are identified and considered; and at completion that the 

results of the audit are appropriately considered. We will meet with 

management throughout the audit process. We will issue regular updates and 

drive the audit process with clear and timely communication, bringing in the 

right resource and experience to ensure efficient and timely resolution of 

issues.

Audit Planning Report

The Audit Planning Report sets out all planning matters which we want to 

draw to your attention including audit scope, our assessment of audit risks 

and materiality. 

Internal Controls

We will consider internal controls relevant to the preparation of financial 

statements in order to design our audit procedures and complete our work. 

This is not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

internal control. 

Audit Completion Report

At the conclusion of the audit, we will issue an Audit Completion Report to 

communicate to you key audit findings before concluding our audit opinion. 

We will include any significant deficiencies in internal controls which we 

identify as a result of performing audit procedures. We will meet with you to 

discuss the findings and in particular to receive your input on areas of the 

financial statements involving significant estimates and judgements and 

critical accounting policies. 

Once we have discussed the contents of the Audit Completion Report with 

you and having resolved all outstanding matters we will issue a final version 

of the report.

Auditor’s Annual Report

We will provide an annual commentary on the Corporation’s arrangements to 

secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The 

commentary will explain the work that we have undertaken during the year 

and highlight any significant weaknesses identified, along with any 

recommendations for improvement. The commentary will also draw 

attention to emerging or developing issues which may not represent 

significant weaknesses, but which may nevertheless require attention from 

the Corporation. The Auditor’s Annual Report is required to be published by 

the Corporation. At the time of drafting this Audit Planning Report the 

timetable for publication is not yet confirmed.

COMMUNICATION WITH YOU

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 94



33 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Senior team 
members

Number of years 
involved

Rotation to take place 
after 

David Eagles, Partner
Engagement lead

1 10 years

Kerry Barnes
Senior Manager

4 10 years

These tables indicates the latest rotation periods normally permitted under 

the independence rules of the FRC’s Ethical Standard. 

In order to safeguard audit quality we will employ a policy of gradual 

rotation covering the team members as well as other senior members of the 

engagement team to ensure a certain level of continuity from year to year. 

Independence - engagement team rotation

TEAM MEMBER ROTATIONINDEPENDENCE

Independence – audit quality control

Number of years 
involved

Rotation to take place 
after 

Engagement quality 

control reviewer

1 10 years

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 95



34 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Concept and definition

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial 

statements and the audit process and applies not only to monetary 

misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to 

appropriate accounting principles and statutory requirements.

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our 

audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. For planning, we 

consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including 

omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that 

are taken on the basis of the financial statements. In order to reduce to an 

appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed 

materiality, we use a lower materiality level, performance materiality, to 

determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below 

these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take 

account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular 

circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the 

financial statements as a whole.

Materiality therefore has qualitative as well as quantitative aspects and an 

item may be considered material, irrespective of its size, if it has an impact 

on (for example):

• Narrative disclosure e.g. accounting policies, going concern

• Instances when greater precision is required (e.g. disclosure of senior 

officers’ remuneration and related party transactions).

International Standards on Auditing (UK) also allow the auditor to set a lower 

level of materiality for particular classes of transactions, account balances 

or disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for 

the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 

statements.

Calculation and determination

We have determined materiality based on professional judgement in the 

context of our knowledge of the entity, including consideration of factors 

such as industry developments, financial stability and reporting requirements 

for the financial statements.

We determine materiality in order to:

• Assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests

• Calculate sample sizes

• Assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements on the 

financial statements.

Reassessment of materiality

We will reconsider materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, 

we become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to 

make a different determination of planning materiality if we had been 

aware.

Further, when we have performed all our tests and are ready to evaluate the 

results of those tests (including any misstatements we detected) we will 

reconsider whether materiality combined with the nature, timing and extent 

of our auditing procedures, provided a sufficient audit scope.

MATERIALITY: DEFINITION AND APPLICATION MATERIALITY

Definition of materiality under IFRS 

Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could 
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of 
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial 
statements, which provide financial information about a specific 
reporting entity.

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 96



35 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

MATERIALITY: DEFINITION AND APPLICATION

If we conclude that our audit scope was sufficient, we will use materiality to 

evaluate whether uncorrected misstatements (individually or in aggregate) 

are material.

You should be aware that any misstatements that we identify during our 

audit, both corrected and uncorrected errors, might result in additional 

audit procedures being necessary.

Unadjusted errors

We will communicate to you all uncorrected misstatements identified during 

our audit, other than those which we believe are ‘clearly trivial’.

Clearly trivial is defined as matters which will be of a wholly different 

(smaller) order of magnitude than the materiality thresholds used in the 

audit, and will be matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 

individually or in aggregate.

We will obtain written representations from the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee confirming that in their opinion these uncorrected misstatements 

are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate and that, in the context 

of the financial statements taken as a whole, no adjustments are required.

We will request that you correct all uncorrected misstatements. In particular 

we would strongly recommend correction of errors whose correction would 

affect compliance with contractual obligations or governmental regulations. 

Where you choose not to correct all identified misstatements we will request 

a written representation from you setting out your reasons for not doing so 

and confirming that in your view the effects of any uncorrected 

misstatements are immaterial, individually and in aggregate, to the financial 

statements as whole.

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 97



36 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AUDITING STANDARDS AND OTHER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING DEVELOPMENTS 

We would like to draw to your attention the following summary of key changes to standards, regulations and other financing reporting developments, their 

effective dates and an indication, based on preliminary discussions with management and our sector understanding, of their possible effect on the annual 

report.

ACCOUNTING 

STANDARDS

New Accounting Standards, Auditing Standards and Other 
Financial Reporting Developments Expected effect

Effective for periods beginning 
on or after 1 January

None Low Medium High 2020 2021

Auditing standard – audit of accounting estimates

Increased emphasis on understanding management’s processes,

systems and controls estimation uncertainty  and financial 

statement disclosures 

 

Auditing standard – going concern

Increased emphasis on evaluation of management's assessment 

of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern

 

Auditing standard - audit reports

New audit report format with updated conclusion on going 

concern and reference to irregularities, including fraud 

 

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 98



37 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

AQR RESULTS 2019/20
BDO Performance 

AQR RESULTS 

Overview

The FRC released their Audit Quality Review results for the 7 largest 

accountancy firms in July 2020 for the review period 2019/20. A copy of all 

of the reports can be found on the FRC Website. 

Firm’s Results

The graphs demonstrates our performance in relation to the other 6 largest 

firms. Having topped the table for audit quality for the last two consecutive 

years, we are disappointed to see a decline in our results. These scores 

remind us we must remain committed to continuous improvements and, 

having carefully considered the root causes of the AQR findings, we are in 

the process of implementing detailed action plans where required. We have 

made a number of enhancements to our Audit Quality Plan to address these 

issues to drive our key focus of a continuous improvement in audit quality 

including highlighting how we will make changes to our root cause analysis 

process which plays a key role. 

We would encourage you to read our report which includes: 

• Details of the root cause analysis we have been undertaking to address 

issues raised

• The actions we have/are undertaking to address the issues raised by the 

AQR 

• A number of areas of good practice the AQR review team identified whilst 

undertaking their review. 

More details will be included in our Transparency Report which will be 

available on our www.bdo.co,uk 

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 99



38 | BDO LLPCity of London Corporation – City Fund- Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

AQR RESULTS 2019/20 2
BDO Performance 

May be at Individual assignment or ‘whole-firm’ level:

• Identification and assessment of root cause 

• Productive process to learn from matters and 

improve quality

• “Best practice” examples treated in the same way 

as “issues” 

• Consideration of appropriate responses to issues 

identified, proposed and escalated as appropriate

Responses may include:
• Updating operational practices
• Embedding matter into performance 

review and development process for staff
• Staff coaching
• Amending audit approach firm-wide or 

for specific assignments
• Targeted messaging to relevant 

audiences (e.g. grades, ranks or sector 
specialists)

• Updated guidance material
Responses inform training plans

Considerations of how to address:
• Behavioural matters
• Operational changes required
• Cultural matters to be escalated

Completed files may be subject to:
• Internal Audit Quality Assurance 

Review
• External review from AQR or QAD

Live files require:
• Review of audit quality by senior 

team members
and may require:
• Hot review of financial statements
• Technical support for audit work
• Appointment of engagement quality 

control reviewer

Nature of matters may be:

• Client/assignment specific issues 

• Common findings/repeating issues that 

have need to be  tracked and/or 

escalated

• Firm-wide matters

• “Best practice” examples

Cycle of 
continuous 

improvement

1

3

24

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 100



FOR MORE INFORMATION: The matters raised in our report prepared in connection with the audit are those we 

believe should be brought to your attention. They do not purport to be a complete record 

of all matters arising. This report is prepared solely for the use of the company and may 

not be quoted nor copied without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third 

party is accepted.

BDO is an award winning UK member firm of BDO International, the world’s fifth largest 

accountancy network, with more than 1,500 offices in over 160 countries.

BDO LLP is a corporate establishment under the Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000 and 

a UK Member Firm of BDO International. BDO Northern Ireland, a separate partnership, 

operates under a licence agreement. BDO LLP and BDO Northern Ireland are both 

separately authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct 

investment business.

© March 2021 BDO LLP. All rights reserved.

www.bdo.co.uk

David Eagles, Partner

m: 07967 203431

e: david.eagles@bdo.co.uk

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 102



Draft Report to the Audit and Risk Management Committee

CITY’S CASH AND SUNDRY TRUSTS

Audit Planning: year ended 31 March 2021

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 7c



CONTENTS

1 Introduction 3

Welcome 3

2 Executive summary 4

Scope and materiality 4

Audit strategy 5

Audit risk overview 6

Independence and fees 7

3 Audit scope and objectives 8

Overview 8

Audit scope entities, components and audit risks 9

Audit scope entities, components and audit risks 2 10

Audit scope entities, components and audit risks 3 11

Audit scope entities, components and audit risks 4 12

Audit scope entities, components and audit risks 2 13

Audit timeline 14

4 Audit risks 15

Overview 15

Management override of controls 16

Fraud in income recognition 17

Fraud in Income recognition (continued) 18

Fraud in Income recognition (continued) 19

Investment Property Valuations 20

Pension Liability Valuation 21

Investment Valuations 22

Decommissioning Provision 23

Going concern 24

Accounting estimates 25

Other matters requiring further discussion 26

Other matters requiring further discussion 2 27

Other matters requiring further discussion 3 28

IT general controls 29

Coronavirus and financial reporting impacts 30

5 Independence 31

Independence 31

6 Appendices contents 32

P
age 104



3 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We have pleasure in presenting our Draft Audit Planning Report to the Audit 

and Risk Management Committee. This report forms a key part of our 

communication strategy with you, a strategy which is designed to promote 

effective two way communication throughout the audit process with those 

charged with governance. 

It summarises the planned audit strategy for the year ending 31 March 2021, 

comprising materiality; key audit risks and the planned approach to these; 

together with timetable and the BDO team. 

The planned audit strategy has been discussed with Management to ensure 

that it incorporates developments in the business during the year under 

review, the results for the year to date and other required scope changes.

This report contains matters which should properly be considered by the 

Members as a whole. We expect that the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee will refer such matters to the Members, together with any 

recommendations, as it considers appropriate.

We look forward to discussing this plan with you at the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee meeting on 23 March 2021 and to receiving your 

input on the scope and approach.

In the meantime if you would like to discuss any aspects in advance of the 

meeting please contact one of the team. 

Fiona Condron

12 March 2021

WELCOMEINTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Those Charged with Governance and should not be shown to any other person without our express 

permission in writing. In preparing this report we do not accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person. For more information on our respective responsibilities please see 

the appendices.

Fiona Condron

Partner

t: +44(0)1293 591 102

m: +44(0)7583 022 125

e: fiona.condron@bdo.co.uk

Peter Lewis

Senior Audit Manager

t: +44(0)1293 848 969

m: +44(0)7800 682 390

E: peter.lewis@bdo.co.uk

James Hay

Audit Manager

t: +44(0)207 893 2934

m: +44(0)7855 517 028

E: james.hay@bdo.co.uk

James Badman

Audit Assistant Manager

t: +44(0)20 7893 3360

m: +44(0)7583 021 177

e: james.badman@bdo.co.uk

CONTENTS

Introduction

Welcome

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 105



4 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

This summary provides an overview of the key audit matters that we believe 

are important to the Audit and Risk Management Committee in reviewing the 

planned audit strategy for the Group for the year ending 31 March 2021. 

It is also intended to promote effective communication and discussion and to 

ensure that the audit strategy appropriately incorporates input from those 

charged with governance. 

Audit scope

Our approach is designed to ensure we obtain the requisite level of 

assurance in accordance with applicable laws and appropriate standards.

Materiality

In line with prior year the planning materiality threshold has been based on 

2% of total assets (‘Financial Statement Materiality’). Given the relative 

significance of the assets held by City’s Cash, materiality has been set at 2% 

of gross assets.

We have also assigned a specific materiality of 5% of total income (£8.7m) to 

non-investment related items in the Consolidated Statement of 

Comprehensive Income (“SOCI”) as we consider this to be an area of key 

focus for the users of the accounts.

Although materiality is the judgement of the audit partner, the Audit and 

Risk Management Committee is obliged to satisfy themselves that the 

materiality chosen is appropriate for the scope of the audit.

Draft planning materiality has been calculated on prior year audited 

accounts and will be updated following the completion of our risk 

assessment and other planning procedures. We will communicate any 

changes to the committee. Final materiality will be updated upon receipt of 

the draft financial statements for 31 March 2021.

SCOPE AND MATERIALITY
Executive summary

2021 

MATERIALITY

£65.9m

CLEARLY 

TRIVIAL

£1.3m

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risk overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 106



5 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

AUDIT STRATEGY
Executive summary

Our Audit Strategy is predicated on a risk based approach, so that audit work 

is focused on the areas of the financial statements where the risk of material 

misstatement is assessed to be higher. 

We are in the process of discussing the changes to the business, systems and 

controls in the year with Management and obtaining their own view of 

potential audit risk in order to update our understanding of the Group’s and 

Trusts activities and to determine which risks impact on the numbers and 

disclosures in the financial statements. We will continue to update this 

assessment throughout the audit.

The table on the next page summarises our planned approach to audit risks 

identified. 

There has been no significant change to audit risks identified, their 

classification or the planned approach as compared to the prior year.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risk overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 107



6 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

AUDIT RISK OVERVIEW
Executive summary

Risk identified Risk rating Fraud risk present Testing approach

Impact of significant judgements 

and estimates

Management Override of Controls Significant Yes Substantive High

Fraud in income recognition Significant Yes Substantive High

Investment Property Valuations Significant No Substantive High

Pension Liability Valuations Significant No Substantive High

Investment Valuations Normal No Substantive Medium

Decommissioning Provision Normal No Substantive High

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risk overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 108



7 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

INDEPENDENCE AND FEES
Executive summary

Independence

We confirm that the firm complies with the Financial Reporting Council’s 

Ethical Standard for Auditors and, in our professional judgement, is 

independent and objective within the meaning of those Standards. 

Fees

Fee variances 

1 This reflects an inflationary increase in addition to the risk assessment and 

increased estimates work linked to the revised Auditing Standards.

22019/20 overruns

These have been agreed with Management in conjunction with the overruns 

agreed on BHE although the allocation of costs between funds is yet to be 

finalised.

3Covid related costs

This represents an estimate of the additional resource time and costs 

necessary when audits are undertaken remotely.  The 15% is at the lowest 

end of the 15-20% range experienced by BDO and the other audit firms. If we 

are able to undertake some key work on site, the time reflected here should 

reduce and the fee level decrease accordingly. Management has agreed to 

ring fence this element of our proposal to review at an appropriate time 

taking into account our actual experience of working remotely and/or being 

able to access relevant staff if working on site at Guildhall.

Amendments to the proposed fees 

If we need to propose any amendments to the fees during the course of the 

audit, where our assessment of risk and complexity are significantly 

different from those reflected in the proposed fee or where we are required 

to carry out work in exercising our duties, we will first discuss this with 

Management and then discuss this with the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee. 

Barking Power Limited and Thames Power Services Limited

Audit fees in respect of Barking and Thames Power for the March 2021 audit 

will be agreed separately with Management. We will communicate those as 

part of our Completion report.

2021

£’000

2020

£’000

City Cash and Trusts 1 160 146

Barking Power Limited and Thames Power Services 

Limited

TBC 24

Additional audit fee: overruns 2 - 66

Additional audit fee: Covid related costs 3 16 -

Total audit fees TBC 236

Teachers Pensions Schemes 20 21

Total non-audit services 20 21

Total fees TBC 233

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risk overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 109



8 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Key components of our audit 

objectives and strategy for the 

Group are highlighted and 

explained on the following pages. 

Audit planning is a collaborative 

and continuous process and our 

audit strategy, as reflected here, 

will be reviewed and updated as 

our audit progresses. 

We will communicate any 

significant changes to our audit 

strategy, should the need for such 

change arise. 

Audit scope and objectives

AUDIT SCOPE AND 

OBJECTIVES
OVERVIEW

Reporting Objectives

Auditing 

standards

We will perform our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing UK (ISAs (UK)).

Financial 

statements

We will express an opinion on the Group and Trust financial statements, prepared in accordance 

with UK GAAP and, with respect to the registered charities within, and separate to, the Group,  

applicable law including the Charities Act 2011.

Trustee’s Annual 

report

In addition to our objectives regarding the financial statements, we will also:

• Read and consider the ‘other information’ contained in the Annual Report such as the 

additional narrative reports . We will consider whether there is a material inconsistency 

between the other information and the financial statements or other information and our 

knowledge obtained during the audit.

• For statutory other information such as the Annual Report, we will form an opinion on 

whether the information given in the other information is consistent with the financial 

statements and our knowledge obtained in the audit and whether the reports have been 

prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Audit report –

going concern

• We will report our conclusion on whether management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting is appropriate and will either report our conclusion that there is no material 

uncertainty related to going concern or draw attention to any material uncertainty identified 

by the Trustee and disclosed in the financial statements.

Report to the 

Audit and Risk

Management 

Committee

Prior to the approval of the financial statements, we will discuss our significant findings with the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee. We will highlight key accounting and audit issues as well 

as internal control findings and any other significant matters arising from the audit.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 3

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 4

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 110



9 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

As Group auditor we are required 

to design an audit strategy to 

ensure we have obtained the 

required audit assurance for each 

component for the purposes of our 

Group audit opinion ISA (UK) 600

A high-level overview of how we have designed the 

Group audit strategy is summarised here to ensure you 

have clear oversight of the scope of the work we intend 

to perform on each entity.

Audit Risks, covered later in this report, are cross 

referenced to each entity to provide clarity over how 

these arise within your business and where the focus of 

the audit work will be. 

The clearly trivial threshold for all components has 

been set at the Group level, being £650k.

All of the UK subsidiaries are subject to audit by BDO 

LLP

AUDIT SCOPE ENTITIES, COMPONENTS AND AUDIT RISKS

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 3

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 4

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 111



10 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Consolidated Entities

Entity

Nature of 

Operations

Audit 

classification

Reason for 

classification Audit Risks

Component 

Materiality and basis

of assessment

Component Specific 

Materiality and basis of 

assessment

Audit

strategy

City’s Cash Parent Entity Parent N/A Risk no. 1, 2, 

3, 4, 5, 6, 

£65,975,000 

2% of Assets

8,750,000

5% of Revenue

Statutory 

audit 

performed 

by BDO UK

Ashtead

Common

Preservation of the 

common at Ashtead

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 11,100

2% of Expenditure

N/A Statutory 

audit 

performed 

by BDO UK

Burnham

Beeches

Preservation of the 

open space known 

as Burnham Beeches

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £21,800

2% of Expenditure

N/A Statutory 

audit 

performed 

by BDO UK

Epping Forest Preservation of 

Epping Forest in 

perpetuity

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 156,450

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory 

audit 

performed 

by BDO UK

Hampstead

Heath 

(consolidated)

Preservation of 

Hampstead Heath 

for the recreation 

and enjoyment of 

the public

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 1,071,500

2% of Assets

481,000

5% of Expenditure

Statutory 

audit 

performed 

by BDO UK

Hampstead 

Heath Trust 

To meet a 

proportion of the 

maintenance cost of 

Hampstead Heath 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2, 

5

665,250

2% of Assets

67,750

5% of Expenditure

Statutory 

audit 

performed 

by BDO UK

AUDIT SCOPE ENTITIES, COMPONENTS AND AUDIT RISKS 2

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 3

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 4

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 112



11 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Consolidated Entities

Entity Nature of Operations

Audit 

classification

Reason for 

classification Audit Risks

Component 

Materiality and 

basis of 

assessment

Component 

Specific 

Materiality 

and basis of 

assessment Audit strategy

Highgate Wood & 

Queens Park 

Kilburn

Preservation of Hampstead 

Heath for the recreation 

and enjoyment of the public

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £28,350

2% of Expenditure

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

West Ham Park To maintain and preserve 

the Open Space known as 

West Ham Park

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £30,100

2% of Expenditure

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

West Wickham 

Common and 

Spring Park 

Coulsdon & Other 

Commons

Preservation of West 

Wickham Common and 

Spring Park Coulsdon & 

Other Commons 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £28,800

2% of Expenditure

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Keats House Maintenance of Keats House Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £7,000

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Sir Thomas 

Gresham Charity 

To provide a programme of 

public lectures

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £1,500

2% of Expenditure

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Barking Power 

Limited

The decommissioning of the 

power station and 

preparation of the site for 

re-use 

Significant

component

Risk Risk no. 1, 

2, 6

BPL Audit team to communicate 

separately

Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Thames Power 

Services Limited

To provide management 

services to Barking Power 

Limited in connection with 

the operation and 

decommissioning of Barking 

Power Station 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk 1,2 TPSL audit team to communicate

separately 

Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

AUDIT SCOPE ENTITIES, COMPONENTS AND AUDIT RISKS 3

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 3

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 4

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 113



12 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Other Entities

Entity Nature of Operations

Audit 

classification

Reason for 

classification Audit Risks

Component 

Materiality 

and basis of 

assessment

Component Specific 

Materiality and basis of 

assessment Audit strategy

Charities 

Administered ICW 

the City of London 

Freemen’s School 

Promotion of 

education through 

prizes 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £3,450

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory 

audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

City Educational 

Trust Fund 

Advancement of 

education through 

grants 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £62,750

2% of Assets

4,350

5% of Expenditure

Statutory 

audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

City of London 

Almshouses 

Almshouses for poor or 

aged people 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £62,250

2% of Assets

£13,000

5% of Expenditure

Statutory 

audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

City of London 

Corporation 

Combined 

Education Charity

Advancing education 

by the provision of 

grants and financial 

assistance 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £18,000

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory 

audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

City of London 

Corporation Relief 

of Poverty Charity 

Relief of poverty for 

widows, widowers or 

children of a Freemen 

of the City of London 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £9,500

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory 

audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

City of London 

Freemen’s School 

Bursary Fund 

Promotion of 

education through 

bursaries 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £17,000

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory 

audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

City of London 

School Bursary Fund 

Promotion of 

education through 

bursaries, scholarships 

and prizes 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 1, 2 £64,000

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory 

audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

AUDIT SCOPE ENTITIES, COMPONENTS AND AUDIT RISKS 4

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 3

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 4

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 114



13 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Other Entities

Entity Nature of Operations

Audit 

classification

Reason for 

classification

Audit 

Risks

Component 

Materiality and 

basis of 

assessment

Component 

Specific 

Materiality and 

basis of 

assessment Audit strategy

City of London 

School for Girls 

Bursary Fund 

Promotion of education 

through bursaries, 

scholarships and prizes 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 

1, 2

£77,500

2% of Assets

£44,750

5% of Expenditure

Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Corporation of 

London Charities 

Pool 

Investments pool for Sundry 

Trusts 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 

1, 2, 5

£350,000

2% of Assets

£69,650

5% of Expenditure

Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Emmanuel Hospital Payment of pensions and 

financial assistance to poor 

persons 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 

1, 2

£53,350

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Guildhall Library 

Centenary Fund 

Provision of education and 

training in library, archives, 

museum, and gallery 

services

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 

1, 2

£350

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

King George’s Field Open space for sports, 

games and recreation 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 

1, 2

£375

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Samuel Wilson’s 

Loan Trust 

Granting of low interest 

loans to young people who 

have or are about to set up 

in business 

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 

1, 2

£44,650

2% of Assets

£4,250

5% of income

Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Sir William Coxen 

Trust Fund 

Granting of assistance to 

eligible charitable trusts in 

the form of donations

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 

1, 2

£43,650

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

Vickers Dunfee 

Memorial 

Benevolent Fund 

Financial assistance to 

distressed past and present 

members of the City of 

London Special Constabulary 

and their dependents

Non significant 

component

Size Risk no. 

1, 2

£4,250

2% of Assets

N/A Statutory audit 

performed by 

BDO UK

AUDIT SCOPE ENTITIES, COMPONENTS AND AUDIT RISKS 2

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 3

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 4

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 115



14 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

An overview of the key dates

AUDIT TIMELINE

Timing Event Key objective and outcome

12 March 2021
Audit Planning meeting with Financial 

Management
To discuss developments during the year and our audit approach.

TBC* Audit planning and interim work

Documentation of systems and assess the design and implementation of controls. 

Carry out preliminary analytical review using the latest management accounts. 

Carry out any interim testing as agreed with management

23 March 2021
Audit and Risk Management Committee 

meeting
Presentation and discussion of our proposed audit plan.

March 2021
Meetings with CoL Surveyors and External 

Valuers

Attendance at meetings with the internal CoL Surveyors team and external valuers

to discuss investment property valuations for 31 March 2021

16 August 2021

Receipt of draft financial statements, 

Trustee’s Annual Report and audit 

deliverables.

Carry out preliminary analytical review, off-site testing and final planning.

[23 August 2021] Final audit fieldwork
Testing of year-end balances and transactions. This will include the clearance of 

routine accounting and audit points and preparation of a draft management letter.

[24 September 

2021]
Audit Clearance meeting with management

Review draft financial statements for all entities. Discuss and agree any 

adjustments. Review draft management letter.

[30 September 

2021]
Audit Completion report date Finalise and approve auditors’ report. 

[1 October 2021] Audit Panel review Audit Panel to review audit files and report back to BDO and CoL.

[5 October 2021]
Audit and Risk Management Committee 

meeting

Presentation of our management letter.  This will address key issues arising from 

the audit and include qualitative matters as well as the appropriateness of 

significant accounting policies and estimates, noting any changes therein.

[12 October 2021] Members Meeting Formal approval of the financial statements and the letter of representation.

*Please note we are awaiting management at CoL to provide proposed dates for the planning and interim visit, the A&RMC and Members Meeting

The timetable below includes dates which have been proposed by management. We are currently unable to confirm our commitment to this timetable 

as we require visibility of the overall timetable for each individual Fund and how these interact with each other. Since our ability to complete the 

audit of any individual Fund is subject to the satisfactory completion of a number of areas of cross working (including, but not limited to, IT audit, 

payroll, financial investments, cross charges and pensions), our ability to meet this timetable can only be agreed in conjunction with the timetables 

for all other Funds.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 3

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 4

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

Audit risks

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 116



15 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We have assessed the following as audit risks. These are matters assessed as most likely to cause a material misstatement in the financial statements and 

include those that will have the greatest effect on audit strategy, the allocation of audit resources and the amount of audit focus by the engagement team.

AUDIT RISKS OVERVIEW

Description of risk Significant risk Normal risk Overview of risk

1. Management override of controls ISA (UK) 240 notes that Management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 

because of their ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare 

fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to 

be operating effectively.

2. Fraud in income recognition ISA (UK) 240 presumes that income recognition presents a fraud risk.

3. Investment Property Valuations There is a risk over the valuation of investment properties where valuations are 

based on significant assumptions.

4. Pension Liability Valuation The valuation of the defined benefit obligation is a complex calculation 

involving a number of significant judgements and assumptions. The accounting 

estimate for the defined benefit pension liability uses information on current, 

deferred and retired member data and applies various actuarial assumptions 

over pension increases, salary increases, mortality, commutation take up and 

discount rates to calculate the present value of the liabilities. 

5. Investment Valuations There is a risk that investment valuations may not be correctly reported at year 

end.

6. Decommissioning Provision There is a risk that the site remediation costs will not be calculated on a 

reasonable basis and not disclosed correctly.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 117



16 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

International Standards on Auditing (UK) 240 sets out the 

auditor’s responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of 

financial statements and requires us to presume that the 

risk of management override of controls is present and 

significant in all entities. 

Our understanding is that the most susceptible areas of 

the accounting records, where management override 

could take place, are the posting of journals and the 

judgements involved in accounting estimates within the 

financial statements. 

Our testing during our planning visit confirmed that the 

control of reviewing all journals before posting remains in 

place.

Accounting estimates reviewed in previous years have 

been appropriate in terms of their thought process and 

calculation, however we will review accounting estimates 

and judgement to ensure they remain appropriate. 

The key areas of estimate and judgement identified by 

management are:

• The assumptions used in the calculation of, and the 

disclosures in relation to the pension scheme

• The assumptions used in the valuation of investments

• The allocation of costs between Funds/entities

• The assumptions used in the valuation of investment 

properties

• The useful life of assets 

• Management’s assessment of impairments 

MANAGEMENT OVERRIDE OF CONTROLS

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• A review and verification of large and unusual 

journal entries made in the year, agreeing the 

journals to supporting documentation. We will 

determine key risk characteristics to filter the 

population of journals. We will use our IT team to 

assist with the journal extraction;

• A critical review of the consolidation and, in 

particular, manual or late journals posted at 

consolidated level;

• A review of estimates and judgements applied by 

Management in the financial statements to assess 

their appropriateness and the existence of any 

systematic bias; and

• A review of unadjusted audit differences for 

indications of bias or deliberate misstatement.

ISA (UK) 240 notes that 

Management is in a 

unique position to 

perpetrate fraud.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 118



17 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Under International Standard on Auditing 240 “The 

Auditor’s responsibility to consider fraud in an audit of 

financial statements” there is a presumption that income 

recognition presents a fraud risk. 

For City's Cash, we consider there to be a significant risk 

in respect of the completeness of Education income and 

investment property income, which accounts for 

approximately 87% of total income, due to the cut-off risk 

around the year end.

The income streams of the City's Cash and their 

percentage of total income are as follows:

– Education – 46%

– Investment Property – 44%

– Markets – 7%

– Financial Investments – 2%

– Other – 2%

Source: 2020 audited financial statements

FRAUD IN INCOME RECOGNITION

ISA (UK) 240 presumes 

that income 

recognition presents a 

fraud risk

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• We carry out audit procedures to gain an 

understanding of the entity’s internal control 

environment for the significant income streams, 

including how this operates to prevent loss of 

income and ensure that income is recognised in the 

correct accounting period.

• We evaluate the accounting policies for income 

recognition to ensure current practice is in 

accordance with the stated policy and, if 

applicable, is line with the current accounting 

standards (FRS 102) or detailed guidance in the 

Charities SORP (where relevant);

• We perform cut-off testing (including a review of 

amounts being deferred to future years) to ensure 

that a sample of income recognised either side of 

year-end has been correctly treated. 

• See the pages that follow for more detail on the 

identified risks and audit testing response for each 

income stream. 

• All other material income streams, such as, 

education income, investment property income and 

markets income will be audited substantively. We 

will perform cut-off testing, completeness and 

valuation testing to ensure that income has been 

recorded in the correct period and accurately 

valued. We will also review material receipts to the 

date of sign off to ensure income is correctly 

recorded in the correct period.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 119



18 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Education income

Education income relates to tuition fees generated by the 

schools, the City of London Boys School, the City of 

London Girls School and the City of London Freemans 

School, and the Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 

Investment Property Income

Investment property income is a primary revenue stream 

for City's Cash, comprising primarily of rental, service 

charge and insurance income generated from the 

extensive investment property portfolio.

A significant risk is deemed to lie over the completeness 

of this revenue stream, primarily over cut-off at year-end 

as income is usually invoiced quarterly and therefore 

requiring a partial deferral.

FRAUD IN INCOME RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

ISA (UK) 240 presumes 

that income 

recognition presents a 

fraud risk

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

Planned audit approach 

Education income

We will:

• Obtain details of student fees and pupil numbers 

and performed substantive analytical procedures to 

develop an expectation of education income which 

was then compared to actual results. 

• Trace a sample of individual pupil fees to 

supporting documentation.

• Review income posted either side of year-end to 

ensure it is recognised in the correct period.

Investment Property Income

We will:

• Agree a sample of investment property income to 

invoice, supporting documentation (such as tenancy 

agreement) and receipt to bank. 

• Reconcile the total income expected per the 

tenancy schedule to the income posted in the 

nominal ledger, agreeing reconciling items as 

appropriate.

• Review rent concessions granted during the Covid-

19 pandemic and consider the impact of this in 

relation to amendments to FRS102 in October 2020 –

Covid-19 related rent concessions

• Review income posted either side of year-end to 

ensure it is recognised in the correct period.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 120



19 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Markets income

City’s Cash owns Billingsgate and Smithfield 

Markets, which it leases space in to various 

tenants. This income stream is formed mostly of 

rental and service charge income, with various 

miscellaneous sources noted from other services 

provided at these sites.

A normal risk is deemed to lie over the 

completeness of this revenue stream - primarily 

over cut-off at year-end - as it is noted that the 

majority of market income is recognized when 

received or invoiced in line with the financial 

year, with only minor adjustments required at 

year-end to accrue or defer items.

FRAUD IN INCOME RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

ISA (UK) 240 presumes 

that income 

recognition presents a 

fraud risk

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

Planned audit approach 

Market Income

We will:

• Agree a sample of market income to invoice, supporting 

documentation (such as tenancy agreement) and receipt to 

bank. 

• Review income posted either side of year-end to ensure it is 

recognised in the correct period.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 121



20 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

City's Cash holds an extensive portfolio of 160 investment 

properties, which are reported at fair value at the 

balance sheet date. As at 31 March 2020 the value of 

investment properties was £2,062.3m.

The Corporation has appointed two valuers relevant to 

City's Cash, who perform a year-end valuation based on 

data provided by the Surveyors Team at the Corporation.

Due to the significant value of the investment properties 

and the high degree of estimation uncertainty, there is a 

risk over the valuation of these assets where valuations 

are based on assumptions, or where updated valuations 

have not been provided at the year-end. 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY VALUATIONS

Planned audit approach

As part of our audit work, we will perform procedures 

including the following:

• Assess the qualifications and competence of the 

valuers used

• Review the instructions provided to the valuers and 

reviewed the valuers; skills to determine whether 

we can rely on management’s expert

• Verify a sample of data provided to the valuers

(such as rental income) to use as inputs within the 

valuation process

• Confirm that the basis of valuation for each asset is 

appropriate based on their usage

• Review assumptions used by the valuers and 

movements in values relative to market indices, and 

challenged valuations lying outside our expectations 

with the corresponding valuer. 

• Consult extensively with both our Real Estate and 

BDO Valuation teams regarding the reasonableness 

of the assumptions and benchmarks used for 

specific properties where a higher degree of 

judgement has been applied (for example more 

unique properties or developments 

• Be involved in meetings with the Surveyors Team 

and Valuers during the valuation process 

• Compare movements in the valuation of assets year-

on-year and investigated unusual movements. 

There is a risk over the 

valuation of investment 

properties where 

valuations are based on 

significant assumptions.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 122



21 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

The LGPS pension fund is required to report the pension 

liability for estimated promised future benefits for the 

whole fund.  

The Corporation’s share of the net liability, including its 

share of the assets held in the pension fund, is allocated 

across the funds in proportion to the payroll cost for each 

fund. 

An actuarial estimate of the liability is calculated by an 

independent firm of actuaries.   

There is a risk the valuation is not based on appropriate 

membership data where there are significant changes or 

uses inappropriate assumptions to value the liability

The proportion of the Pension Fund that relates to City’s 

Cash is not separately identifiable and therefore the share 

of pension contributions paid to the scheme by the Trust 

is calculated pro rata to employer’s contributions paid by 

each of the Corporation contributors to the scheme, for 

City's Cash this percentage was 46% in 2020. The risk is 

therefore also focussed on the accuracy of this 

calculation.

Planned audit approach

Our audit procedures, listed below, will primarily be 

undertaken as part of the Pension Fund audit and 

reviewed for the purposes of the City’s Cash audit

• Assess the qualifications and competence of the 

actuary through the use of PwC consulting actuary 

(auditor’s expert);

PENSION LIABILITY VALUATION

• Review the reasonableness of the assumptions used 

by Barnett Waddingham (management’s expert) for 

the calculation of the liability against other local 

government and police pension actuaries’ 

assumptions and other observable data using the 

benchmark range of acceptable assumptions 

provided by PwC consulting actuary (auditor’s 

expert);

• Review the controls for providing accurate 

membership data to the actuary; 

• Check whether any significant changes in 

membership data had been communicated to the 

actuary; 

• Discuss with the actuary the continuing impact of 

GMP equalisation, the McCloud judgement regarding 

age discrimination on the pension fund liability and 

impact on employer fund and the Goodwin case 

relating to differences in survivor benefits payable 

to same sex or opposite sex survivors;

• Check the accuracy of the calculations relating to 

the allocation of the share of the net assets across 

the funds in proportion to the employer’s 

contribution's paid to the scheme; and

• Review the reasonableness of the relevant 

disclosures in City’s Cash relating to the basis of 

apportioning the net pension liability of the 

Corporation.

The valuation of the 

defined benefit 

obligation is a complex 

calculation involving a 

number of significant 

judgements and 

assumptions. 

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 123



22 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

The investment portfolio within City’s Cash includes 

unquoted infrastructure, private equity holdings and 

pooled investment vehicle (held through unit trust). The 

unquoted infrastructure funds and private equity funds 

are valued by the General Partner or fund manager using 

valuations obtained from the underlying partnerships and 

investments. The valuation of other funds are provided by 

individual fund managers and reported on a monthly 

basis.

Valuations for private equity are provided at dates that 

are not coterminous with the year end for City's Cash and 

need to be updated to reflect cash transactions 

(additional contributions or distributions received) up to 

31 March. There is a risk that private equity investments 

valuations may not be appropriately adjusted to include 

additional contributions or distributions at the year end or 

movements in market value.

There is a risk that investments may not be appropriately 

valued and correctly recorded in the financial statements

INVESTMENT VALUATIONS

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• For a sample of unquoted infrastructure and private 

equity investments, we obtain direct confirmation 

of investment valuations from the General Partner 

or fund manager and obtain copies, where 

applicable, of the audited report on internal 

controls / audited financial statements of the 

underlying partnerships (and member 

allocations). We also consider if appropriate 

adjustments are made to the valuations in respect 

of additional contributions to, and distributions 

from, the funds.  We will also consider if the 

valuations used by management take account of the 

March 2021 quarterly valuation statements;

• For a sample of pooled investments, we obtain 

direct confirmation of investment valuations from 

the fund managers and agreed independent 

valuations, where available, provided by the global 

custodian;

• For the investments sampled, we obtain 

independent assurance reports over the controls 

operated by both the fund managers and custodian. 

This review will not only consider the overall audit 

opinion given on the control environment, but also 

the specific tests carried out which provide 

assurance over the valuations and existence of the 

investments; and

• We agree the allocation of amounts for each fund 

where there is pooling of investments across the 

funds.

There is a risk that 

investment valuations 

may not be correctly

reported at year end.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 124



23 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Risk detail

Barking Power, a subsidiary of City’s Cash, is responsible 

for the rehabilitation of the current site. The 

decommissioning provision is in place to capture the costs 

associated with this rehabilitation. Estimating the 

provision required to complete the rehabilitation requires 

significant estimation and is judgemental. For this reason 

there is a risk that the costs of restructuring will not be 

calculated on a reasonable basis. 

In FY20 the provision has increased by £2.9m from £18m 

to £20.9m (representing an increase in the provision 

estimate of £5.3m offset by amounts utilised of £2.4m). 

Due to the significant estimates and assumptions that are 

built into the calculation of the provision, management 

engage third party experts to assist with their assessment 

of the restoration costs and make adjustments to factor in 

contingency costs and contractor risk. 

DECOMMISSIONING PROVISION

Planned audit approach 

We will undertake the following audit procedures in 

this area:

• Evaluate whether management experts have the 

necessary competence, capabilities, and objectivity 

to assist management accurately calculate the costs 

associated with decommissioning the site.

• Test managements calculation of the rehabilitation 

provision through assessing the integrity of their 

model and challenging the assumptions used in 

calculating managements estimate. 

There is a risk that the 

site remediation costs 

will not be calculated 

on a reasonable basis 

and not disclosed 

correctly.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 

implementation of controls to 

mitigate

Significant Management 

estimates & judgements

Controls testing 

approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 125



24 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Members responsibilities with respect to Going Concern

It is the Members responsibility to make an assessment of 

the Group’s ability to continue as a Going Concern to 

support the basis of preparation for the financial 

statements. This is a requirement of both Companies Act 

2006 and accounting standards. 

This assessment should be supported by detailed cash flow 

forecasts with clear details of the key underlying 

assumptions and the basis for those assumptions, 

consideration of available finance and covenant 

compliance throughout the forecast period, and a 

consideration of the forecast’s sensitivity to reasonably 

possible variations in those assumptions along with any 

other relevant factors.

The going concern assessment should cover a minimum of 

12 months from the date of the trustee’s approval of the 

financial statements. However, consideration should also 

be given to any major events or circumstances that may 

fall outside this period. 

The assessment should also identify any material 

uncertainties relating to the group’s ability to continue as 

a going concern.

GOING CONCERN

Audit responsibilities

Our responsibilities in respect of going concern are:

a. To obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 

regarding, and conclude on, i) whether a material 

uncertainty related to going concern exists; and ii) 

the appropriateness of management's use of the 

going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements; and

b. To report in accordance with ISA (UK) 570

We will obtain an understanding of the business model, 

objectives, strategies and related business risk, the 

measurement and review of the entity’s financial 

performance including forecasting and budgeting 

processes and the entity’s risk assessment process. We 

will evaluate:

a. The Members method including the relevance and 

reliability of underlying data used to make the 

assessment, whether assumptions and changes to 

assumptions from prior years are appropriate and 

consistent with each other. 

b. The Members plans for future actions in relation to 

the going concern assessment including whether 

such plans are feasible in the circumstances. 

c. The adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures in 

the financial statements regarding the going 

concern assessment and any material uncertainties 

that may exist. 

The Members are 

required to make an 

assessment of the 

Group’s ability to 

continue as a going 

concern.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 126



25 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We will need to obtain an understanding of how you 

control your estimation process including not only the 

design and implementation of the process, but also the 

policies and procedures you put in place to satisfy 

yourself that each step in the process is properly applied, 

and that the resulting accounting estimates are 

reasonable.

For significant accounting estimates, particularly those 

that are complex or where there is a high degree of 

estimation uncertainty we will also make enquiries about 

how you:

• make those responsible for deriving or changing your 

accounting estimates aware of relevant significant 

transactions, conditions or events

• review the outcome(s) of previous accounting 

estimates and respond to the results of that review

• identify and comply with the relevant requirements in 

the applicable financial reporting framework regarding 

your accounting estimates and related disclosures 

including how they are affected by complexity and 

your judgment

• account for regulatory factors relevant to the entity's 

accounting estimates, including, when applicable, 

regulatory frameworks related to prudential 

supervision

• identify the need for, and apply, specialized skills or 

knowledge related to accounting estimates, including 

with respect to the use of a management's expert 

• identify and address risks related to accounting 

estimates through your risk assessment process

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

• identify relevant methods (including models). 

Assumptions and data and the need for changes in 

them and from those identified, select those to 

apply

• address the degree of estimation uncertainty in 

selecting your final point estimates 

• describe in your financial statements matters 

related to your process for deriving your accounting 

estimates, and matters related to the degrees of 

estimation uncertainty underlying your accounting 

estimates 

• ensure there is oversight and governance in place 

over management's financial reporting process 

relevant to accounting estimates.

Under ISA (UK) 540 (revised) our audit approach will 

involve a more granular risk assessment relating to 

each significant estimate and separate consideration of 

the methods (or models) applied in calculating the 

estimate, the nature, source and reliability of data 

used and the significance, consistency and 

appropriateness of assumptions made.

We will also request written representations from you 

regarding the reasonableness of the methods, 

significant assumptions and the data used in 

determining the monetary amounts of accounting 

estimates, including the related disclosures, in 

accordance with the applicable financial reporting 

framework.

Revision to ISA (UK) 

540 means that we 

need to update our 

approach the audit of 

accounting estimates  -

including  confirmation 

and documentation of 

our understanding of 

the Group’s estimation 

process. 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 127



26 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Fraud

Whilst the Trustee has ultimate responsibility for prevention and detection 

of fraud, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, including those arising as a 

result of fraud. Our audit approach includes the consideration of fraud 

throughout the audit and includes making enquiries of Management and 

those charged with governance.

We have not been made aware of any actual alleged or suspected incidences 

of fraud. We request confirmation from the Committee on fraud and a 

discussion on the controls and processes in place to ensure timely 

identification and action.

Internal audit

We plan to review the audit work of the Corporation internal audit function 

but  we do not anticipate placing reliance on their work.

Accounting policies

We will report to you on significant qualitative aspects of your chosen 

accounting policies. We will consider the consistency and application of the 

policies and we will report to you where accounting policies are inconsistent 

with UK GAAP under the circumstances.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

We will report to you on significant accounting estimates and judgements. 

We will seek to understand and perform audit testing procedures on 

accounting estimates and judgements including consideration of the outcome 

of historical judgements and estimates. We will report to you our 

consideration of whether Management estimates and judgements are within 

an acceptable range.

Laws and regulations

We will consider compliance with laws and regulations. The most significant 

of these for your business includes Charities Act, Charities SORP (FRS 102) 

Corporate and VAT legislation, Employment Taxes, Health Safety and the 

Bribery Act 2010. We will make enquiries of Management and review 

correspondence with the relevant authorities. 

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 128



27 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Related parties

Whilst you are responsible for the completeness of the disclosure of related 

party transactions in the financial statements, we are also required to 

consider related party transactions in the context of fraud as they may 

present greater risk for Management override or concealment of fraud. Our 

audit approach includes the consideration of related party transactions 

throughout the audit including making enquiries of Management and the 

Board.  We will also consider the adequacy of the procedures you have in 

place to identify such transactions and assess completeness and accuracy 

inline with the requirements.

Under Charities SORP (FRS 102), the following information must be provided 

for each individual trustee who received remuneration or other benefits in 

the reporting period:

• the legal authority under which the payment was made (for example a 

provision in the governing document of the charity, an Order of the 

Court, or the charity regulator for the jurisdiction(s) of registration);

• the name of the remunerated trustee;

• details of why the remuneration or other employment benefits were paid;

• the amount of remuneration paid;

• the amount of any pension contributions paid by the charity for the 

reporting period; and

• the amount of any other benefit, for example any termination benefits, 

private health cover or the provision of a vehicle.

The definition of related party also includes ‘an officer, agent or member of 

key management personnel of the charity’ and ‘de facto’ trustees. 

All charities must report the total amount of employee benefits received by 

trustees and its key management personnel for their services to the charity.

The charity is also required to maintain a register of interests and hospitality 

for the Members of the City of London Corporation and Senior Management 

Team.

Related parties (cont)

We note from the prior year audit that historically City Cash has opted to 

disclose relationships which, technically, do not constitute related party 

relationships under FRS 102. To simplify the disclosures and to allow more 

focus on any transactions which are actual related party transactions we 

would encourage Management of City Cash to relook at this area again for 

the March 2021 audit.

Serious incident reports

We have requested copies of any serious incident reports filed during the 

year to be available for review during our interim audit. We will discuss with 

management any material impact (such as provisions) on the financial 

statements.

We will obtain an update on any further reports made during our final audit.

Financial statement disclosures

We will report to you on the sufficiency and content of your financial 

statement disclosures. 

Contingencies

We request input from the Audit and Risk Management Committee on recent 

claims.

Any other matters

We will report to you on any other matters relevant to the overseeing of the 

financial reporting process. Where applicable this includes why we consider 

a significant accounting practice that is acceptable under the financial 

reporting framework not to be the most appropriate.

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION 2

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 129



28 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We are required to include in our auditor’s report an explanation of the 

extent to which the audit is considered capable of detecting irregularities 

(non compliance with laws and regulations), including fraud.

Our audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements as whole a free from material misstatement whether 

due to fraud or error. We design audit procedures to respond to the risk of 

material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising that the risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk 

of not detecting one resulting from error and that irregularities that result 

from fraud might be inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities 

that result from error.

Our audit work will focus on laws and regulations that could give rise to a 

material misstatement in the charity financial statements and may include, 

where appropriate: 

• obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring 

compliance with laws and regulations;

• enquiries of management, those charged with governance and the 

entity’s legal advisers;

• agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting 

documentation;

• review of minutes of board meetings throughout the year and of 

correspondence with the regulators; and

• written representations. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and 

the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the 

events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely 

we would become aware of it.

Irregularities including fraud

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION 3

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 130



29 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

IT General Controls (ITGCs) are the policies and procedures that relate to 

many IT applications and support the effective functioning of application 

controls by helping to ensure the continued proper operation of information 

systems. They commonly include controls over data center and network 

operations; system software acquisition, change and maintenance; access 

security; and application system acquisition, development, and 

maintenance.

ITGCs are an important component in systems of internal control, and 

sometimes have a direct impact on the reliability of other controls. 

IT assurance is embedded in our audit strategy to ensure the IT systems 

provide a suitable platform for the control environment and is undertaken in 

conjunction with our IT Assurance team. Our testing strategy includes a 

tailored range of data analytics, system configuration and IT environment 

testing.

We have engaged IT audit specialists with BDO who commenced work to 

update our knowledge of the IT systems and controls that related to audit 

areas through discussions with key team members. At this time, no audit 

risks arising from the IT environment have been identified from our work to 

date.

Performance of data analytics

We are required to perform specific audit procedures that are a response to 

the risks of fraud and management override of controls including the testing 

of journal entries throughout the year. Our audit strategy is to obtain a full 

extract of all nominal ledger activity, reconcile to the trial balance 

movements and then to perform computer assisted auditing procedures using 

our BDO Advantage Analytics suite to analyse and assess journal activity. 

In addition to testing of manual adjustments, we will also use this download 

to conduct a review of all transactions posted to the general ledger relating 

to other cycles. We will establish posting patterns, duplicates, occurrence of 

key words, in-depth analysis of manual entries, unusual accounting 

combinations contained within transactions and notable items detected by 

our artificial intelligence routines. We will also review users active within 

the general ledger, and their posting trends, to evaluate whether they are 

only posting to areas relevant to their roles.

IT GENERAL CONTROLS

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 131



30 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Financial Reporting Implications

Impairment testing 

Models used in impairment testing should be based on forecasts, projections 

and assumptions that were reasonable and supportable at the balance sheet 

date. For 31 March 2021 year ends any impairment calculations will need to 

consider both the disruption that the coronavirus pandemic has caused to 

operations in the current and short term as well as any longer term changes to 

business plans caused by adopting any of the learnings from working in the 

“new normal” during the pandemic. In the context of the City's Cash we are 

aware that some tenants were granted rental deferrals during the pandemic.

Narrative reporting implications

Principal risks and uncertainties:

In February 2020, the Financial Reporting Council wrote to large corporate 

Audit Committee chairs to remind them that entities should consider whether 

to refer to the possible effects of Coronavirus on their businesses, for example 

in their reporting of principal risks and uncertainties. The FRC highlighted 

that, where mitigating actions can be taken, these should also be reported 

alongside the description of the risk itself. The FRC also note that, given the 

potential for rapid spread of the virus, required disclosures will likely change 

over time as more information about the epidemic arises. As a result, entities 

will need to monitor developments and ensure that they are providing up-to-

date and meaningful disclosures when preparing their annual reports. 

CORONAVIRUS AND FINANCIAL REPORTING IMPACTS
The effects on year-end corporate reporting and auditing

Sufficient and appropriate audit evidence:

Personnel may be unable to carry out their roles on site and/or be 

available to meet physically with our audit teams. We note that this may 

be a particular issue around areas relying on paper documentation.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Fraud in income recognition

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Fraud in Income recognition 

(continued)

Investment Property Valuations

Pension Liability Valuation

Investment Valuations

Decommissioning Provision

Going concern

Accounting estimates

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 3

IT general controls

Coronavirus and financial 

reporting impacts

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 132



31 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

We have embedded the requirements of the Standards 

in our methodologies, tools and internal training 

programmes. Our internal procedures require that 

audit engagement partners are made aware of any 

matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on 

the integrity, objectivity or independence of the firm, 

the members of the engagement team or others who 

are in a position to influence the outcome of the 

engagement. This document considers such matters in 

the context of our audit for the year ending 31 March 

2021.

Details of rotation arrangements for key members of 

the audit team and others involved in the engagement 

are set out in the appendices.

Details of other threats and safeguards applied are 

given in the appendices.

We have not identified any other relationships or 

threats that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

objectivity and independence.

We confirm that the firm, the engagement team and 

other partners, directors, senior managers and 

managers conducting the audit comply with relevant 

ethical requirements including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard or the IESBA Code of Ethics as appropriate 

and are independent of the Group.

We also confirm that we have obtained confirmation of 

independence from non BDO auditors and external 

audit experts involved in the audit comply with 

relevant ethical requirements including the FRC’s 

Ethical Standard and are independent of the Group.

Should you have any comments or queries regarding 

any independence matters we would welcome their 

discussion in more detail.

Under ISAs (UK) and the 

FRC’s Ethical Standard 

we are required, as 

auditors, to confirm 

our independence. 

INDEPENDENCE INDEPENDENCE

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Independence

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 133



A Corporation’s responsibilities 33

Corporation's responsibilities 33

Corporation's responsibilities explained 34

Our responsibilities 35

Communication with you 36

B Independence 37

Partner rotation 37

C Materiality 38

Materiality: Definition and application 38

D Materiality 39

APPENDICES CONTENTS

Materiality: Definition and application  2 39

P
age 134



33 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

The City of London Corporation’s Responsibilities and Reporting

The City of London Corporation, in its role as Trustee of the Group, is 

responsible for preparing and filing an Annual Report and financial 

statements which show a true and fair view, comply with the Companies Act 

2006, prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and the Charities SORP.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve Management nor those 

charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the 

financial statements.

Further information regarding these responsibilities will be provided in our 

engagement letters. Our engagement letters are being updated for the year 

ending 31 March 2021 and will be issued in due course.

The Corporation’s Responsibilities and Reporting

CORPORATION'S RESPONSIBILITIESCORPORATION’S 

RESPONSIBILITIES

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Corporation’s responsibilities

Corporation's responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

P
age 135



34 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Corporation’s Responsibilities and Reporting

CORPORATION'S RESPONSIBILITIES EXPLAINED

Trustee responsibilities What this means

• Maintain adequate accounting records and maintain an appropriate 

system of internal control for the entity

• Prepare the annual report and the financial statements which give a true 

and fair view and which are prepared in accordance with the Companies 

Act 

• Safeguard the assets of the Group and take reasonable steps for the 

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Further information regarding these responsibilities will be provided in our 

engagement letters. Our engagement letters are being updated for the year 

ending 31 March 2021 and will be issued in due course.

Having made enquiries of fellow Members of the City of London Corporation 

and the Group’s auditors, state in the Trustee’s report that:

• So far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 

the Group’s auditors are unaware

• They have taken all reasonable steps they ought to have taken as 

Members of the City of London Corporation in order to make themselves 

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 

Charity’s auditors are aware of that information.

In addition to answering our queries, this requires proactive behaviour in 

order to make us aware of any relevant information. Relevant information is 

very broad and includes any information needed in connection with our 

report. 

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Corporation’s responsibilities

Corporation's responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

P
age 136



35 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Our responsibilities and reporting

We are responsible for performing our audit under International Standards on 

Auditing (UK) to form and express an opinion on your financial statements. 

We report our opinion on the financial statements to the members. 

We read and consider the ‘other information’ contained in the Annual Report 

such as the additional narrative reports. We will consider whether there is a 

material inconsistency between the other information and the financial 

statements or other information and our knowledge obtained during the 

audit.

For statutory other information such as the Trustee’s report, we will form an 

opinion on whether the information given in the other information is 

consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained in the 

audit and whether the reports have been prepared in accordance with 

applicable legal requirements.

We are additionally required to include in our report:

• Where we conclude there is no material uncertainty in relation to going 

concern, a statement to that effect

• A conclusion that management’s use of the going concern basis of 

account is appropriate.

• An explanation of the extent to which the audit was capable of detecting 

irregularities, including fraud

What we don’t report

Our audit is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the 

board and cannot be expected to identify all matters that may be of interest 

to you and, as a result, the matters reported may not be the only ones which 

exist. 

Responsibilities and reporting

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Corporation’s responsibilities

Corporation's responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

P
age 137



36 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Those Charged with Governance

References in this report to Those Charged With Governance are to the 

Members of the Common Council of the City of London Corporation as a 

whole. For the purposes of our communication with those charged with 

governance you have agreed we will communicate primarily with the Audit 

and Risk Management Committee.

Communication, Meetings and Feedback

We request feedback from you on our planning and completion report to 

promote two way communication throughout the audit process and to ensure 

that all risks are identified and considered; and at completion that the 

results of the audit are appropriately considered. We will meet with 

Management throughout the audit process. We will issue regular updates and 

drive the audit process with clear and timely communication, bringing in the 

right resource and experience to ensure efficient and timely resolution of 

issues.

Planning Report

The Planning Report sets out all planning matters which we want to draw to 

your attention including audit scope, our assessment of audit risks and 

materiality. 

Internal Controls

We will consider internal controls relevant to the preparation of financial 

statements in order to design our audit procedures and complete our work. 

This is not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

internal control. 

Audit Completion Report

At the conclusion of the audit, we will issue an Audit Completion Report to 

communicate to you key audit findings before concluding our audit opinion. 

We will include any significant deficiencies in internal controls which we 

identify as a result of performing audit procedures. We will meet with you to 

discuss the findings and in particular to receive your input on areas of the 

financial statements involving significant estimates and judgements and 

critical accounting policies. 

Once we have discussed the contents of the Audit Completion Report with 

you and having resolved all outstanding matters we will issue a final version 

of the Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH YOU

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Corporation’s responsibilities

Corporation's responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

P
age 138



37 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Senior team 

members

Number of years 

involved

Rotation to take place 

before

Fiona Condron

Partner

3 2029

Peter Lewis

Senior Manager

2 N/A

James Hay

Manager

3 N/A

These tables indicate the latest rotation periods normally permitted under 

the independence rules of the FRC’s Ethical Standard. 

In order to safeguard audit quality we will employ a policy of gradual 

rotation covering the team members below as well as other senior members 

of the engagement team to ensure a certain level of continuity from year to 

year. 

Role

Number of years 

involved

Rotation to take place 

before

Engagement Quality 

Control Reviewer

1 2031

Independence - engagement team rotation

Independence - audit quality control

PARTNER ROTATIONINDEPENDENCE

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Corporation’s responsibilities

Corporation's responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

P
age 139



38 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

MATERIALITY: DEFINITION AND APPLICATION MATERIALITY

Calculation and determination

We have determined materiality based on professional judgement in the 

context of our knowledge of the Group, including consideration of factors 

such as industry developments, financial stability and reporting requirements 

for the financial statements.

We determine materiality in order to:

• Assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests

• Calculate sample sizes

• Assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements on the 

financial statements.

Reassessment of materiality

We will reconsider materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, 

we become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to 

make a different determination of planning materiality if we had been 

aware.

Further, when we have performed all our tests and are ready to evaluate the 

results of those tests (including any misstatements we detected) we will 

reconsider whether materiality combined with the nature, timing and extent 

of our auditing procedures, provided a sufficient audit scope.

Definition of materiality under FRS 102 

Information is material – and therefore has relevance – if its omission or 

misstatement, individually or collectively, could influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Concept and definition

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial 

statements and the audit process and applies not only to monetary 

misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to 

appropriate accounting principles and statutory requirements.

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our 

audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. For planning, we 

consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including 

omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that 

are taken on the basis of the financial statements. In order to reduce to an 

appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed 

materiality, we use a lower materiality level, performance materiality, to 

determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below 

these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take 

account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular 

circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the 

financial statements as a whole.

Materiality therefore has qualitative as well as quantitative aspects and an 

item may be considered material, irrespective of its size, if it has an impact 

on (for example):

• Narrative disclosure e.g. accounting policies, going concern

• Compliance with loan covenants

• Instances when greater precision is required (e.g. Trustee/Members 

emoluments and related party transactions).

International Standards on Auditing (UK) also allow the auditor to set a lower 

level of materiality for particular classes of transaction, account balances or 

disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for 

the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 

statements.

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Corporation’s responsibilities

Corporation's responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

P
age 140



39 | BDO LLPCity's Cash and Sundry Trust audit planning report for the year ended 31 March 2021

MATERIALITY: DEFINITION AND APPLICATION 2MATERIALITY

If we conclude that our audit scope was sufficient, we will use materiality to 

evaluate whether uncorrected misstatements (individually or in aggregate) 

are material.

You should be aware that any misstatements that we identify during our 

audit, both corrected and uncorrected errors, might result in additional 

audit procedures being necessary.

Unadjusted errors

We will communicate to you all uncorrected misstatements identified during 

our audit, other than those which we believe are ‘clearly trivial’.

Clearly trivial is defined as matters which will be of a wholly different 

(smaller) order of magnitude than the materiality thresholds used in the 

audit, and will be matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 

individually or in aggregate.

We will obtain written representations from the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee confirming that in their opinion these uncorrected misstatements 

are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate and that, in the context 

of the financial statements taken as a whole, no adjustments are required.

We will request that you correct all uncorrected misstatements. In particular 

we would strongly recommend correction of errors whose correction would 

affect compliance with loan covenants, management compensation 

agreements, other contractual obligations or governmental regulations. 

Where you choose not to correct all identified misstatements we will request 

a written representation from you setting out your reasons for not doing so 

and confirming that in your view the effects of any uncorrected 

misstatements are immaterial, individually and in aggregate, to the financial 

statements as whole.

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Corporation’s responsibilities

Corporation's responsibilities 

explained

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality

P
age 141



FOR MORE INFORMATION: The matters raised in our report prepared in connection with the audit are those we 

believe should be brought to your attention. They do not purport to be a complete record 

of all matters arising. This report is prepared solely for the use of the company and may 

not be quoted nor copied without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third 

party is accepted.

BDO is an award winning UK member firm of BDO International, the world’s fifth largest 

accountancy network, with more than 1,500 offices in over 160 countries.

BDO LLP is a corporate establishment under the Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000 and 

a UK Member Firm of BDO International. BDO Northern Ireland, a separate partnership, 

operates under a licence agreement. BDO LLP and BDO Northern Ireland are both 

separately authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct 

investment business.

© 2021 BDO LLP. All rights reserved.

www.bdo.co.uk

Fiona Condron

t: 01293 591 102

m: 07583 022125

e: fiona.condron@bdo.co.uk

P
age 142



Report to the Audit and Risk Management Committee

CITY OF LONDON PENSION FUND
Audit Planning Report: year ending 31 March 2021

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 7d



CONTENTS

1 Introduction 3

Welcome 3

2 Executive summary 4

Scope and materiality 4

Audit strategy 5

Audit risks overview 6

Independence and fees 7

3 Audit scope and objectives 8

Overview 8

Audit scope entities, components and audit risks 9

Audit scope entities, components and audit risks 2 10

Audit timeline 11

BDO team 12

4 Audit risks 13

Overview 13

Management override of controls 14

Revenue recognition 15

Expenditure cut-off 16

Valuation of non-current assets 17

Valuation of pension liability 18

Waste Treatment Plant PFI 19

Use of Resources 20

Going concern 21

Other matters requiring further discussion 22

Other matters requiring further discussion 2 23

Irregularities (including fraud) 24

Accounting estimates 25

IT general controls 26

5 Ethical Standard 27

FRC Ethical Standard (December 2019) 27

6 Independence 28

Independence 28

7 Appendices contents 29

P
age 144



3 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We have pleasure in presenting our Audit Planning Report to the Audit and 

Risk Management Committee of the City of London Corporation (the 

‘Corporation’) in respect of the City of London Pension Fund. This report 

forms a key part of our communication strategy with you, a strategy which is 

designed to promote effective two way communication throughout the audit 

process with those charged with governance. 

It summarises the planned audit strategy for the year ending 31 March 2021 

in respect of our audit of the financial statements; comprising materiality, 

key audit risks and the planned approach to these; together with timetable 

and the BDO team. 

The planned audit strategy has been discussed with Management to ensure 

that it incorporates developments in the business during the year under 

review, the results for the year to date and other required scope changes.

This report contains matters which should properly be considered by the 

Corporation, as administering authority, as a whole. We expect that the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee will refer such matters to the City 

Corporation, together with any recommendations, as it considers 

appropriate.

We look forward to discussing this plan with you at the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee meeting on 23 March 2021 and to receiving your 

input on the scope and approach.

In the meantime if you would like to discuss any aspects in advance of the 

meeting please contact one of the team. 

David Eagles, Partner

For and on behalf of BDO LLP

14 March 2021

WELCOME

David Eagles, Engagement Partner

t: 01473 320728

m: 07967 203431

e: david.eagles@bdo.co.uk

Francesca Palmer, Manager

t: 01473 320739

m: 07970 126254 

e: francesca.palmer@bdo.co.uk

Kerry Lin, Assistant Manager

t: 020 3219 4073

e: kerry.lin@bdo.co.uk

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared solely for the use of the [Audit Committee] and Those Charged with Governance. In preparing this report we do not accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or 

to any other person. For more information on our respective responsibilities please see the appendices.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Welcome

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 145



4 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

This summary provides an overview of the key audit matters that we believe 

are important to the Audit and Risk Management Committee in reviewing the 

planned audit strategy for the Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 

2021. 

It is also intended to promote effective communication and discussion and to 

ensure that the audit strategy appropriately incorporates input from those 

charged with governance. 

Audit scope

The scope of the audit is determined by the National Audit Office’s Code of 

Audit Practice that sets out what local auditors are required to do to fulfil 

their statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014. This includes auditing the financial statements and, where 

appropriate, exercising the auditor’s wider reporting powers and duties.

Our approach is designed to ensure we obtain the requisite level of 

assurance in accordance with applicable laws, appropriate standards and 

guidance issued by the National Audit Office.

Materiality

Planning materiality for the Pension Fund financial statements will again be 

set at 1% of net assets. Specific materiality (at a lower level) may be 

considered appropriate for certain financial statement areas and we set 

materiality for the Fund Account at 5% of contributions.  

At this stage, these figures are based on the current estimated net assets 

and expenditure. This will be revisited when the draft financial statements 

are received for audit.

Although materiality is the judgement of the engagement lead, the Audit and 

Risk Management Committee is obliged to satisfy themselves that the 

materiality chosen is appropriate for the scope of the audit.

SCOPE AND MATERIALITY
Executive summary

OVERALL  
MATERIALITY
£12.6 million

(2019/20 - £10.3 
million)

CLEARLY 
TRIVIAL
£300k

(2019/20 - £212k)

FUND ACCOUNT 
MATERIALITY
£2.2 million

(2019/20 –
£2.09 million) 

CLEARLY TRIVIAL
£50k

(2019/20 - £42k)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risks overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 146



5 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

AUDIT STRATEGY
Executive summary

Our audit strategy is predicated on a risk based approach, so that audit work 

is focused on the areas of the financial statements where the risk of material 

misstatement is assessed to be higher, or where there is a risk that the 

organisation has not made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We have discussed the changes to the Pension Fund, systems and controls in 

the year with management and obtained their own view of potential audit 

risk in order to update our understanding of the Pension Fund’s activities and 

to determine which risks impact on the numbers and disclosures in the 

financial statements. We will continue to update this assessment throughout 

the audit.

The table on the next page summarises our planned approach to audit risks 

identified. 

There has been no significant change to audit risks identified or their 

classification as compared to the prior year. All material areas will be 

subject to a substantive approach.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risks overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 147



6 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

AUDIT RISKS OVERVIEW
Executive summary

Risk identified Risk rating
Fraud risk
present Testing approach

Impact of significant judgements 
and estimates

Management override of controls Significant Yes Substantive Medium

Valuation of investments (unquoted and direct 

property investments)

Significant No Substantive High

Pension liability valuation Significant No Substantive High

Valuation of investments (pooled investments) Normal No Substantive Medium

Contributions receivable Normal No Substantive Medium

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risks overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 148



7 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Independence

We confirm that the firm complies with the Financial Reporting Council’s 

Ethical Standard for Auditors and, in our professional judgement, is 

independent.

INDEPENDENCE AND FEES
Executive summary

Amendments to the proposed fees 

If we need to propose any amendments to the fees during the course of the 

audit, where our assessment of risk and complexity are significantly 

different from those reflected in the proposed fee or where we are required 

to carry out work in exercising our additional powers and duties, we will first 

discuss this with the City Corporation. If necessary, we will also prepare a 

report outlining the reasons why the fee needs to change for discussion with 

the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

Fees

2020/21 2019/20

Code audit fee £22,000 £22,000

1Covid-related costs £3,300 -

PY overruns/triennial review work - TBC

Total audit fees £25,300 £TBC

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Scope and materiality

Audit strategy

Audit risks overview

Independence and fees

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

Fee variances 

1Covid-related costs

This represents an estimate of the additional resource time and costs 

necessary when audits are undertaken remotely.  The 15% is at the lowest 

end of the 15-20% range experienced by BDO and the other audit firms. If 

we are able to undertake some key work on site, the time reflected here 

should reduce and the fee level decrease accordingly.  

P
age 149



8 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Key components of our audit 

objectives and strategy for the 

Pension Fund are highlighted and 

explained on the following pages. 

Audit planning is a collaborative 

and continuous process and our 

audit strategy, as reflected here, 

will be reviewed and updated as 

our audit progresses. 

We will communicate any 

significant changes to our audit 

strategy, should the need for such 

change arise. 

Audit scope and objectives

AUDIT SCOPE AND 

OBJECTIVES
OVERVIEW

Reporting Objectives

Auditing standards We will perform our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing UK (ISAs (UK)) 

and relevant guidance published by the National Audit Office.

Financial statements We will express an opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements, prepared in accordance 

with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2020/21 and other directions.

Statement of 

Accounts

In addition to our objectives regarding the financial statements, we will also read and consider 

the other information contained in the Statement of Accounts to consider whether there is a 

material inconsistency between the other information and the financial statements or other 

information and our knowledge obtained during the audit.

Annual Report We will review the Pension Fund Annual Report and report on the consistency of the Pension 

Fund financial statements within the Annual Report with the Pension Fund financial statements 

in the Statement of Accounts.

Audit Completion 

Report to the Audit 

and Risk Management 

Committee

Prior to the approval of the financial statements, we will discuss our significant findings with 

the Audit and Risk Management Committee. We will highlight key accounting and audit issues as 

well as internal control findings and any other significant matters arising from the audit.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

BDO team

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 150



9 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

An overview of the key dates

• PY debrief meeting 

with management  

(12 February 2021)

DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV

• Planning and risk 

assessment work 

commences

• Clearance meeting with management 

(date TBC)

• Audit and Risk Management Committee 

receives Audit Completion Report and 

approves the Statement of Accounts 

(date TBC)

• Opinion deadline (target date 30 

September 2021)

• Audit and Risk Management Committee 

receives Auditor’s Annual Report

• Fieldwork 

commences 

(July 2021)

AUDIT TIMELINE

• Issue Audit Planning 

Report (14 March 2021)

• Audit and Risk 

Management Committee 

(23 March 2021)

• Draft Statement of 

Accounts deadline  

(28 May 2021)

At the time of drafting this Audit Planning Report, the deadlines for preparing and publishing local authority accounts are subject to consultation, 
as part of the Government’s response to Sir Tony Redmond’s review. The consultation proposes pushing back the final accounts publication date to 
30 September 2021 and requiring draft accounts to be published on or before 1 August 2021, together with a new requirement for local bodies to 
provide an explanation on their website if they miss the revised draft publication date.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

BDO team

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

The timetable above includes dates which have been proposed by Management. We are currently unable to confirm our commitment to this 
timetable as we require visibility of the overall timetable for all of the separate entities being audited and how these interact with each other. 
Since our ability to complete the audit of any individual entity is subject to the satisfactory completion of a number of areas of cross working 
(including, but not limited to, IT audit, payroll, financial investments, cross charges and pensions), our ability to meet this timetable can only be 
agreed in conjunction with the timetables for all other Funds.

P
age 151



10 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Team responsibilities

As audit engagement lead I have primary responsibility to ensure that the appropriate audit 

opinion is given. In meeting this responsibility I ensure that the audit has resulted in obtaining 

sufficient and appropriate evidence to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 

to report on the financial statements and communicate as required by the ISAs (UK), in 

accordance with our findings. 

I am responsible for the overall quality of the engagement and am supported by the rest of the 

team as set out here.

I will be responsible for the day to day supervision of the audit team, and will be responsible 

for the delivery of the key audit work.

I will lead on the audit of the Pension Fund. I work closely with David to develop and execute 

the audit strategy. I will be a key point of contact on a day to day basis and will ensure that 

timelines are carefully managed to ensure that deadlines are met and matters to be 

communicated to Management and the Audit and Risk Management Committee are highlighted 

on a timely basis.

David Eagles
Engagement Lead

t: 01473 320 728

m: 07967 203431

e: david.eagles@bdo.co.uk

Kerry Lin,
Assistant Manager

t: 020 3219 4073

e: kerry.lin@bdo.co.uk

Francesca Palmer, Manager

t: 01473 320739

m: 07970 126254 

e: francesca.palmer@bdo.co.uk

BDO TEAM

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Overview

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks

Audit scope entities, components 

and audit risks 2

Audit timeline

BDO team

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 152



11 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We have assessed the following as audit risks. These are matters assessed as most likely to cause a material misstatement in the financial statements or 

impact on our use of resources opinion and include those that will have the greatest effect on audit strategy, the allocation of audit resources and the 

amount of audit focus by the engagement team.

Key: Significant / Normal

Audit risks

AUDIT RISKS OVERVIEW

Description of risk
Significant 
risk

Normal 
risk Overview of risk

1. Management override of 

controls

Management has the ability to manipulate accounting records and override controls that 

otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We are required to consider this as a significant 

risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

2. Valuation of investments 

(Private equity, infrastructure and 

property funds)

There is a risk that unquoted and direct property investments are not appropriately valued in 

the financial statements due to significant level of assumption and estimation involved in the 

valuation of these assets.

3. Pension liability valuation There is a risk the valuation is not based on appropriate membership data where there are 

significant changes or uses inappropriate assumptions to value the liability.

4. Valuation of investments 

(Pooled investment vehicles and 

other investments)

There is a risk that pooled investments may not be appropriately valued and correctly 

recorded in the financial statements.

5. Contributions receivable There is a risk that employers may not be calculating contributions correctly and paying over 

the full amount dues (on normal and deficit rates).

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 153



12 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

• Management has the ability to manipulate accounting records and override controls that otherwise appear to be 

operating effectively. We are required to consider this as a significant risk of material misstatement due to fraud. 

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Review and verification of journal entries made in the year, agreeing the journals to supporting 

documentation. We will determine key risk characteristics to filter the population of journals. We will use our IT 

team to assist with the journal extraction;

• Review of estimates and judgements applied by management in the financial statements to assess their 

appropriateness and the existence of any systematic bias; and

• Review of unadjusted audit differences for indications of bias or deliberate misstatement. 

MANAGEMENT OVERRIDE OF CONTROLS

Auditing standards  
presume that 
management is in a 
unique position to 
perpetrate fraud by 
overriding controls.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by Council

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 154



13 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

• The investment portfolio includes unquoted private equity, infrastructure and pooled property 

funds which are valued by the fund managers. The valuation of these assets may be subject to a 

significant level of assumption and estimation, and valuations may not be based on observable 

market data. Due to significance of these valuations, even a small change in assumptions and 

estimates could have a material impact on the financial statements. 

• In some cases, the valuations are provided at dates that are not coterminous with the pension 

fund’s year end and need to be updated to reflect cash transactions (additional contributions or 

distributions received) since the latest available valuations. Due to current market volatility the 

valuation received can quickly become outdated. 

• As a result, we consider there to be a significant risk that investments are not appropriately 

valued in the financial statements.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Obtain direct confirmation of investment valuations from the fund managers and request copies of 

the audited financial statements (and member allocations) from the fund;

• Review the valuation completed by the fund manager and any significant assumptions made in the 

valuation; 

• Where the financial statement date supporting the valuation is not conterminous with the pension 

fund’s year end, confirm that appropriate adjustments have been made to the valuations in 

respect of additional contributions and distributions with the funds; and

• Ensure investments have been correctly valued in accordance with the relevant accounting 

policies.

The valuation of 
private equity, 
infrastructure and 
property funds 
investments is a 
significant risk as it 
involves a high degree 
of estimation 
uncertainty.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by Council

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS (PRIVATE EQUITY, INFRASTRUCTURE 
AND PROPERTY FUNDS)

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 155



14 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

An actuarial estimate of the pension fund liability to pay future pensions is calculated by an 

independent firm of actuaries with specialist knowledge and experience. The estimate is based on 

the most up to date membership data held by the Pension Fund and has regard to local factors such 

as mortality rates and expected pay rises along with other assumptions around inflation when 

calculating the liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the pension fund liability was carried out during the 2019/20 

year to calculate the liability as at 31 March 2019. This involved the provision of membership and 

cash flow data from the pension fund to the actuary, data cleansing by the actuary and re-setting 

the financial and actuarial assumptions related to the valuation. The estimate of the pension fund 

liability at 31 March 2021 is based on a roll-forward of data from the 2019 triennial valuation, 

updated where necessary.  

There is a risk the valuation is not based on appropriate membership data (where there are any 

significant changes) or uses inappropriate assumptions to value the liability.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Reviewing the controls in place to ensure that the data provided from the fund to the actuary is 

complete and accurate;

• Test a sample of membership and cash flow data sent to the actuary for existence and 

accuracy, and reconcile the membership data sent to the actuary to the membership 

administration system for completeness;

• Reviewing the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the calculation against other local 

government pension fund actuaries and other observable data. We will use the PwC consulting 

actuary report for the review of the methodology of the actuary and reasonableness of the 

assumptions; 

• Check whether any significant changes in membership data have been communicated to the 

actuary; and

• Agreeing the disclosure to the information provided by the actuary.

The valuation of the 
pension liability is a 
significant risk as it 
involves a high degree 
of estimation 
uncertainty

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

Risk highlighted by Council

VALUATION OF PENSION LIABILITY

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 156



15 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

• The fair value of funds (principally pooled investments) is provided by individual fund managers 

and reviewed by the Custodian (BNY Mellon).  These valuation are reported on a monthly/ 

quarterly basis.

• There is a risk that investments may not be appropriately valued and correctly recorded in the 

financial statements.

Planned audit approach

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Obtain direct confirmation of investment valuations from the fund managers including any 

subsequent final valuations to ‘flash’ valuations in the draft accounts; 

• Ensure that investments have been correctly valued in accordance with the relevant accounting 

policies; and

• Obtain independent assurance reports over the controls operated by both the fund managers and 

custodian for valuations and existence of underlying investments in the funds. 

There is a risk that 
pooled investments 
may not be 
appropriately valued 
and correctly recorded 
in the financial 
statements.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS (POOLED INVESTMENT VEHICLES AND 
OTHER INVESTMENTS)

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of investments 

(unquoted and direct property 

investments)

Pension liability valuation

Valuation of investments (Pooled 

investments)

Contributions receivable 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Going concern

IT general controls

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 157



16 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Risk detail

• Employers are required to deduct amounts from employee pensionable pay based on tiered pay rates 

and to make employer normal and deficit contributions in accordance with rates agreed with the 

actuary.

• Additional contributions are also required against pension strain for unreduced pensions for early 

retirements and augmentation of pensions. 

• There is a risk that employers may not be calculating contributions correctly and paying over the full 

amount due to the pension fund.

Planned audit approach 

Our audit procedures will include the following:

• Test a sample of normal contributions due (and additional deficit contributions where included in a 

higher employer rate) for active members including checking to employer payroll records;

• Review contributions receivable and ensure that income is recognised in the correct accounting 

period where the employer is making payments in the following month; and

• Carry out audit procedures to review contributions income in accordance with the Actuary’s Rates 

and Adjustments Certificate, including specified increased rates to cover the minimum contributions 

to be paid as set out in the Certificate. 

There is a risk that 
employers may not be 
calculating 
contributions correctly 
and paying over the full 
amount due to the 
pension fund.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Fraud risk

Assess design & 
implementation of controls to 
mitigate

Significant Management 
estimates & judgements

Controls testing 
approach

Substantive testing approach

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of investments 

(unquoted and direct property 

investments)

Pension liability valuation

Valuation of investments (Pooled 

investments)

Contributions receivable 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion

Going concern

IT general controls

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 158



17 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

GOING CONCERN

Directors’ responsibilities

It is Management’s responsibility to make an assessment 

of the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a going 

concern to support the basis of preparation for the 

financial statements and disclosures in the financial 

statements. This is a requirement of the accounting 

standards. 

This assessment should be supported by detailed cash flow 

forecasts with clear details of the key underlying 

assumptions, consideration of available finance 

throughout the forecast period, and a consideration of the 

forecast’s sensitivity to reasonably possible variations in 

those assumptions along with any other relevant factors.

The going concern assessment should cover a minimum of 

12 months from the date of the approval of the financial 

statements. However, consideration should also be given 

to any major events or circumstances that may fall 

outside this period. 

Audit responsibilities

Our responsibilities in respect of going concern are:

(a) To obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 

regarding, and conclude on, i) whether a material 

uncertainty related to going concern exists; and ii) 

the appropriateness of Management's use of the 

going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements

(b) To report in accordance with ISA (UK) 570.

We will obtain an understanding of the business model, 

objectives, strategies and related business risk, the 

measurement and review of the Pension Fund’s 

financial performance including forecasting and 

budgeting processes and the risk assessment process. 

We will evaluate:

a) The method, including the relevance and reliability 

of underlying data used to make the assessment, 

whether assumptions and changes to assumptions 

from prior years are appropriate and consistent 

with each other  

b) The plans for future actions in relation to the 

going concern assessment including whether such 

plans are feasible in the circumstances 

c) The adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures in 

the financial statements regarding the going 

concern assessment and any material uncertainties 

that may exist. 

Management are 
required to make an 
assessment of the 
Pension Fund’s ability 
to continue as a going 
concern.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 159



18 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Fraud

Whilst Management of the Corporation have ultimate responsibility for 

prevention and detection of fraud, we are required to obtain reasonable 

assurance that the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement, including those arising as a result of fraud. Our audit 

approach includes the consideration of fraud throughout the audit and 

includes making enquiries of management and those charged with 

governance.

We request confirmation from the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 

fraud and a discussion on the controls and processes in place to ensure 

timely identification and action.

Management believe that there is low risk of material misstatement arising 

from fraud and that controls in operation would prevent or detect material 

fraud.

Accounting policies

We will report to you on significant qualitative aspects of your chosen 

accounting policies. We will consider the consistency and application of the 

policies and we will report to you where accounting policies are inconsistent 

with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2020/21 

under the circumstances.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

We will report to you on significant accounting estimates and judgements.

We will seek to understand and perform audit testing procedures on 

accounting estimates and judgements including consideration of the outcome 

of historical judgements and estimates. We will report to you our 

consideration of whether management estimates and judgements are within 

an acceptable range.

Internal audit

We will ensure that we maximise the benefit of the overall audit effort 

carried out by internal audit and ourselves, whilst retaining the necessary 

independence of view. 

We will review the reports issued by the Corporation’s internal audit 

function although we do not plan place reliance on their work in respect of 

their assessment of control processes

Laws and regulations

We will consider compliance with laws and regulations. We will make 

enquiries of management and review correspondence with the relevant 

authorities. 

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION 

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 160



19 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Related parties

Whilst you are responsible for the completeness of the disclosure of related 

party transactions in the financial statements, we are also required to 

consider related party transactions in the context of fraud as they may 

present greater risk for Management override or concealment or fraud. Our 

audit approach includes the consideration of related party transactions 

throughout the audit including making enquiries of management.

Financial statement disclosures

We will report to you on the sufficiency and content of your financial 

statement disclosures. 

Contingencies

We will request input from the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 

any recent claims.

Any other matters

We will report to you on any other matters relevant to the overseeing of the 

financial reporting process. Where applicable this includes why we consider 

a significant accounting practice that is acceptable under the financial 

reporting framework not to be the most appropriate.

OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING FURTHER DISCUSSION 2

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 161



20 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We are required to include in our auditor’s report an explanation of the 

extent to which the audit is considered capable of detecting irregularities 

(non compliance with laws and regulations), including fraud.

Our audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements as whole are free from material misstatement whether 

due to fraud or error. We design audit procedures to respond to the risk of 

material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising that the risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk 

of not detecting one resulting from error and that irregularities that result 

from fraud might be inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities 

that result from error.

Our audit work will focus on laws and regulations that could give rise to a 

material misstatement in the Pension Fund’s financial statements and may 

include, where appropriate: 

• Obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring 

compliance with laws and regulations

• Enquiries of management, those charged with governance and the 

Corporation’s legal advisers

• Agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting 

documentation

• Review of minutes of relevant Corporation and Pension Fund meetings 

throughout the year and of correspondence with regulatory authorities

• Written representations. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and 

the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the 

events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely 

we would become aware of it.

IRREGULARITIES (INCLUDING FRAUD)

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 162



21 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We will need to obtain an understanding of how you 

control your estimation process including not only the 

design and implementation of the process, but also the 

policies and procedures you put in place to satisfy 

yourself that each step in the process is properly applied, 

and that the resulting accounting estimates are 

reasonable.

For significant accounting estimates, particularly those 

that are complex or where there is a high degree of 

estimation uncertainty we will also make enquiries about 

how you:

• Make those responsible for deriving or changing your 

accounting estimates aware of relevant significant 

transactions, conditions or events

• Review the outcome(s) of previous accounting 

estimates and respond to the results of that review

• Identify and comply with the relevant requirements in 

the applicable financial reporting framework regarding 

your accounting estimates and related disclosures 

including how they are affected by complexity and 

your judgment

• Account for regulatory factors relevant to the Pension 

Fund's accounting estimates;, including, when 

applicable, regulatory frameworks related to 

prudential supervision

• Identify the need for, and apply, specialised skills or 

knowledge related to accounting estimates, including 

with respect to the use of a management's expert 

• Identify and address risks related to accounting 

estimates through your risk assessment process

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Revision to ISA (UK) 
540 means that we may 
need to update our 
approach the audit of 
accounting estimates  -
including  confirmation 
and documentation of 
our understanding of 
the Council’s 
estimation process. 

• Identify relevant methods (including models), 

assumptions and data and the need for changes in 

them and from those identified, and select those to 

apply

• Address the degree of estimation uncertainty in 

selecting your final point estimates 

• Describe in your financial statements matters 

related to your process for deriving your accounting 

estimates, and matters related to the degrees of 

estimation uncertainty underlying your accounting 

estimates 

• Ensure there is oversight and governance in place 

over management's financial reporting process 

relevant to accounting estimates.

Under ISA (UK) 540 (revised) our audit approach will 

involve a more granular risk assessment relating to 

each significant estimate and separate consideration of 

the methods (or models) applied in calculating the 

estimate, the nature, source and reliability of data 

used and the significance, consistency and 

appropriateness of assumptions made.

We will also request written representations from you 

regarding the reasonableness of the methods, 

significant assumptions and the data used in 

determining the monetary amounts of accounting 

estimates, including the related disclosures, in 

accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting 2020/21.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 163



22 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

IT General Controls (ITGCs) are the policies and procedures that relate to 

many IT applications and support the effective functioning of application 

controls by helping to ensure the continued proper operation of information 

systems. They commonly include controls over data center and network 

operations; system software acquisition, change and maintenance; access 

security; and application system acquisition, development, and 

maintenance.

ITGCs are an important component in systems of internal control, and 

sometimes have a direct impact on the reliability of other controls. 

IT assurance is embedded in our audit strategy to ensure the IT systems 

provide a suitable platform for the control environment and is undertaken in 

conjunction with our IT Assurance team. Our testing strategy includes a 

tailored range of data analytics, system configuration and IT environment 

testing.

We will also obtain an understanding of the information system, including 

the related business processes relevant to financial reporting, to include:

• Oracle

• Paris

• iTrent

• Altair

IT GENERAL CONTROLS

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Overview

Management override of controls

Revenue recognition

Expenditure cut-off

Valuation of non-current assets

Valuation of pension liability

Waste Treatment Plant PFI

Use of Resources

Going concern

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 

Other matters requiring further 

discussion 2

Irregularities (including fraud)

Accounting estimates

IT general controls

Ethical Standard

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 164



23 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

In December 2019 the FRC published the Revised Ethical Standard 2019 (‘ES’), which is applicable from 15 March 2020. There are some transitionary 

provisions for services and arrangements that are not currently prohibited under the existing Standard. The ES aims to further strengthen auditor 

independence and enhance confidence in the profession. The table below provides a high level summary of the key headlines as applicable to our audit of the 

Council. 

FRC ETHICAL STANDARD (DECEMBER 2019)ETHICAL STANDARD

Key headlines Impact

The objective, 
reasonable & informed 
third party test 

Reinforcement that ethical principles take priority over rules. A need to take care where particular facts and circumstances are

either not addressed directly by the rules or might appear to ‘work around’ the rules, or result in an outcome that is 

inconsistent with the general principles.

Contingent fees Non-audit services with contingent or success-based fee arrangements will be prohibited for audited entities. 

Secondments All secondments/loan staff to audited entities are prohibited with the exception of secondments to public sector entities.

Recruitment and 
remuneration services

Prohibition on providing remuneration services to audited entities such as advising on the quantum of the remuneration package 

or the measurement criteria for calculation of the package.  In addition, the prohibition on providing recruitment services to an 

audited entity that would involve the firm taking responsibility for, or advising on the appointment of, any director or employee 

of the entity.

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

FRC Ethical Standard (December 

2019)

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 165



24 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

We have embedded the requirements of the auditing 

standards in our methodologies, tools and internal 

training programmes. Our internal procedures require 

that audit engagement leads are made aware of any 

matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on 

the integrity, objectivity or independence of the firm, 

the members of the engagement team or others who 

are in a position to influence the outcome of the 

engagement. 

This document considers such matters in the context of 

our audit for the year ending 31 March 2021.

We confirm that the firm, the engagement team and 

other partners, directors, senior managers and 

managers  conducting the audit comply with relevant 

ethical requirements including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard and are independent of the Corporation and 

Pension Fund.

We also confirm that we have obtained confirmation 

that external audit experts involved in the audit 

comply with relevant ethical requirements including 

the FRC’s Ethical Standard and are independent of the 

Corporation and the Pension Fund.

Should you have any comments or queries regarding 

any independence matters we would welcome their 

discussion in more detail.

Non-audit services

Details of services, other than audit, provided by us to 

the Pension Fund during the period and up to the date 

of this report are set out in the fees table on page 7. 

Should you have any comments or queries regarding 

any independence matters we would welcome their 

discussion in more detail. 

Under ISAs (UK) and the 
FRC’s Ethical Standard 
we are required, as 
auditors, to confirm 
our independence. 

INDEPENDENCE INDEPENDENCE

CONTENTS

Introduction

Executive summary

Audit scope and objectives

Audit risks

Ethical Standard

Independence

Independence

Appendices contents

P
age 166



A Responsibilities 30

Council’s responsibilities 30

Our responsibilities 31

Communication with you 32

B Independence 33

Team member rotation 33

C Materiality 34

Materiality: Definition and application 34

APPENDICES CONTENTS

Materiality: Definition and application 35

D Accounting Standards 36

New Accounting Standards, Auditing Standards and Other 

Financial Reporting Developments 
36

E AQR Results 37

AQR Results 2019/20 37

AQR Results 2019/20 2 38P
age 167



26 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Financial reporting

The Corporation and Pension Fund are expected to have effective governance arrangements to deliver their objectives. To this end, the publication of the 

financial statements is an essential means by which the Corporation accounts for its stewardship and use of the public money at its disposal.

The form and content of the Corporation’s and Pension Fund’s financial statements, and any additional schedules or returns for consolidation purposes, 

should reflect the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework in place and any applicable accounting standards or other direction 

under the circumstances.

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for preparing and filing a Statement of Accounts and financial statements which show a true and fair view in 

accordance with CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2020/21, applicable accounting standards or other direction under the circumstances.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve management nor those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of 

materially accurate financial statements. 

The Corporation’s responsibilities and reporting

CORPORATION’S RESPONSIBILITIESRESPONSIBILITIES

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 168



27 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Our responsibilities and reporting – financial 
reporting

We are responsible for performing our audit under 

International Standards on Auditing (UK) to form and 

express an opinion on your financial statements. We 

report our opinion on the financial statements to the 

members of the Corporation. 

We read and consider the ‘other information’ 

contained in the Annual Report such as the additional 

narrative reports. We will consider whether there is a 

material inconsistency between the other information 

and the financial statements or other information and 

our knowledge obtained during the audit.

What we don’t report

Our audit is not designed to identify all matters that 

may be relevant to the Corporation and the Audit and 

Risk Management Committee and cannot be expected 

to identify all matters that may be of interest to you 

and, as a result, the matters reported may not be the 

only ones which exist. 

Responsibilities and reporting

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 169



28 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Those charged with governance

References in this report to ‘those charged with governance’ are to the 

Corporation as a whole. For the purposes of our communication with those 

charged with governance you have agreed we will communicate primarily 

with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Communication, meetings and feedback

We request feedback from you on our planning and completion report to 

promote two way communication throughout the audit process and to ensure 

that all risks are identified and considered; and at completion that the 

results of the audit are appropriately considered. We will meet with 

management throughout the audit process. We will issue regular updates and 

drive the audit process with clear and timely communication, bringing in the 

right resource and experience to ensure efficient and timely resolution of 

issues.

Audit Planning Report

The Audit Planning Report sets out all planning matters which we want to 

draw to your attention including audit scope, our assessment of audit risks 

and materiality. 

Internal Controls

We will consider internal controls relevant to the preparation of financial 

statements in order to design our audit procedures and complete our work. 

This is not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

internal control. 

Audit Completion Report

At the conclusion of the audit, we will issue an Audit Completion Report to 

communicate to you key audit findings before concluding our audit opinion. 

We will include any significant deficiencies in internal controls which we 

identify as a result of performing audit procedures. We will meet with you to 

discuss the findings and in particular to receive your input on areas of the 

financial statements involving significant estimates and judgements and 

critical accounting policies. 

Once we have discussed the contents of the Audit Completion Report with 

you and having resolved all outstanding matters we will issue a final version 

of the report.

COMMUNICATION WITH YOU

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 170



29 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Senior team 
members

Number of years 
involved

Rotation to take place 
after 

David Eagles
Engagement lead

1 10 years

Francesca Palmer
Manager

2 10 years

These tables indicates the latest rotation periods normally permitted under 

the independence rules of the FRC’s Ethical Standard. 

In order to safeguard audit quality we will employ a policy of gradual 

rotation covering the team members as well as other senior members of the 

engagement team to ensure a certain level of continuity from year to year. 

Independence - engagement team rotation

TEAM MEMBER ROTATIONINDEPENDENCE

Independence – audit quality control

Number of years 
involved

Rotation to take place 
after 

Engagement quality 

control reviewer

3 7 years

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 171



30 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

Concept and definition

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial 

statements and the audit process and applies not only to monetary 

misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to 

appropriate accounting principles and statutory requirements.

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our 

audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. For planning, we 

consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including 

omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that 

are taken on the basis of the financial statements. In order to reduce to an 

appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed 

materiality, we use a lower materiality level, performance materiality, to 

determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below 

these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take 

account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular 

circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the 

financial statements as a whole.

Materiality therefore has qualitative as well as quantitative aspects and an 

item may be considered material, irrespective of its size, if it has an impact 

on (for example):

• Narrative disclosure e.g. accounting policies, going concern

• Instances when greater precision is required (e.g. disclosure of senior 

officers’ remuneration and related party transactions).

International Standards on Auditing (UK) also allow the auditor to set a lower 

level of materiality for particular classes of transactions, account balances 

or disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for 

the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 

statements.

Calculation and determination

We have determined materiality based on professional judgement in the 

context of our knowledge of the Pension Fund, including consideration of 

factors such as industry developments, financial stability and reporting 

requirements for the financial statements.

We determine materiality in order to:

• Assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests

• Calculate sample sizes

• Assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements on the 

Group financial statements.

Reassessment of materiality

We will reconsider materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, 

we become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to 

make a different determination of planning materiality if we had been 

aware.

Further, when we have performed all our tests and are ready to evaluate the 

results of those tests (including any misstatements we detected) we will 

reconsider whether materiality combined with the nature, timing and extent 

of our auditing procedures, provided a sufficient audit scope.

MATERIALITY: DEFINITION AND APPLICATION MATERIALITY

Definition of materiality under IFRS 

Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could 
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of 
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial 
statements, which provide financial information about a specific 
reporting entity.

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 172



31 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

MATERIALITY: DEFINITION AND APPLICATION

If we conclude that our audit scope was sufficient, we will use materiality to 

evaluate whether uncorrected misstatements (individually or in aggregate) 

are material.

You should be aware that any misstatements that we identify during our 

audit, both corrected and uncorrected errors, might result in additional 

audit procedures being necessary.

Unadjusted errors

We will communicate to you all uncorrected misstatements identified during 

our audit, other than those which we believe are ‘clearly trivial’.

Clearly trivial is defined as matters which will be of a wholly different 

(smaller) order of magnitude than the materiality thresholds used in the 

audit, and will be matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 

individually or in aggregate.

We will obtain written representations from the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee confirming that in their opinion these uncorrected misstatements 

are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate and that, in the context 

of the financial statements taken as a whole, no adjustments are required.

We will request that you correct all uncorrected misstatements. In particular 

we would strongly recommend correction of errors whose correction would 

affect compliance with contractual obligations or governmental regulations. 

Where you choose not to correct all identified misstatements we will request 

a written representation from you setting out your reasons for not doing so 

and confirming that in your view the effects of any uncorrected 

misstatements are immaterial, individually and in aggregate, to the financial 

statements as whole.

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 173



32 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AUDITING STANDARDS AND OTHER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING DEVELOPMENTS 

We would like to draw to your attention the following summary of key changes to standards, regulations and other financing reporting developments, their 

effective dates and an indication, based on preliminary discussions with management and our sector understanding, of their possible effect on the annual 

report.

ACCOUNTING 

STANDARDS

New Accounting Standards, Auditing Standards and Other 
Financial Reporting Developments Expected effect

Effective for periods beginning 
on or after 1 January

None Low Medium High 2020 2021

Auditing standard – audit of accounting estimates

Increased emphasis on understanding management’s processes,

systems and controls estimation uncertainty  and financial 

statement disclosures 

 

Auditing standard – going concern

Increased emphasis on evaluation of management's assessment 

of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern

 

Auditing standard - audit reports

New audit report format with updated conclusion on going 

concern and reference to irregularities, including fraud 

 

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 174



33 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

AQR RESULTS 2019/20
BDO Performance 

AQR RESULTS 

Overview

The FRC released their Audit Quality Review results for the 7 largest 

accountancy firms in July 2020 for the review period 2019/20. A copy of all 

of the reports can be found on the FRC Website. 

Firm’s Results

The graphs demonstrates our performance in relation to the other 6 largest 

firms. Having topped the table for audit quality for the last two consecutive 

years, we are disappointed to see a decline in our results. These scores 

remind us we must remain committed to continuous improvements and, 

having carefully considered the root causes of the AQR findings, we are in 

the process of implementing detailed action plans where required. We have 

made a number of enhancements to our Audit Quality Plan to address these 

issues to drive our key focus of a continuous improvement in audit quality 

including highlighting how we will make changes to our root cause analysis 

process which plays a key role. 

We would encourage you to read our report which includes: 

• Details of the root cause analysis we have been undertaking to address 

issues raised

• The actions we have/are undertaking to address the issues raised by the 

AQR 

• A number of areas of good practice the AQR review team identified whilst 

undertaking their review. 

More details will be included in our Transparency Report which will be 

available on our www.bdo.co,uk 

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 175



34 | BDO LLPCity of London Pension Fund - Audit Planning Report for the year ending 31 March 2021

AQR RESULTS 2019/20 2
BDO Performance 

May be at Individual assignment or ‘whole-firm’ level:

• Identification and assessment of root cause 

• Productive process to learn from matters and 

improve quality

• “Best practice” examples treated in the same way 

as “issues” 

• Consideration of appropriate responses to issues 

identified, proposed and escalated as appropriate

Responses may include:
• Updating operational practices
• Embedding matter into performance 

review and development process for staff
• Staff coaching
• Amending audit approach firm-wide or 

for specific assignments
• Targeted messaging to relevant 

audiences (e.g. grades, ranks or sector 
specialists)

• Updated guidance material
Responses inform training plans

Considerations of how to address:
• Behavioural matters
• Operational changes required
• Cultural matters to be escalated

Completed files may be subject to:
• Internal Audit Quality Assurance 

Review
• External review from AQR or QAD

Live files require:
• Review of audit quality by senior 

team members
and may require:
• Hot review of financial statements
• Technical support for audit work
• Appointment of engagement quality 

control reviewer

Nature of matters may be:

• Client/assignment specific issues 

• Common findings/repeating issues that 

have need to be  tracked and/or 

escalated

• Firm-wide matters

• “Best practice” examples

Cycle of 
continuous 

improvement

1

3

24

CONTENTS

Appendices contents

Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Communication with you

Independence

Materiality

Materiality: Definition and 

application

Accounting Standards

AQR Results 

AQR Results 2019/20 2

P
age 176



FOR MORE INFORMATION: The matters raised in our report prepared in connection with the audit are those we 

believe should be brought to your attention. They do not purport to be a complete record 

of all matters arising. This report is prepared solely for the use of the company and may 

not be quoted nor copied without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third 

party is accepted.

BDO is an award winning UK member firm of BDO International, the world’s fifth largest 

accountancy network, with more than 1,500 offices in over 160 countries.

BDO LLP is a corporate establishment under the Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000 and 

a UK Member Firm of BDO International. BDO Northern Ireland, a separate partnership, 

operates under a licence agreement. BDO LLP and BDO Northern Ireland are both 

separately authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct 

investment business.

© 2021 BDO LLP. All rights reserved.

www.bdo.co.uk

David Eagles

Partner

t: 01473 320728

m: 07967 203431

e: david.eagles@bdo.co.ukP
age 177



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 178



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 23/03/2021 

Subject: Internal Audit Progress Report Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

N/A 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding? N/A 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management For Information 

Report author: Matt Lock 
 

 
 

Summary 
 

This report provides an update on Internal Audit activity since the last Internal Audit 
Update Report presented to this Committee in January 2021.  The report 
summarises work completed and progress against the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan.  
Delivery of which has been indirectly impacted by the Coronavirus pandemic. 
 
Finally, the report describes the findings of Audit follow-up work completed to verify 
the implementation of Audit recommendations. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to: 
 

▪ Note the report. 
 

Main Report 

Background 

1. This report provides a cumulative update on the work of Internal Audit since 1 
April 2020, building on the progress report made to the last update provided to 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 13 January 2021.  The report also 
summarises the findings of work completed since the January update. 

 
Current Position 
 
2. 5 Final Audit Reports have been issued since the January update, bringing the 

total to 38 since 1 April 2020.  3 Amber Assurance ratings were given, 2 Green 
Assurance ratings and no Red Assurance Ratings.  Those audit reviews are 
summarised in the table below: 

 

Page 179

Agenda Item 8



  

Recommendations 
Made 

Department/Audit 
Assurance 
Rating Red Amber Green 

Barbican Centre - Facilities Management Amber 0 13 1 

Barbican Centre - Security Amber 0 4 2 

Corporate HR - Gender/Equalities Pay Gap Reporting Amber 0 3 1 

Corporate Wide - Climate Action/Air Quality Green 0 0 0 

Town Clerks - Social Media Green 0 0 1 

 
3. Appropriate management action plans are in place to address recommendations 

made.  Briefings on the above have been circulated to Members of the 
Committee. 

 
4. While the Internal Audit Update usually focusses on Final Audit Reports issued, 

there is one item to include that is, at the time of writing, at Draft Report stage, 
although expected to be finalised by the time this Committee meets.  A brief 
summary of the findings of this Audit review is set out below, with a more detailed 
summary circulated separately to Members: 

 
Operational Property Management – Repairs and Maintenance (Amber Assurance) 

 
5. This Internal Audit review was been undertaken to assess the adequacy of 

arrangements in place for effective management of operational property, in 
particular; the identification, prioritisation and execution of planned/routine 
maintenance work, reactive maintenance work and longer term 
improvement/upgrade works, and the effectiveness of wider governance 
arrangements in relation to operational property management. 

 
6. The Audit identified that: 

 
▪ The approach to managing operational property repairs & maintenance is 

inconsistent across departments 
▪ Roles and responsibilities are not consistently understood, we cannot be 

confident that an appropriate Chief Officer is actively managing each 
operational property asset, particularly where there are shared 
maintenance responsibilities. 

▪ As a result of the division of responsibilities between some departments 
and the City Surveyor, there is no “master list” of all repairs and 
maintenance requirements and so no single point of oversight for ensuring 
that properties are maintained to a good standard  

▪ Corporate Assets Sub-Committee is not receiving all necessary 
information to ensure that it is able to meet its full remit in relation to 
oversight of the entire operational property portfolio 

▪ The City’s financial budget defines what R&M work is undertaken, the 
disaggregation of budget and Chief Officer control can result in “local” 
choices being made, particularly in relation to ring-fenced property 

Page 180



▪ The current arrangement (shared responsibility) gives rise to confusion, 
duplication of effort and gaps in meeting a consistent standard and inhibits 
a clear understanding of accountabilities at Chief Officer level.   

 
 

Delivery of Planned Internal Audit Work 
 

7. In addition to the finalised audits referred to above, work is in progress for 28 
planned audit reviews, 21 of which are substantially complete (including 11 at 
draft report stage). As previously reported, there have been a greater number of 
reviews simultaneously in progress than would ordinarily be the case, reflecting 
the response to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  At this point in the year, however, this 
is consistent with the spike of activity as remaining work is brought to a close at 
year-end.  Overall Audit Plan delivery is summarised in the table below: 

 

 2020/21 Audit Plan Delivery  

 Audit Review Status Count 
Percentage 
of Count 

Audit 
Days 

 Final Report 38 53% 235 

W
o

rk
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s Draft Report 11 15% 144 

Fieldwork Complete 1 1% 10 

Fieldwork in Progress 9 13% 107 

Terms of Reference Issued 7 10% 86 

Planning 3 4% 33 

        

 Not started 3 4% 43 

 Total 72 100% 658 

 Notes: reflects amendments to plan 

 
 

8. I am fully confident that the team will complete sufficient work to be able to inform 
the Head of Audit Annual Opinion, anticipating that 90% of the Audit Plan will be 
completed to at least draft report stage. 

 

Internal Audit Follow-up Activity 

9. Since the January update, follow-up reviews have been undertaken in relation to 
9 Internal Audit Reviews to assess progress in the implementation of Audit 
recommendations.  The outcome of those reviews is summarised below: 
 
▪ In 3 cases, all recommendations were found to be implemented, resulting in a 

Green revised assurance opinion (one of which was a second follow-up 
review) 

▪ In 2 cases, there was one recommendation where mitigating action was not 
fully complete, Green revised assurance opinions were provided 

Page 181



▪ In 3 cases the follow-up review found that progress in recommendation 
implementation was not in accordance with the target dates provided by 
management, subsequent follow-up reviews will be undertaken   

▪ There are no issues to escalate to Committee at this time 
 

10. The table below shows the summary of outcomes from follow-up activity: 
 

Department/Audit 

Original 
Assurance 
Rating 

Total 
Outstanding 
Recs  

Revised 
Assurance 
Rating 

Barbican Centre - Fraud Risk Management Amber 0 Amber 

City of London Police - Front Desks Amber 2 Amber 

Aldgate School - Child and Family Centre Green 0 Green 

City of London School - Cyber Amber 0 Green 

City of London Freemens School - Cyber Amber 0 Green 

City of London School for Girls - Cyber Amber 1 Green 

City Surveyors - Cyber Amber 0 Green 

Community and Children's Services Amber 2 Amber 

Markets and Consumer Protection - HARC and Animal Welfare Amber 0 Green 

 
 

Corporate & Strategic Implications 
 
11. The Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide assurance as to the adequacy of the City 

of London Corporation’s systems of internal control and governance.  This programme 
of activity is aligned with the Corporate Plan, Corporate Risk Register and 
Departmental Top Risks.   

Conclusion 

12. After initial delays to the delivery of work against the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan 
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, Internal Audit work continues to progress 
at pace.  The Head of Audit and Risk Management is confident that sufficient 
work will be completed this year to inform the Annual Opinion.   

 

 
Appendices 
 

▪ None 

 

Matt Lock 
Head of Audit and Risk Management, Chamberlain’s Department 
 
E: matt.lock@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
T: 020 7332 1276 

 

Page 182



Committee: 
 

Dated: 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 
 

23/03/2021 

Subject: CR17 Safeguarding Risk Deep Dive Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

1,2 & 4 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of funding? N/A 

Has this funding source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Andrew Carter, Director of Community and 
Children’s Services 

For information 

Report author:  
Sharon McLaughlin, Business Support Manager, 
Community and Children’s Services 

 
 

Summary 
 

This report is to update members on the work undertaken to mitigate the Corporate 
Risk - CR 17 Safeguarding, relating to the protection of children and adults at risk, 
defined as an adult with social care needs, who is or may be at risk of significant 
harm. 
 

Failure to follow the safeguarding polices and the arrangements in place designed 
to prevent harm to children and adults at risk may result in harm to service users 
and risks to the City of London’s reputation, possible investigation and a reduction 
in public confidence in the services provided. 
 

The City of London is a strategic partner alongside the London Borough of 
Hackney in relation to safeguarding and the City and Hackney Safeguarding 
Children Partnership (CHSCP) and the City and Hackney Safeguarding Adult 
Board (CHSAB) monitor the effectiveness of work to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children and adults, championing good practice and analysing data to 
inform service planning. The Director for Community and Children Services and 
the Assistant Director (AD) People Services sit on both Boards. The City specific 
sub-committees, which meet bi-monthly, for both children and adults and report on 
the work of the sub-committees into the main Boards, are Independently chaired 
and have representation from the City of London Corporation, City of London 
Police, Health, Education and other agencies, for example from the Voluntary 
Sector, who work across the City of London. 
 

Community and Children Services Grand Committee has a Safeguarding Sub 
Committee for Children and Adults. This sub-committee oversees the City of 
London’s responsibilities to safeguard children and adults at risk.  Annual reports 

Page 183

Agenda Item 9



on both Children and Adults Safeguarding are presented to this sub-committee, 
these reports provide background information regarding the governance 
arrangements, membership, partnership engagement and performance information 
in respect of safeguarding activity for Children and Adults.  These reports have 
also been presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board and safer City Partnership. 
 

The number of child protection investigations and adult Safeguarding alerts is very 
low compared to other local authorities. The City of London aims to be proactive in 
the response to safeguarding and is seeking to promote a broader understanding 
of safeguarding. This is reflected in a focus on the prevention of abuse as well as a 
robust response to incidents of abuse. The importance of strong strategic links with 
other key partners such as the City of London Police, Education and Health is 
recognised as essential in order to ensure that all our residents are safeguarded 
both within the community and in their homes. 
 

The Covid-19 pandemic has affected the way services have been delivered and a 
significant part of this report addresses how safeguarding has continued to 
addressed despite the impact of the pandemic. 
 

Mitigating actions include the delivery of safeguarding training programmes, the 
Adoption of a Corporate Safeguarding Policy, the appointment of Safeguarding 
Champions across the City of London and campaigns to raise awareness. 
 

The gross risk is currently assessed as AMBER with the likelihood rated as rare 
and the impact serious, see appendix 1. Despite a range of mitigating actions to 
protect children and adults at risk, they cannot entirely eliminate the risk and the 
potential impact on individuals, public confidence and the reputation of the City of 
London and this is reflected in the risk score assigned to this important statutory 
duty. 

 
 

Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

• Note this report 
 
 
 

Main Report 

Background 
 
1. The Adults and Children’s Social Care teams continue to meet Care Quality 

Commission (CQC) and Ofsted performance targets in respect of children and adults 
and work has been done to develop a performance framework that places more 
emphasis onto qualitative data available rather than focusing solely on the quantitative 
information to measure the effectiveness of safeguarding arrangements across the 
partnership. 

 

Page 184



2. Ofsted carried out an inspection of Children’s Social Care Services in March 2020, 
this resulted in an ‘Outstanding’ grade. An action plan has been produced to ensure 
that the needs of children continue to be consistently prioritised 

 

3. A Safeguarding in Education Forum has engagement from all City of London Schools. 
This meets on a termly basis and provides updated information regarding 
national/regional and/or local policy and practice requirements regarding safeguarding 
in schools. Membership of the Forum includes representatives from the City of 
London Academies. 

 

4. The City of London Safeguarding Policy was implemented in 2014 and is reviewed on 
an annual basis. Audit mechanisms have been put in place to ensure sufficient 
oversight of the City of London’s safeguarding responsibilities, including those outside 
of the Local Authority area and those which apply to its charitable elements. 

 

5. The network of Safeguarding Champions to fully embed safeguarding responsibilities 
across the organisation has been relaunched. Some of the existing champions have 
moved on or no longer perform this role. Chief Officers have been asked to nominate a 
Safeguarding Champion for their departments, and to report to the Director of 
Community and Children’s Services every six months on the discharge of their 
safeguarding responsibilities. Work on these actions has been delayed due to 
demands relating to the Covid-19 response and to the impact of the Target Operating 
Model (TOM) which will lead to some departmental restructures. 

 

6. Work will continue on ensuring Safeguarding champions are identified in each 
department once the full impact of the TOM has been implemented.  This action is 
highlighted on the risk register with a new target date of May 2022. 
 

7. Business continuity arrangements relating to Mosaic (Adult and Children Information 
system) reliability issues have been reviewed in the light of the Hackney Council 
cyber-attack which resulted in the out of hours service commissioned from Hackney 
being unable to access records on the City of London system. 
 

8. Special arrangements have been put in place to ensure the out of hours service has 
access to City of London client records as regular downloads of clients and contact 
information can be made available.  Although investigations are ongoing discussions 
with our own Information Technology team have identified that due to the architecture 
of City of London systems, a similar attack would not result in the range of issues 
encountered by Hackney. 
 

9. Work continues on raising awareness of the role of the Local Authority Designated 
Officer (LADO) role.  The LADO has delivered training to the Early Years Provider 
Forum which is well attended by managers from nursery settings across the City.  The 
department also hosted the National LADO conference in May 2019, this has 
significantly raised the profile of the City nationally and may well have been the reason 
for an increased number of referrals from other agencies outside the City of London 
since the conference. 

Page 185



Covid-19 
 

Adult Social Care  
10. Adult Social Care delivery and a duty social care system have been maintained 

throughout and has included face to face contact where that is necessary. Where 
appropriate additional resources have been made available. 

 
11. The independent Chair of the Adult Safeguarding Board has advised that the regular 

meetings of the City sub-group (quarterly) and the City and Hackney Safeguarding 
Adult Board Executive (monthly) have been and continue to provide effective 
mechanisms for reporting by partners, monitoring the impact and obtaining 
assurances regarding responsiveness, since March 2020. 

 
12. In terms of specific issues for safeguarding adults in the City, there are the ongoing 

challenges of safeguarding homeless people and learning from practice over the past 
months to inform work over the next phase. A dedicated social worker to work in this 
area has been appointed with the aim of improving safeguarding practice, prevention 
of abuse and protection for this client group. 

 
13. There are regional and national concerns about increases in domestic abuse 

(including intergenerational abuse), COVID-19 related scams, and mental health 
impact which relates to increasing levels of self-neglect and potentially suicide. There 
are also infection control and quality issues regarding care provision (not only in Care 
Homes) that interface with safeguarding. These areas have been, and continue to be, 
discussed and addressed at the meetings described above. We have continued to 
review the data and augmented this with a 'deep dive' into a sample of casework from 
a range of partners to understand better the impact of COVID-19 on risks in peoples' 
lives, and will continue to seek appropriate responses from partner agencies.  

 
Children social care, early help, early years and education  

 
14. Multi agency engagement in strategic and operational delivery of children’s social care 

has improved significantly due to the whole system implementation of virtual working.  
 
15. Whilst this new way of working will not fully replace some key meetings benefiting from 

face to face engagement (such as child protection conferences and supervision 
meetings), the ability to maintain a line of sight and grip on areas of casework has 
been enhanced through the use of virtual working arrangements. The service has 
found that some young people prefer this way of communicating.  

 
16. Throughout the pandemic the service has been able to ensure that all children and 

young people known to Children Social Care have been contacted, either virtually or 
face to face, at greater levels of frequency than prior to the pandemic.  

 
17. Delivery has benefitted – and the service learnt – from better triangulation of data 

across services areas to identify vulnerable children across Education, Early Years, 
Early Help and Children Social Care. This has helped the department to retain line of 
sight on the most vulnerable children in the City and ensure they are engaging in 
learning opportunities both in school and where applicable, virtually.  

 

Page 186



18. The approach ensured that all the identified vulnerable children in the City were 
confirmed to have access to learning both during the first wave and remains in place 
to address issues in the situation ahead. This system will be retained as a key 
information sharing tool to support improved partnership working with vulnerable 
children and families in the City.  

 
19. The department has written to all care leavers offering advice and guidance re: COVID 

19 and sees ongoing communication and engagement with vulnerable children and 
young people as key to understanding their lived experience of COVID and how we 
can best support them.  

 
20. The department continues to work with children looked after and care leavers via the 

City of London Children in Care Council and the London Children in Care Council. The 
department has raised with the DfE concerns about the impact of COVID on the 
employment opportunities for care leavers. The department is looking internally within 
the Corporation and externally to see how we might offset any economic pressures 
and increase opportunities for vulnerable children and young.  

 
21. The Corporate Parenting Strategy and Annual report was presented to the Community 

and Children’s Services Grand Committee in March 2021 and a member briefing 
event on the role of the Corporate Parent will be taking place in June 2021. 

 
Rough sleeping services  
 

22. The department’s rough sleeping service acted urgently to secure the government’s 
commitment to “everyone in”. Direction and considerable pressure came from the 
relevant government department and Greater London Authority.  

 
23. The department has leased the Youth Hostel Association building on Carter Lane to 

provide emergency accommodation. Securing this accommodation and agreeing the 
lease was complex. Mobilising and co-ordinating the inputs of several departments 
was challenging in the face of competing priorities faced by those colleagues and led 
to delays. There is very little capacity in the department to secure and mobilise 
unplanned services, and staff worked excessive hours to achieve this.  

 
24. Documentation requiring completion by partner departments in relation to this service 

has been huge, and often required professional expertise to complete. The corporate 
approach to risk management was also hampering when the focus needed to be on 
delivering the required outcome.  

 
25. The department also mobilised additional health and support services and has acted 

as the lead commissioned for a pan-London Homeless Drug and Alcohol Service.  
 
26. The flexibility and responsiveness of the service has secured additional resources and 

delivery during an unprecedented time. In doing so it has saved lives among some of 
the most vulnerable in the City’s communities. 

 
27. Members have shown pro-active leadership in for pushing for expanded and better 

pathways to sustainable accommodation and supporting officers at this 
unprecedented time.  

Page 187



Mental health and wellbeing  
 
28. The department has worked with partners to mitigate and prevent impacts of the 

pandemic on mental health and wellbeing, and ensure essential services continue for 
those who have a mental health diagnosis.  

 
29. A range of initiatives have been put in place by the department directly, or through its 

work with partners – notably City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) – 
to deliver support for those experience mental ill health during the pandemic.  

 
30. Kooth – a specialist mental health service for young people – was commissioned by 

the CCG. GP services promoted this to their young patients and the service promoted 
across a range of local channels, including social media.  

 
31. Mental health services and support targeting frontline workers during the pandemic – 

such as Frontline19 – have been promoted in a joint approach involving the 
department, LB Hackney, Bart’s Health, East London Foundation trust, Homerton 
University Hospital Trust and the CCG. Similar initiatives exist in the neighbouring 
local authority and CCG areas.  

 
32. The Children and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) and community mental 

health services for adults have continued to operate throughout.  
 

Schools 
 

33. Throughout the pandemic, schools received regular updated COVID guidance and 
resources that can be distributed to parents, staff, and pupils to provide general 
guidance. These resources were in different languages, for SEND pupils and available 
in many forms included printed material, videos, animations, and phone messages.  

 
34.  Advanced training for leadership occurred in risk assessment and assurance and in 

equalities analysis. Schools worked closely in partnership including working 
collectively to ensure all pupil premium children and others without online access were 
quickly able to access computers with data and a range of high-quality online lesson 
material.  

 
35. In the City of London, the department was able to quickly secure provision of 

education hubs for both primary and secondary pupils if they were needed. Most 
schools across the family of schools remained open throughout the crisis and provided 
high quality education to vulnerable pupils and those of key workers. Attendance was 
generally low, but the pupils who did attend have benefitted from the provision in 
terms of both social and academic development. All schools offered virtual provision, 
and this was most successful when it was a timetabled provision with very clear and 
consequential expectations around attendance.  

 
36. Additional mental health support services are available to both pupils and teachers. All 

school have access to mental health training and have designed post-trauma recovery 
curricula. Additional training and support have also been provided to manage any 
behavioural challenges as pupils returned to school.   

 

Page 188



37. The City of London Safer Schools App was launched in May 2020 to promote 
increased safety online and will be reviewed after half-term to capture and learning 
and future developments. It is of note that Ofsted identified Aldgate School as a pilot 
site for an assurance visit in early September due to the positive feedback they had 
received regarding the work of the school during the pandemic. The school has been 
open throughout.  

 
38. The City of London Corporation has provided vouchers to city resident children who 

are eligible for free school meals and officers and members continue to explore the 
viability and effectiveness of ongoing support. This builds on extensive support 
provided during lockdown (wave 1) and impressive work by Aldgate School. The 
department is reviewing the impact of current approaches to child poverty to see how 
these could be improved.  

 
Digital inclusion  
 
39. The reliance on digital platforms for most communication and service delivery has 

been significant during the pandemic period.  
 
40. The department acted ahead of government support to ensure children and young 

people at risk of missing education and learning due to digital exclusion were 
supported. Over 50 children and young people were identified and supported with 
devices and data to ensure they could access their education. Those targeted include 
children in care, those with special education needs and disabilities, children and 
young people engaged with Early Help services, and those identified by the Aldgate 
School.  

 
41. Access to free internet services was hampered by the closure of libraries and 

community centres. For households required to shield, internet access could provide a 
means to shop and have social contact. At the suggestion of Members as scheme 
was mobilised to provide free data to low income shielding households.  

 
42. The challenge of digital inclusion has been widely reported and recognised locally, 

regionally and nationally. The department is reviewing initiatives and best practice to 
identify how it can overcome device, skills and data poverty, and how such 
approaches may support wider objectives to tackle financial exclusion and social 
isolation.  

 
Adult Education and Skills 

 
43. The Adult Skills and Education Service (ASES) is small team and there is a focus on 

building relationships with learners to promote a culture of openness, where 
individuals feel comfortable raising concerns with staff.  Despite the size of the team, 
all education providers are required to create Designating Safeguarding Leads 
(DSLs). There needs to be at least two, and ideally a small team of people with a 
minimum of Level 3 safeguarding training. However, there is currently a potential 
single point of failure for safeguarding arrangements within ASES due to there being 
one DSL. ASES management are recruiting a safeguarding consultant and a 
safeguarding training provider organisation to instigate a programme of rapid training 

Page 189



to at least Level 3 for a new DSL and a small group of people including a deputy 
safeguarding lead to ensure sufficient coverage.  

 
44. Updated training is being sourced across the service to ensure up to date 

safeguarding training of staff and sufficient members of the Advisory Board. 
 

Conclusion 

45. The owner of this risk is the Director of Community and Children’s Services, however 
every department has a responsibility to ensure that staff are aware of the risk and 
how they should recognise and respond to safeguarding issues. The corporate 
safeguarding audit recommendations will drive forward a work plan of raising 
awareness and understanding of child and adult safeguarding across the organisation.   

 
46. Social Care staff are fully trained and have the knowledge to enable them to detect 

signs of abuse, ill treatment and exploitation. It is essential that this awareness is 
continued across the organisation as many other departments come into contact with 
children and adults at risk. 

 
47. The pandemic has had an impact on delivery of services and have had to adapt to the 

changing context. Therefore, there are plans to keep under review the new ways of 
working to ensure needs continue to be identified and met.   

 
48. Risk of abuse is an ongoing risk and whilst the City of London has taken a series of 

mitigating actions there is always a degree of uncertainty due to the nature of this risk. 
 
Appendices 
 

• Appendix 1: CR17 Risk and current actions 
 

Page 190



 

 

CR17 - Safeguarding Risk             Appendix 1 
 

Risk no, title, 
creation date, 
owner 

Risk Description (Cause, Event, Impact)  Current Risk Rating 
& Score 

Risk Update and date of update Target Risk 
Rating & Score 

Target 
Date 
Risk 

Approach 

Current 
Risk 
score 

change 
indicator 

CR17 
Safeguarding 

Cause: Not providing appropriate training to 
staff or members; not providing effective 
leadership, management or supervision; poor 
case management, information sharing or 
actions. 
Event: Failure to deliver actions under the 
City of London's Corporate Safeguarding 
Policy. All staff (and in particular social 
workers & teachers) not taking appropriate 
action in relation to safeguarding issues. 
Effect: Physical or mental harm suffered by a 
child or vulnerable adult, damage to the City 
of London's reputation, possible legal action, 
investigation by CQC and or Ofsted. (Risk 
description revised June 2019) 

 

8 The network of Safeguarding Champions to 
fully embed safeguarding responsibilities 
across the organisation has been relaunched. 
Some of the existing champions have moved 
on or no longer perform this role. Chief Officers 
have been asked to nominate a Safeguarding 
Champion for their departments, and to report 
to the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services every six months on the discharge of 
their safeguarding responsibilities. These 
actions have been delayed due to demands 
relating to the Covid-19 response and to the 
impact of the Target Operating Model which 
mean some departmental restructures. 
 
This network of Champions is still outstanding 
due to Covid-19 and will remain on register 
with a revised target date of May 2021. 
 
Monitoring of the demand for Adult and 
Children Social Care is taking place to ensure 
resources are adequate to manage the 
response to Covid-19. 
 
Investigations into ensuring business continuity 
arrangements and Mosaic (Adult and Children 
Information system) reliability issues have 
been launched in the light of the Hackney 
Council cyber-attack. Special arrangements 
have been put in place to ensure the out of 
hours service has access to City of London 
client records. 

 

8  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Accept 
 

 

22-Sep-2014 08 Mar 2021 Constant 

Andrew Carter 

P
age 191



 

 

                        

Action no Action description Latest Note Action 
owner 

Latest 
Note 
Date 

Due Date 

CR17X Chief Officers have been asked to nominate 
Safeguarding Champions and to report to the 
Director of Community and Children’s 
Services every six months on the discharge of 
their safeguarding responsibilities.  

The network of Safeguarding Champions to fully embed safeguarding 
responsibilities across the organisation has been relaunched. Some of the 
existing champions have moved on or no longer perform this role. Chief 
Officers have been asked to nominate a Safeguarding Champion for their 
departments. 
 
Chief Officers have also been asked to report to the Director of Community 
and Children’s Services every six months on the discharge of their 
safeguarding responsibilities.  
 
 These provisions have been delayed due to extra demands on departments 
relating to the Covid-19 response and the impact of the new Target Operating 
Model. 

Andrew 
Carter 

08-Mar-
2021  

31-May-
2021 

CR17y Monitoring is taking place to ensure that the 
Children and Adult Social Care Workforce is 
adequately resourced to tackle the increase in 
demand which is likely to occur when the 
Covid-19 lockdown period finishes. 

f It is possible this will generate additional demands on the system as an 
increase in identified need happens at the same time and a surge on 
safeguarding and support services risks outstripping capacity. 
 
Additional capacity has been brought into the front line Children and Adult 
Social Care services to support demand however these arrangements are 
temporary and require a wider service review to ensure that there is sufficient 
capacity long term to meet demand due to Covid-19. HR have advised that 
no restructures can progress at this time due to the new Target Operating 
Model (TOM).   

Chris 
Pelham 

08-Mar-
2021  

30-Jun-
2021 

CR17z Investigations into ensuring business 
continuity arrangements and Mosaic (Adult 
and Children Information system) reliability 
issues have been launched in the light of the 
Hackney Council cyber-attack. 

Arrangements for business continuity in respect of the Mosaic system are 
being reviewed to address any potential complete loss. This is unlikely due to 
the system being externally hosted but following the Hackney Council cyber-
attack all current mitigation is being reviewed. 
 
Special arrangements are in place to ensure that the out of hours service 
have access to City of London client records.  The situation is being 
monitored and this risk is being reported to the City and Hackney 
Safeguarding Children Partnership. 

Chris 
Pelham 

08-Mar-
2021  

31-Mar-
2021 

 

P
age 192



Document is Restricted

Page 193

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committees: 
Audit & Risk Management Committee – For Decision 
Finance Committee – For Information 
 

Dated: 
23 March 2021 
13 April 2021 

Subject: Deep Dive Review of CR35 - Unsustainable 
Medium-Term Finances 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? 

7 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding? N/A 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Chamberlain For Decision 
  Report author: Caroline Al-Beyerty, Deputy Chamberlain 

 

 
 

Summary 
 
This deep dive report updates the CR35 risk on the Corporation’s Medium-Term 
Finances.  This is timely as the Court on 4 March agreed the budget plans for 2021/22 
and the medium-term financial plan (MTFP) and aligns with the target risk date of end 
March for reviewing and moving the Risk from Red 24 to Amber 12.   
 
Although significant challenges lie ahead in terms of savings implementation (including 
from TOM implementation), income loss (from rental, Business Rate and Barbican 
income) and external threats, the key mitigations are nonetheless in place, which 
means that Members can now revisit the RAG status of the risk.   
 
The officer review process which precedes a recommendation to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee has4 been completed, but is supportive of a move from Red 
to Amber on the understanding that it could be re-escalated to Red in the event of 
changes to the external environment and delays in internal mitigations, which will be 
tracked by the Efficiency & Performance Sub-Committee. 
 
The January Audit and Risk Management Committee undertook a deep dive on the 
Police funding risk (CR23). Proposed next steps for this risk are firstly to retain it as a 
separate corporate risk for the next 6 months and then to consider whether to 
incorporate relevant elements into the Corporation’s Medium-Term Financial Plan risk 
(CR35) and devolve it to the Police Authority risk register.  
 
 
Recommendations: 

Members are asked to: 
 

• endorse the officer recommendation to adjust the RAG status from Red to Amber, 
in line with the target risk score, following the adoption of key mitigations.   

Page 195

Agenda Item 14



 

 

• note the proposal to retain the Police funding risk as a separate corporate risk for 
the next 6 months and then to consider whether to integrate into the wider finance 
risk, subject to progress on moving to sustainable budget plans. 

 
 
Main Report 

 

Background 
 
1. The CR35 Unsustainable Medium-Term Finances risk was endorsed by the Audit 

& Risk Management Committee in July 2020; the purpose of the risk was to 
consolidate and clearly capture the risk exposure to the City Corporation’s finances 
both in the short and medium-term. CR35 highlights a number of key areas of risk 
and mitigating actions have been put in place.  

 
Current Position 
 
2. The CR35 Unsustainable Medium-Term Finances Risk has had a risk score of red 

24, prior to meeting the target score of 12 by31 March 2021.  
 

3. In year position: Budget adjustments of £29.9m across all funds were agreed by 
the Court of Common Council in December 2020 - comprising £17.2m to local risk 
budgets and £12.7m for anticipated investment income losses. Mitigations include 
spend reduction; furloughing of staff not able to work; and recovery of lost City 
Fund income from the government’s compensation scheme expected to be 
£11.7m. Against the revised budget, the anticipated year end position is an 
overspend of £1.8m, mainly in City’s Cash.  

 
4. Across the medium-term horizon, the greatest risks to financial sustainability are 

loss of investment income on all funds; volatility in retained business rate income 
in City Fund from appeals; and delays in flight-path savings. Sums to mitigate risk 
are being held in Reserves - £30m on City Fund and £20m on BHE (on a holding 
basis only). The City Corporation is already drawing down on City’s Cash Reserves 
by £526m across the planning horizon to 2024/25, which is sustainable over the 
medium term, but not if that rate of drawdown is continued in the longer 10-year 
horizon. 

 
5. Actions/Mitigations: there are seven key actions that were assigned to mitigate 

this risk by the target date. 
 
CR 35a - Tracking and where possible limiting the negative impact on key 
income streams and bad debt 
6. Income streams and debt levels are being monitored on a monthly basis; and the 

key income streams regarding investment property and business rates are covered 
in more detail below. The Budget for 21/22 includes reduced income from both 
rents and business rates, with recovery profiled across the medium term. 
 

CR 35b – Securing flight path savings and understanding service impacts 
7. Scrutiny/monitoring of flight path savings was approved by the Efficiency and 

Performance Sub Committee on 26th February. To provide reassurance to 

Page 196



 

 

Members that the flight path savings remain on track, officers are seeking to track 
information, at departmental and corporate levels, regarding performance against 
the Fundamental Review programme, the 12% savings target and the Target 
Operating Model programme, so appropriate mitigating action can be taken where 
necessary. 

 
CR 35c - To reduce strain on cash flow. 
8. The cash flow position is holding up well. The City Corporation remains liquid and 

the outlook for near term cash flows is robust. Cash flow modelling for major 
commitments is being carried out and will be reported to Financial Investment 
Board in May 2021. The next tranche of private placement monies, £200m, for 
City’s Cash will be received in July 2021. 

 
CR 35d – Maximising the recovery from government of increased expenditure 
related to COVID measures 
9.  Covid related spend is being coded and monitored, with an estimated claim of up 

to £10m for loss of fees & charges on City Fund. Total claim made to date is £5.3m 
(£1.5m received for qtr1 and £3.8m pending).  The use of the furlough scheme has 
resulted in the recovery of £4m to end of January. 

   
CR 35e – Mitigating the impact of Business Rate income shortfall 
10. The impact of COVID-19 has been to lower the collection rate for business rates. 

Collection is now 4.9% below previous year, an improvement from 6% in 
December. Modelling a more pessimistic view on retained business rates income 
in 2021/22 removes almost all of the current £27m growth - pushing City Fund into 
an estimated £19m deficit.  

 
11. Central Government has recognised the cashflow impacts of business rates and 

has deferred its share for April-June, which has been re-profiled over the reminder 
of the year. The Government is also allowing authorities to spread the impact of 
business rate deficits over 3 years.  

 
12. However, the impact of business rate appeals linked to COVID could be far more 

significant. It is currently unclear what the approach from the Valuation Office will 
be, nor has the interaction with wider business rate income issues been clarified.  
But moves for potentially large-scale reductions in rateable value appear to be on 
hold for now.  The Deputy Chamberlain, with the Society of London Treasurers, is 
liaising with MHCLG on the severity of the potential impact across the whole of 
local government financing with a view to establishing a funding solution. 

 
CR 35f – Managing the impact on our investment assets  
13. The values of the City‘s Cash and BHE financial investment portfolios have 

continued to grow steadily following the downturn in financial markets in March 
2020. As at 31 December 2020, the City’s Cash and BHE financial investment 
portfolios have an estimated value of £874m and £837m, respectively. 
Consequently, both portfolios have fully recovered the losses experienced during 
March’s disruptive market conditions, and both portfolios now exceed their pre-
Covid (December 2019) valuations by 9%. Future performance over 2021 will likely 
be determined by virus-related developments; the pace and extent of the global 
economic recovery; and the ability of the Corporation’s appointed specialist fund 

Page 197



 

 

managers to meet their individual objectives. The Financial Investment Board 
(which oversees the Corporation’s financial investment activity) manages this 
uncertainty by diversifying sources of risk and return amongst and within major 
asset classes and by maintaining vigilant oversight of individual asset managers’ 
capacity to add value and enhance performance. 

 
14. On investment properties: arrears stand at 15.86% against a target of 1% which is 

equivalent to £28.8m, most of which is rent. Of these £28.8m arrears £7.4m relates 
to deferred rent due to be repaid, monthly, over the coming year. £25m relate to 
rent service charges. 
 

15. The main effort is to ensure that the portfolio remains tenanted. Rent concessions 
(rent frees and rent deferrals) together with turnover rents for retail and food & 
beverage are aimed at retaining as many tenants as possible. If tenants default, 
there is a high risk of long periods (void marketing/letting period and rent free 
incentives totalling up to 24 months) before properties are income producing again. 
Although some tenants have gone into administration, our voids have not 
increased significantly.  The latest vacancy report, as at 1st December, showed 
our vacancy rate was 2.52%, which was lower than the City vacancy rate of 5.1% 
and the West End vacancy rate of 5.9%. There was a slight increase of 15,232 sq 
ft in vacant space from 1st June to 1st December. 

 
CR 35g – Managing the Impact on the MTFP 
16. For 2021/22, the City Corporation is responding to the financial challenge in two 

ways: 

• a general budget reduction of 12% in 2021/22 for the local authority City 
Fund and City’s Cash; and  

• making organisational efficiencies through a new target operating model 
which will make an increasing contribution over the medium term. 

 
17. These measures put the City Corporation on track for a sustainable Medium-Term 

Financial Plan. But with a global pandemic and worsening economic position, 
pressures and risks for the City Corporation’s finances will continue into the 
2021/22 fiscal year. The task to secure the future savings ‘flight path’ remains and 
there is a need to manage the significant remaining COVID risks and 
unprecedented range of external challenges e.g. Local Government and Police 
Spending Reviews and Business Rates income fluctuations. Lower levels of 
investment income, with a recovery period and a business rate reset in 2022/23 
have been modelled to stress test the impact on the MTFP. Further work will be 
needed to identify savings that meet the full extent of the financial gap over the 
medium-term and provide a build back better/new priorities fund for new policy 
initiatives, principally the Climate Action Strategy. For this reason, £30m is being 
held within City Fund reserves to mitigate the above risks. 
 

18. Bridge House Estates has also been hard hit by COVID income losses and £20m 
of the £200m unrestricted funds previously allocated for charitable funding will be 
retained until such time as the charity is able to confirm the original allocation can 
be supported. 

 
 

Page 198



 

 

CR 35h - Reassessing the Fundamental Review project plan 
19. Action migrated into CR 35i below. 
 
CR 35i Implementing Target Operating Model and FR Savings  
20. Fundamental Review proposals affecting staff were put into abeyance during the 

City Corporation’s response to Covid-19. The Flexible Retirement Scheme for 
those aged 60+ is currently being implemented. Other savings relating to 
organisation design and an associated reduction in headcount are expected to 
begin from the new financial year, with full year impact in 2022/23. Performance 
monitoring will be undertaken by the Efficiency and Performance Sub Committee 
to ensure delivery of flight path savings and impact on service delivery. 

 
Conclusion 
The measures and mitigations outlined in this report put the City Corporation on track 
for a sustainable Medium-Term Financial Plan. But with a global pandemic and 
uncertain economic position, pressures and risks for the City Corporation’s finances 
will continue into the 2021/22 fiscal year and beyond. It is therefore recommended that 
the risk be moved from Red to Amber by the end March target date, on the 
understanding that it could be re-escalated again in the event of a material change in 
the external environment or delays in internal mitigations. 
 

Appendices 

• Appendix 1 – CR35 Risk 
 
 
 
 
Caroline Al-Beyerty 
Deputy Chamberlain 
 
T: 020 7332 1113 
E: caroline.al-beyerty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 199

mailto:caroline.al-beyerty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

6 

CHB Corporate and departmental risks - detailed report  EXCLUDING 

COMPLETED ACTIONS 

 

Report Author: Leah Woodlock 

Generated on: 11 March 2021 

 

 

 

Rows are sorted by Risk Score 

 

 Risk no, title, 

creation date, 

owner 

Risk Description (Cause, Event, Impact)  Current Risk Rating & Score Risk Update and date of update Target Risk Rating & Score Target Date Current 

Risk score 

change 

indicator 

CR35 

Unsustainable 

Medium Term 

Finances 

Causes:  

Anticipated decline in public sector funding (local 

government and Police), increasing demands (revenue and 

capital) and an ambitious programme of major project 

delivery threaten our ability to continue to deliver a 

vibrant and thriving Square Mile 

Normal course of business unable to function due to 

COVID 19 restrictions 

BREXIT compounding market uncertainty and 

exacerbating the economic downturn. 

Major contraction in key income streams and increase in 

bad debts. In particular, that lower occupancy levels in 

city properties reduce investment property income over 

the medium term. 

Police Transform programme fails to realise the budget 

mitigations anticipated. 

Reduction in the value of investments- property and 

securities- reduces available capital for major project 

financing. 

 

24 Budget adjustments of £29.9m across 

all funds agreed by Court on 

December 2020- comprising £17.2m 

to local risk budgets and £12.7m for 

anticipated investment income losses. 

Mitigations include spend reduction; 

furloughing of casual staff and 

permanent staff not able to work; and 

recovery of lost City Fund income 

from the government’s compensation 

scheme expected to be £11.7m. Post 

changes- anticipated year end 

overspend of £1.8m, mainly in City’s 

Cash. 

 

Cash flow position is holding up well. 

 

Balance Sheet- valuers are currently 

estimating property valuations for 

year end.  

 

12 31-Mar-

2021 
Reducing

 

P
age 200



Appendix 1 

7 

Event: Inability to contain financial pressures within year 

(2020/21) and compensatory savings and/or income 

generation to meet the Corporation’s forecast medium 

term financial deficit will not be realised. 

Effects:  

Additional savings over and above those identified 

through the Fundamental Review to meet this challenge 

are required and/or closure in some areas reserves are 

utilised and/or services stopped. 

The City Corporation’s reputation is damaged due to 

failure to meet financial objectives or the need to reduce 

services / service levels to business and community. 

Being unable to set a balanced budget which is a statutory 

requirement for City Fund. 

Spend is not aligned to Corporate Plan outcomes resulting 

in suboptimal use of resources and/or poor performance. 

Capital projects stalled due to COVID restrictions. 

Stakeholders experiencing reduced services and service 

closures. 

Securities portfolio- after an initial 

drop has largely recovered the Dec 

2019 valuation. 

 

Medium term horizon- greatest risks 

are loss of investment income on all 

funds; and volatility in retained 

business rate income in City Fund 

from appeals. Sums to mitigate risk 

are being held in Reserves- £30m on 

City Fund and £20m on BHE. 

Already drawing down on City’s Cash 

Reserves by £526m across the 

planning horizon to 2024/25 (which is 

sustainable given modelling of 

balance sheet recovery). 

 

Performance monitoring undertaken 

by Efficiency and Performance Sub 

Committee to ensure delivery of flight 

path savings and impact on service 

delivery.  

 

Target risk met. 

19-Jun-2020 5 March 2021 Constant 

Caroline Al-

Beyerty 

                        

Action no Action description Latest Note Action 

owner 

Latest Note 

Date 

Due Date 

CR 35a A reduction in key income streams and increase in bad 

debt 

This is being monitored monthly, with action being taken to reduce spend where possible. 

Budget forecast for 21/22 includes reduced income, with recovery profiled across the medium 

term. 

Sonia 

Virdee 

11 Mar 

2021 

31-Mar-

2021 

CR 35b To reduce strain on cash flow. • The Corporation remains very liquid and the outlook for near term cash flows is robust. 

• Cash flowing modelling for major commitments is being carried out. Next tranche, £200m, 

of private placement monies for City’s Cash will be in July 2021.  

 

  

James 

Graham; 

Sonia 

Virdee 

11 Mar 

2021 

31-Mar-

2021 

P
age 201



Appendix 1 

8 

CR 35c Increased expenditure related to COVID measures- 

maximise recovery from government 
• Maximising recovery from government- spend is being coded and monitored. Estimated 

claim of up to £11.7m for loss of fees & charges on City Fund. Total claim made to date is 

£5.3m (£1.5m received for qtr1 and £3.8m pending).  

• Furloughing workers where appropriate has been done recovering £4m to end of January   

 

Sonia 

Virdee 

11 Mar 

2021 

31-Mar-

2021 

CR 35d Inability of occupiers to pay rates as their income falls an 

business models are damaged. 

A reduction in demand for office space in the square mile, 

leading to lower occupation and business rate income. 

The Corporation is currently benefitting from growth in 

business rates retained income of c£40m. 

Non-payment of rates across London leading to 

difficulties in meeting cash flow payments as host of the 

pool. 

• Monthly monitoring in place. The impact of COVID-19 has been to lower the collection rate 

for business rates. Collection now 4.9% below previous year, an improvement from 6% in 

December. 

• The Govt has recognised the cashflow impacts of business rates and has deferred its share 

for April-June, which has been re-profiled over the reminder of the year. The Govt is also 

allowing authorities to spread the impact of business rate deficits over 3 years.  

•          The impact of business rate appeal linked to COVID could be significant. Not clear 

what the approach will be from the VoA. Liaising with MHCLG on potential solutions. 

Impacts will continue to be monitored.  

 

Phil Black 11 Mar 

2021 

31-Mar-

2021 

CR 35e Impact on investments: 

securities/property 
• The values of the three main financial investment portfolios have continued to grow steadily  

• COL’s Pension Fund contributions are fixed until 2023, providing some protection, whilst 

the diversified asset allocation strategies and use of active management across all three funds 

should continue to deliver some stability if general market moves become extreme again.  

• Our voids have not increased significantly, the latest vacancy report, as at 1st December, 

showed our vacancy rate was 2.52%, which was lower than the City vacancy rate of 5.1% and 

the West End vacancy rate of 5.9%. There was a slight increase of 15,232 sq ft in vacant space 

from 1st June to 1st December. 

 

Nicholas 

Gill; James 

Graham 

11 Mar 

2021 

31-Mar-

2021 

CR 35f Impact on the MTFP • Lower investment income modelled into MTFP and business rate reset in 22/23.  

• Sums to mitigate risk are being held in Reserves- £30m on City Fund and £20m on BHE. 

Already drawing down on City’s Cash Reserves by £526m across the planning horizon to 

2024/25 (which is sustainable given modelling of balance sheet recovery)   

FR proposals affecting staff put into abeyance during CoLC’s response to Covid-19.  

• FR proposals affected by COVID have been reprofiled.   

 

Caroline 

Al-Beyerty 

11 Mar 

2021 

31-Mar-

2021 

CR 35h To implement the Fundamental Review project plan- 

TOM 
• FR proposals affecting staff put into abeyance during CoLC’s response to Covid-19.  

• The Flexible Retirement Scheme for those aged 60+ is currently being implemented.  

• Other savings relating to organisation design and an associated reduction in headcount are 

expected to begin from the new financial year, with full year impact in 2022/23.  

 

Chrissie 

Morgan 

11 Mar 

2021 

31-Mar-

2021 

 

P
age 202



Document is Restricted

Page 203

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Outstanding Actions of the Committee
	5 Committee Work Programme
	6 Internal Audit Charter
	Appendix 1 - Audit Charter 2021
	Appendix 2 - Audit Charter 2020 - Marked up version

	7a Bridge House Estates
	7b City Fund
	7c City's Cash and Sundry Trusts
	7d Pension Fund
	8 Internal Audit Update (Provisional 12-month plan delivery outturn)
	9 Deep Dive: CR17 Safeguarding
	Appendix 1 - CR17 Safeguarding Risk Register

	13 Non-Public Minutes of the previous meeting
	14 Deep Dive Review of CR35 - Unsustainable Medium-Term Finances
	15 Distributed Denial of Service incident at the City of London School

